
-1-

CITY OF ONTARIO 
DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD 

AGENDA 

May 15, 2023

 All documents for public review are on file in the Planning Department located in
City Hall at 303 East “B” St., Ontario, CA  91764 and on the city’s website at 

ontarioca.gov/Agendas/DAB  

MEETING WILL BE HELD AT 1:30 PM IN ONTARIO CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
LOCATED AT 303 East “B” St. 

Scott Ochoa, City Manager 
Scott Murphy, Executive Director, Community Development Agency 
Jennifer McLain Hiramoto, Economic Development Director 
James Caro, Building Official 
Rudy Zeledon, Planning Director  
Khoi Do, City Engineer 
Chief Michael Lorenz, Police Department 
Fire Marshal Paul Ehrman, Fire Department 
Scott Burton, Utilities General Manager 
Angela Magana, Community Improvement Manager 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Citizens wishing to address the Development Advisory Board on any matter that is not on the agenda 
may do so at this time.  Please state your name and address clearly for the record and limit your remarks 
to five minutes. 

Please note that while the Development Advisory Board values your comments, the members cannot 
respond nor take action until such time as the matter may appear on the forthcoming agenda. 

AGENDA ITEMS 



 
 

-2- 

For each of the items listed below the public will be provided an opportunity to speak. After a staff report is 
provided, the chairperson will open the public hearing. At that time the applicant will be allowed five (5) minutes 
to make a presentation on the case. Members of the public will then be allowed five (5) minutes each to speak.  
The Development Advisory Board may ask the speakers questions relative to the case and the testimony provided.  
The question period will not count against your time limit. After all persons have spoken, the applicant will be 
allowed three minutes to summarize or rebut any public testimony. The chairperson will then close the public 
hearing portion of the hearing and deliberate the matter. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 
 
A. MINUTES APPROVAL 
 

Development Advisory Board Minutes of May 1, 2023, approved as written. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS  

 
B. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE 

NO. PDEV21-044: A public hearing to consider a Development Plan to construct a commercial 
restaurant building (Panera) with a drive-thru facility totaling 4,290 square feet on 1.26 acres of 
land located at the southwest corner of Fourth Street and Ontario Mills Drive within 
Commercial/Office land use designation of the California Commerce Center North/Ontario 
Gateway Plaza/Wagner Properties (Ontario Mills) Specific Plan. The project is categorically 
exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to 
Section 15332 (Class 32, In-Fill Development Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed 
project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport and was 
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International 
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. (APN: 238-014-05) submitted by Panera LLC.  

  
1. CEQA Determination    

 
No action necessary – Exempt:  CEQA Guidelines Section § 15332 
       

2. File No. PDEV21-044  (Development Plan) 
 

Motion to Approve / Deny 
 

C. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP REVIEW FOR 
FILE NO. PMTT22-020: A public hearing to consider Tentative Parcel Map No. 20587, 
subdividing 0.423 acres of land into two lots located at 121 East 6th Street within the LDR-5 (Low-
Density - 2.1 to 5.0 du/ac) zoning district. The project is categorically exempt from the requirements 
of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15315 (Class 15, Minor 
Land Divisions) of the CEQA Guidelines. The proposed project is located within the Airport 
Influence Area of Ontario International Airport and was evaluated and found to be consistent with 
the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan; (APN: 
1011-521-30) submitted by Samson Mulugeta. Planning Commission action is required. 

 
1. CEQA Determination    

 
No action necessary – Exempt:  CEQA Guidelines Section § 15315  
  

2. File No. PMTT22-020 (TPM 20587) (Tentative Parcel Map)  
 

Motion to recommend Approval/Denial 
 





CITY OF ONTARIO 

Development Advisory Board 

Minutes 

May 1, 2023 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 

Rudy Zeledon, Chairman, Planning Department  
James Caro, Building Department 
Charity Hernandez, Economic Development Agency 
Khoi Do, Engineering Department 
Michelle Starkey, Fire Department  
Christy Stevens, Municipal Utilities Company  
Heather Lugo, Police Department 

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT 

Elda Zavala, Community Improvement 

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT 

Gwen Berendsen, Planning Department  
Kim Ruddins, Planning Department 
Edmelynne Hutter, Planning Department 
Jocelyn Torres, Planning Department 
Raymond Lee, Engineering Department  
Michael Bhatanawin, Engineering Department 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

No person from the public wished to speak. 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 

A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  Motion to approve the minutes of the April 17, 2023 meeting of
the Development Advisory Board was made by Mr. Do; seconded by Ms. Stevens; and approved
unanimously by those present (6-0).  Mr. Caro recused himself as he was not at this meeting.

PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 

B. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT, TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP AND
DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW FOR FILE NOS. PMTT22-005 AND PDEV22-008: A
public hearing to consider Parcel Map No. 20517 (File No. PMTT22-005) to subdivide 80 acres of
land into six parcels to facilitate a Development Plan (File No. PDEV22-008) to construct six
industrial buildings totaling 1,559,204 square feet. The Project site is bordered by Eucalyptus,
Avenue on the north, Campus Avenue on the east, Merrill Avenue on the south, and Sultana Avenue
on the west, and is located within the BP (Business Park) and IG (Industrial General) land use

Item A - 1 of 3



Development Advisory Board Minutes 
May 1, 2023 

districts of the Ontario Ranch Business Park Specific Plan. The environmental impacts of this 
project were previously reviewed in conjunction with The Ontario Ranch Business Park Specific 
Plan Amendment (File No. PSPA21-002), for which a Final Subsequent Environmental Impact 
Report (State Clearinghouse No. 2019050018) was certified by the City Council on October 18, 
2022. This application introduces no new significant environmental impacts. The proposed project 
is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport and was evaluated and 
found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use 
Compatibility Plan. The project site is also located within the Airport Influence area of Chino 
Airport and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Chino 
Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan; (APNs: 1054-041-01, 1054-041-02, 1054-031-01, 1054-031-
02, 1054-261-01, 1054-261-02, 1054-291-01, 1054-291-02) submitted by Euclid Land Ventures, 
LLC. Planning Commission action is required for File No. PMTT22-005. 

Mr. Zeledon opened the public hearing. 

Jeff Johnston, was present and thanked staff, and stated he agreed to all the Conditions of Approval. 

As there was no one else wishing to speak on this item, Mr. Zeledon closed the public hearing. 

Motion to recommend approval of File No. PMTT22-002, was made by Mr. Do; seconded by Mr. Caro; 
and approved unanimously by those present (7-0). 

Motion to approve File No. PDEV22-007, was made by Mr. Do; seconded by Ms. Stevens; and approved 
unanimously by those present (7-0). 

C. ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT AND TENTATIVE TRACT MAP REVIEW FOR
FILE NO. PMTT22-021: A public hearing to consider Tentative Tract Map No. 20536,
subdividing 23.2 acres of land for condominium purposes, into 141 numbered lots and 27 lettered
lots to facilitate the development of 265 dwellings, located approximately 875 feet south of the
intersection of Riverside Drive and Archibald Avenue, within the Planning Area 1 Neighborhood
2 of the Countryside Specific Plan. An Addendum to the Countryside Specific Plan Environmental
Impact Report (State Clearinghouse No. 2004071001), which was certified by the City Council on
April 18, 2006, was prepared to be consistent with The Ontario Plan 2050 and associated
Supplemental Environmental Impact Report (SEIR) (State Clearinghouse No. 2021070364), which
was certified by the City Council on August 16, 2022. This application introduces no new
significant environmental impacts. The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence
Area of Ontario International Airport and was evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies
and criteria of the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan; (APNs: 0218-111-
60, 0218-111-61) submitted by RB Ontario LLC. Planning Commission action is required.

Mr. Zeledon opened the public hearing. 

Jeff Ragland, was present and thanked staff. 

Mr. Zeledon asked if he had reviewed the updated Engineering and OMUC Conditions of Approval. 

Mr. Ragland stated he agreed with all the revised COA’s. 

As there was no one else wishing to speak on this item, Mr. Zeledon closed the public hearing. 

Item A - 2 of 3



Item A - 3 of 3



Page 1 of 21 

DECISION NO.: [insert #] 

FILE NO.: PDEV21-044 

DESCRIPTION: A hearing to consider a Development Plan to construct a 4,290 
drive-thru restaurant (Panera) and 500-square-foot outdoor patio on 1.26 acres of land 
located at the southwest corner of Fourth Street and Ontario Mills Drive within 
Commercial/Office land use designation of the California Commerce Center 
North/Ontario Gateway Plaza/Wagner Properties (Ontario Mills) Specific Plan. (APN: 238-
014-05); submitted by Panera LLC.

PART 1: BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 

PANERA LLC, (herein after referred to as "Applicant") has filed an application 
requesting approval of a Development Plan, File No. PDEV21-044, as described in the 
subject of this Decision (herein after referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 

PROJECT SETTING: The Project site is comprised of 1.26 acres of land located at southwest 
corner of Fourth Street and Ontario Mills Drive, which is depicted in Exhibit A: Project 
Location Map, attached. The proposed Panera drive-thru building will be located on the 
northeast corner of an existing parking lot for Regal Edwards Ontario Palace. The Regal 
Edwards Ontario Palace property is 17.2 acres in size and was constructed in 1997 with a 
124,600-square foot building and parking lot. The properties to the south, east, and west 
are part of the Ontario Mills Mall and the properties to the north are located within the 
City of Rancho Cucamonga and are developed with a Costco Wholesale and furniture 
store. Existing land uses, Policy Plan (general plan) and zoning designations, and specific 
plan land designations on and surrounding the project site are as follows: 

Existing Land Use Policy Plan 
Land Use Designation 

Zoning 
Designation 

Specific Plan 
Land Use Designation 

Site: Regal Edwards Ontario 
Palace parking lot MU (Mixed Use) Ontario Mills Specific 

Plan Commercial / Office 

North: 
City of Rancho Cucamonga 
Costco and Furniture Store 

21st Century 
Employment District 

ME2 Mixed 
Employment 2 Zone 

South: Regal Edwards Ontario 
Palace MU (Mixed Use) Ontario Mills Specific 

Plan Commercial / Office 

East: Multi-Tenant Retail Buildings MU (Mixed Use) Ontario Mills Specific 
Plan Commercial / Office 

303 East B Street, Ontario, California 91764 Phone: 909.395.2036 / Fax: 909.395.2420 

DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD 
DECISION 

May 15, 2023 

Item B - 1 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV21-044 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 2 of 21 

 Existing Land Use Policy Plan 
Land Use Designation 

Zoning 
Designation 

Specific Plan 
Land Use Designation 

West: Gas Station and Ontario Mills 
Mall MU (Mixed Use) Ontario Mills Specific 

Plan 

Commercial / Office 
and Regional 
Commercial 

 
(1) Background — On July 23, 2019, the Planning Commission approved Tentative 
Parcel Map No. 20087 (File No. PMTT18-010) to subdivide 17.92 acres (Regal Edwards 
Ontario Palace property) of land into two parcels located at the southwest corner of 
Fourth Street and Ontario Mills Drive. The approval required Covenants, Conditions and 
Restrictions (CC&Rs) to be recorded with the final map to address common 
maintenance, reciprocal access, and reciprocal parking between the two parcels. The 
approved Tentative Parcel Map also included a Shared Parking Analysis that evaluated 
the loss of 30 off-street parking spaces to accommodate a future commercial use and 
analyzed the parking demand for the existing movie theater (Parcel 1) and any future 
commercial use (Parcel 2). The Shared Parking Analysis concluded that the demand for 
both uses during peak hours would be 1,420 off-street parking spaces. Since a total of 
1,593 off-street parking spaces would be provided for both parcels there would be no 
parking availability issues for any future commercial land use. 
 
On November 19, 2021, the Applicant submitted a Development Plan application (File 
No. PDEV21-044) to construct a 4,290 drive-thru restaurant (Panera) and 500-square-foot 
outdoor patio on 1.26 acre project site.   
 
(2) Site Design/Building Layout —The Project occupies Parcel 2 of the previously 
approved Tentative Parcel Map No. 20087 and will be built-out to a FAR of 0.08. The fast-
food restaurant building is centered on the property (Parcel 2), oriented in a north-south 
configuration, with the drive-thru window facing east towards Ontario Mills Drive. The 
proposed Project will occupy a portion of four rows of existing parking and will not 
encroach into the principal drive aisles of the movie theatre parking lot, located north 
and east of the proposed building (see Exhibit B — Site Plan, attached). 
 
The building is setback approximately 88 feet from the north property line (Fourth Street), 
approximately 83 feet from the east (Ontario Mills Drive) property line, approximately 120 
feet from the west property line, and approximately 64 feet from the south property line. 
Parking for employees and customers has been provided to the north, south, east, and 
west of the building. The entrance to the drive-thru is located at the southeast corner of 
the Project site and will circulate in a west/east direction turning north and terminating 
along the eastern building elevation. The Project provides drive-thru lane stacking for 12 
vehicles (see Exhibit B — Site Plan, attached) and 59 parking stalls.  
 
The Project includes off-site parking improvements to the west and south of Parcel 2, 
which includes re-aligning existing drive aisles, new landscape planters, striping and new 
asphalt. The Project will also require the removal of 127 parking spaces within Parcel 2 to 
accommodate the proposed restaurant and the construction of a new trash enclosure 
designed to meet current city standards. 

Item B - 2 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV21-044 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 3 of 21 

The building’s main entrance is located on the northwest corner of the building, with 
doors facing west, towards the parking lot and a second set of doors facing north 
towards Fourth street. Walkways will be located along the west, north and south portions 
of the building, providing pedestrian connections to the main entrance. The drive-thru 
order menu boards are located to the south of the building and the pick-up window is 
centrally located on the east elevation (see Exhibit B — Site Plan, attached). The floor 
plan has been designed with the dining area occupying the northern half of the building 
and the kitchen/employee/bathrooms occupying the southern half of the building (see 
Exhibit C — Floor Plan, attached). An outdoor patio (500 square feet) has also been 
provided on the north side of the building, facing Fourth Street.  
 
(3) Site Access/Circulation — Regal Edwards Ontario Palace is presently served by a 
total of nine access points, two access points from Fourth Street, two access points from 
Ontario Mills Drive, four access points from Mills Circle and one access point from Franklin 
Avenue. The proposed Project will not alter the location of any vehicular access points 
or internal major drive aisles of the parking lot. The Project site can be served by all 
vehicular entries, however primary access would likely be taken from Fourth Street and 
Ontario Mills Drive entries which lead to internal shared drive aisles. The approval of 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 20087 required CC&Rs to be recorded with the final map to 
address common maintenance, reciprocal access, and reciprocal parking between the 
two parcels to ensure safe and legal access and circulation across property lines, to each 
business. 
 
(4) Parking — The Project has provided off-street parking pursuant to the Fast-Food 
Restaurants parking standards specified in the Ontario Development Code. The number 
of off-street parking spaces provided exceeds the minimum parking requirement for the 
Project. The off-street parking calculations for the Project are summarized in the table 
below:  

 
Parking Table Summary  

Type of Use Building Area Parking Ratio Spaces 
Required 

Spaces 
Provided 

Fast Food 
Restaurants 

4,290 SF 
288 LF of drive-thru lane 

13.3 spaces per 1,000 SF of GFA. 
Restaurants with drive-thru may be 

credited one space for each 24 lineal feet 
of drive-thru lane behind the pickup 
window (12 drive-thru spaces credit) 

57  

TOTAL 45 59 

 
As stated in the Background portion of this report, the approved Tentative Parcel Map 
included a Shared Parking Analysis. The Shared Parking Analysis evaluated the loss of 30 
off-street parking spaces for future commercial use, however the proposed Project will 
result in the loss of 68 off-street parking spaces. Although, the Project results in the loss of 
an additional 38 off-street parking spaces the Shared Parking Analysis concluded that 
there would be a surplus of 173 off-street parking spaces during peak times. The proposed 
Project would result in a surplus of 135 off-street parking spaces that would still provide 

Item B - 3 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV21-044 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 4 of 21 

sufficient parking during peak times for both uses. Staff believes that the proposed use 
will not adversely affect the overall parking demand within the existing center and 
sufficient parking will continue to be provided to support the proposed use and existing 
tenants. 
 
(5) Architecture — The proposed building has a contemporary architectural design. 
The exterior walls are treated with a combination of brick veneer (stack bond design), 
stucco, aluminum wood, and a contrasting color palette that includes green, light brown, 
and beige tones. The northwest corner of the building incorporates a tower element with 
metal canopies that project over the two main entrances. The building incorporates 
metal canopies over windows, varying parapet heights, and the drive-thru features a 
covered canopy design to match the rest of the building (see Exhibit D — Elevations, 
attached).  
 
The mechanical equipment will be roof-mounted and obscured from public view by 
parapet walls and, if necessary, equipment screens, which will incorporate design 
features consistent with the building’s architecture. Staff believes that the proposed 
project illustrates the type of high-quality architecture promoted by the Ontario 
Development Code. This is exemplified through the use of: 
 
 Articulation in the building footprint, incorporating a combination of recessed and 

popped-out wall areas; 
 
 Articulation in the building parapet/roof line, which serves to accentuate the 

building’s entries and breaks up large expanses of building wall; 
 
 A mix of exterior materials, finishes and fixtures; and 

 
 Additionally, the building has been designed to ensure that its massing and 

proportion, along with its colors and architectural detailing, are consistent on all 
building walls, giving a four-sided (360-degree) appearance. 

 
(6) Landscaping — The Project provides landscaping improvements that extend 
beyond the Project site, includes additional landscape planter areas to the west and 
south to provide safe transition between the building, drive-thru lanes, existing parking 
stalls and existing drive aisles. The California Commerce Center North/Ontario Gateway 
Plaza/Wagner Properties (Ontario Mills) Specific Plan requires a minimum of 15 percent 
landscaping, and the Project site is proposing 25 percent landscape coverage, which 
exceeds the minimum requirement (see Exhibit E — Landscape Plan). The Project site 
improvements includes new landscape planters within the parking lot, replacing missing 
landscaping along Fourth Street and Ontario Mills Drive and the installation of new 
landscape planters surrounding the proposed building and trash enclosure. The 
proposed plant palette includes: 
 
 Eleven Western Redbud Trees (15-gallon) planted north, south and east of the 

building; 

Item B - 4 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV21-044 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 5 of 21 

 Three Chitalpa Trees (48-inch box standard) planted south of the building within 
parking planters;  

 Twelve Holly Oak Trees (36-inch and 24-inch box standard) planted to the east and 
south of the building within the parking planters; and 

 A combination of drought tolerant shrubs, groundcover and grasses throughout 
the Project site.  

 
(7) Signage — All project signage is required to comply with sign regulations provided 
in Ontario Development Code Division 8.1. Prior to the issuance of a Building Permit for 
the installation of any new on-site signage, the Applicant is required to submit Sign Plans 
for Planning Department review and approval. 
 
(8) Utilities (drainage, sewer) — Public utilities (water and sewer) are available to serve 
the Project. Furthermore, the Applicant has submitted a Preliminary Water Quality 
Management Plan ("PWQMP"), which establishes the Project's compliance with storm 
water discharge/water quality requirements. The PWQMP includes site design measures 
that capture runoff and pollutant transport by minimizing impervious surfaces and 
maximizes low impact development ("LID") best management practices ("BMPs"), such 
as retention and infiltration, biotreatment, and evapotranspiration. The PWQMP proposes 
the use of underground chambers located along the southern portion of the site within 
the drive aisles. Any overflow drainage will be conveyed to the public street by way of 
parkway drains and culverts. 
 
PUBLIC NOTIFICATION: The subject application was advertised as a hearing in at least one 
newspaper of general circulation in the City of Ontario (the Inland Valley Daily Bulletin 
newspaper). 
 
CORRESPONDENCE: As of the preparation of this Decision, Planning Department staff has 
not received any written or verbal communications from the owners of properties 
surrounding the project site or from the public in general, regarding the subject 
application. 
 
AGENCY/DEPARTMENT REVIEWS: Each City agency/department has been provided the 
opportunity to review and comment on the subject application and recommend 
conditions of approval to be imposed upon the application. At the time of the Decision 
preparation, recommended conditions of approval were provided and are included 
with this Decision. 
 
AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLAN (ALUCP) COMPLIANCE: The California State 
Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires that an Airport Land 
Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with 
the policies set forth in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. 
 
On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario approved and adopted the ONT 
ALUCP, establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport, which 

Item B - 5 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV21-044 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 6 of 21 

encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, 
and limits future land uses and development within the Airport Influence Area, as they 
relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future 
airport activity. As the decision-making body for the Project, the Development Advisory 
Board has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the 
Application and supporting documentation against the ONT ALUCP compatibility 
factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ONT ALUCP Table 2-2) and Safety Zones (ONT ALUCP 
Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ONT ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ONT ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ONT ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight 
Notification Zones (ONT ALUCP Map 2-5). As a result, the Development Advisory Board, 
therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with 
the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ONT ALUCP. 
 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE ONTARIO PLAN: The proposed project is consistent with the 
principles, goals and policies contained within the Vision, Governance, Policy Plan 
(general plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan ("TOP"). More 
specifically, the goals and policies of TOP that are furthered by the proposed project are 
as follows: 
 
(1) City Council Goals. 

 Invest in the Growth and Evolution of the City's Economy 
 Maintain the Current High Level of Public Safety 
 Operate in a Businesslike Manner 
 Focus Resources in Ontario's Commercial and Residential Neighborhoods 
 Invest in the City's Infrastructure (Water, Streets, Sewers, Parks, Storm Drains 

and Public Facilities) 
 
(2) Vision. 
 

Distinctive Development: 
 

 Commercial and Residential Development 
 

 Development quality that is broadly recognized as distinctive and not 
exclusively tied to the general suburban character typical of much of Southern California. 

 
(3) Governance. 
 

Decision Making: 
 

 Goal G1: Sustained decision-making that consistently moves Ontario towards 
its Vision by using The Ontario Plan as a framework for assessing choices. 
 

 G 1-2. Long-term Benefit. We require decisions to demonstrate and 
document how they add value to the community and support the Ontario Vision. 

Item B - 6 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV21-044 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 7 of 21 

(4) Policy Plan (General Plan) 
 
Land Use Element: 

 
 LU-1.6 Complete Community. We incorporate a variety of land uses and 

building types in our land use planning efforts that result in a complete community where 
residents at all stages of life, employers, workers, and visitors have a wide spectrum of 
choices of where they can live, work, shop and recreate within Ontario. 
 

 Goal LU-2 Compatibility: Compatibility between a wide range of uses and a 
resultant urban patterns and forms. 
 

 LU-2.6 Infrastructure Compatibility. We require infrastructure to be 
aesthetically pleasing and in context with the community character. 
 

Community Economics Element: 
 

 Goal CE-1 Complete Community: A complete community that provides for all 
incomes and stages of life. 
 

 Goal CE-2 Placemaking: A City of distinctive neighborhoods, districts, corridors, 
and centers where people choose to be. 
 

 CE-2.1 Development Projects. We require new development and 
redevelopment to create unique, high-quality places that add value to the community. 
 

 CE-2.2 Development Review. We require those proposing new 
development and redevelopment to demonstrate how their projects will create 
appropriately unique, functional, and sustainable places that will compete well with their 
competition within the region. 
 

 CE-2.4 Protection of Investment. We require that new development and 
redevelopment protect existing investment by providing architecture and urban design 
of equal or greater quality. 
 

 CE-2.5 Private Maintenance. We require adequate maintenance, upkeep, 
and investment in private property because proper maintenance on private property 
protects property values. 
 

Safety Element: 
 

 Goal S-1 Seismic & Geologic Hazards: Minimized risk of injury, loss of life, 
property damage, and economic and social disruption caused by earthquake-induced 
and other geologic hazards. 
 

Item B - 7 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV21-044 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 8 of 21 

 S-1.1 Implementation of Regulations and Standards. We require that all new 
habitable structures be designed in accordance with the most recent California Building 
Code adopted by the City, including provisions regarding lateral forces and grading. 
 

Community Design Element: 
 

 Goal CD-1 Image & Identity: A dynamic, progressive city containing distinct 
and complete places that foster a positive sense of identity and belonging among 
residents, visitors, and businesses. 
 

 CD-1.1 City Identity. We take actions that are consistent with the City being 
a leading urban center in Southern California while recognizing, enhancing, and 
preserving the character of our existing viable neighborhoods. 
 

 CD-1.2 Place Types. We establish Place Types in urban, mixed use, and 
transit-oriented areas to foster the City's identity as a premier community and require new 
development within each Place Type to incorporate prescribed urban patterns, forms, 
and placemaking priorities. 
 

 CD-1.3 Existing Neighborhoods. We require the existing character of viable 
residential and non-residential neighborhoods be preserved, protected, and enhanced. 
 

 Goal CD-2 Design Quality: A high level of design quality resulting in 
neighborhoods, public spaces, parks, and streetscapes that are attractive, safe, 
functional, human-scale, and distinct. 
 

 CD-2.1 Quality Building Design and Architecture. We encourage all 
development projects to convey visual interest and character through: 
 

• Building volume, massing, and height to provide context-appropriate 
scale and proportion; 

• A true architectural style which is carried out in plan, section, and 
elevation through all aspects of the building and site design and appropriate for its 
setting; and 

• Exterior building materials that are articulated, high quality, durable, 
and appropriate for the architectural style. 

 
 CD-2.7 Sustainability. We collaborate with the development community to 

design and build neighborhoods, streetscapes, sites, outdoor spaces, landscaping, and 
buildings to reduce energy demand through solar orientation, maximum use of natural 
daylight, passive solar and natural ventilation, building form, mechanical and structural 
systems, building materials, and construction techniques. 
 

 CD-2.8 Safe Design. We incorporate defensible space design into new and 
existing developments to ensure the maximum safe travel and visibility on pathways, 
corridors, and open space and at building entrances and parking areas by avoiding 

Item B - 8 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV21-044 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 9 of 21 

physically and visually isolated spaces, maintaining visibility and accessibility, and using 
lighting. 
 

 CD-2.9 Landscape Design. We encourage durable, sustainable, and 
drought-tolerant landscaping materials and designs that enhance the aesthetics of 
structures, create and define public and private spaces, and provide shade and 
environmental benefits. 
 

 CD-2.10 Parking Areas. We require all development, including single-family 
residential, to minimize the visual impact of surface, structured, and garage parking areas 
visible from the public realm in an aesthetically pleasing, safe and environmentally 
sensitive manner. Examples include: 
 

• Surface parking: Shade trees, pervious surfaces, urban run-off capture 
and infiltration, and pedestrian paths to guide users through the parking field; 

• Structured parking: facade articulation, screening, appropriate lighting, 
and landscaping; and 

• Garage parking: providing access to single-family residential garages 
through alley access, recessing garages from the frontage to emphasize front doors or 
active living spaces. 
 

 CD-2.11 Entry Statements. We encourage the inclusion of amenities, 
signage, and landscaping at the entry to neighborhoods, commercial centers, mixed 
use areas, industrial developments, and public places that reinforce them as uniquely 
identifiable places. 
 

 CD-2.12 Site and Building Signage. We encourage the use of sign programs 
that utilize complementary materials, colors, and themes. Project signage should be 
designed to effectively communicate and direct users to various aspects of the 
development and complement the character of the structures. 
 

 CD-2.13 Entitlement Process. We work collaboratively with all stakeholders 
to ensure a high degree of certainty in the efficient review and timely processing of all 
development plans and permits. 
 

 CD-3.3 Complete and Connected Network. We require that pedestrian, 
vehicular, and bicycle circulation on both public and private property be coordinated 
to provide connections internally and externally to adjacent neighborhoods and 
properties (existing and planned) through a system of local roads and trails that promote 
walking and biking to nearby destinations (including existing and planned parks, 
commercial areas, and transit stops) and are designed to maximize safety, comfort, and 
aesthetics. 
 

 CD-3.4 Context-Aware and Appropriate Design. We require appropriate 
building and site design that complements existing development, respects the intent and 
identity of the Place Type, and provides appropriate transitions and connections 

Item B - 9 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV21-044 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 10 of 21 

between adjacent uses to ensure compatibility of scale, maintain an appropriate level 
of privacy for each use, and minimize potential conflicts. 
 

 CD-3.6 Managed Infrastructure. We collaborate with developers and 
property owners to facilitate development that realizes the envisioned character and 
functionality of the Place Type through the use of green and shared infrastructure within 
each Place Type. 
 

 Goal CD-5 Protection of Investment: A sustained level of maintenance and 
improvement of properties, buildings, and infrastructure that protects the property values 
and encourages additional public and private investments. 
 

 CD-5.1 Maintenance of Buildings and Property. We require all public and 
privately-owned buildings and property (including trails and easements) to be properly 
and consistently maintained. 
 

 CD-5.2 Maintenance of Infrastructure. We require the continual 
maintenance of infrastructure. 
 
HOUSING ELEMENT COMPLIANCE: The project is consistent with the Housing Element of 
the Policy Plan (general plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not 
one of the properties in the Housing Element Sites contained in Tables B-1 and B-2 
(Housing Element Sites Inventory) of the Housing Element Technical Report. 
 
 

PART 2: RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a Project pursuant to the California Environmental 
Quality Act (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA") and an initial study 
has been prepared to determine possible environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption 
(listed in CEQA Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the 
application of that categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth 
in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the 
Development Advisory Board (hereinafter referred to as "DAB") the responsibility and 
authority to review and act on the subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the 
opportunity to review and comment on the Application, and no comments were 
received opposing the proposed development; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element 
of the Policy Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as 

Item B - 10 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV21-044 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 11 of 21 

prescribed in Government Code Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that 
development projects must be consistent with the Housing Element, if upon consideration 
of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and policies of the 
Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport, which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, 
and Los Angeles Counties, and is subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and 
criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
(hereinafter referred to as "ONT ALUCP"), which applies only to jurisdictions within San 
Bernardino County, and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight 
impacts of current and future airport activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) 
prescribes the manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing 
procedures to be followed, and all such notifications and procedures have been 
completed; and 
 

WHEREAS, on May 15, 2023, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing 
on the Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 
 

PART 3: THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED AND DECIDED by the 
Development Advisory Board of the City of Ontario as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the decision-making  
body for the Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained 
in the administrative record for the Project, including all written and oral evidence 
provided during the comment period. Based upon the facts and information contained 
in the administrative record, including all written and oral evidence presented to the DAB, 
the DAB finds as follows: 
 
(1) The Project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15332 (In-fill Development 
Projects) of the CEQA Guidelines, and meets all of the following conditions: 
 

(a) The proposed Project is consistent with the applicable general plan 
designation and all applicable general plan policies as well as with applicable zoning 
designation and regulations. The proposed Project is located within the Mixed-Use land 
use designation of the Policy Plan (general plan) Land Use Map, and the 
Commercial/Office land use designation of the California Commerce Center 
North/Ontario Gateway Plaza/Wagner Properties (Ontario Mills) Specific Plan. The 

Item B - 11 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV21-044 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 12 of 21 

proposed Project is consistent with all applicable Policy Plan policies, as well as with the 
requirements of the specific plan. 
 

(b) The proposed development occurs within city limits on a project site of no 
more than five acres substantially surrounded by urban uses. The Project is proposed 
within the established boundaries of the City of Ontario, on a Project site totaling 1.26-
acres of land, which is surrounded by established development on all sides and consists 
of a mix of commercial/retail land uses. 

 
(c) The Project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare, or threatened 

species. The site is located in an urbanized area, is devoid of any flora or fauna, is currently 
paved and used as a parking lot, and as such not suitable habitat for any endangered, 
rare, or threatened species. 

 
(d) Approval of the Project would not result in any significant effects relating to 

traffic, noise, air quality, or water quality. The proposed commercial restaurant 
development is similar to, and of no greater impact than other allowed uses and 
development projects within the California Commerce Center North/Ontario Gateway 
Plaza/Wagner Properties (Ontario Mills) Specific Plan. 

 
(e) The site is adequately served by all required utilities and public services. All 

necessary wet and dry utilities are within the public street (Fourth Street and Ontario Mills 
Drive) and are readily available for connection. 
 
(2) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the 
exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 
(3) The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment of the 
DAB. 
 

SECTION 2: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of 
California Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, 
as the decision-making body for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and 
information contained in the Application and supporting documentation, at the time of 
Project implementation, the Project is consistent with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the Project site is not one of the 
properties in the Housing Element Sites contained in Tables B-1 and B-2 (Housing Element 
Sites Inventory) of the Housing Element Technical Report. 
 

SECTION 3: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial 
evidence presented to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the 
facts and information set forth in Parts I (Background and Analysis) and II (Recitals), 
above, and the determinations set forth in Sections 1 and 2, above, the DAB hereby 
concludes as follows: 
 

Item B - 12 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV21-044 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 13 of 21 

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with the goals, 
policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council 
Priorities components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project is located within the 
Mixed-Use land use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the Commercial/Office 
land use designation of the California Commerce Center North/Ontario Gateway 
Plaza/Wagner Properties (Ontario Mills) Specific Plan. The development standards and 
conditions under which the proposed Project will be constructed and maintained, is 
consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General 
Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan; and 
 
(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining sites in relation 
to location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, any physical constraint 
identified on the site and the characteristics of the area in which the site is located. The 
Project has been designed consistent with the requirements of the City of Ontario 
Development Code and the Commercial/Office land use designation of the California 
Commerce Center North/Ontario Gateway Plaza/Wagner Properties (Ontario Mills) 
Specific Plan, including standards relative to the particular land use proposed 
(commercial restaurant), as-well-as building intensity, building and parking setbacks, 
building height, number of off-street parking and loading spaces, on-site and off-site 
landscaping, and fences, walls and obstructions; and  
 
(3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the quality of 
existing development in the vicinity of the Project and the minimum safeguards necessary 
to protect the public health, safety and general welfare have been required of the 
proposed Project. The Development Advisory Board has required certain safeguards, 
and impose certain conditions of approval, which have been established to ensure that: 
[i] the purposes of the California Commerce Center North/Ontario Gateway 
Plaza/Wagner Properties (Ontario Mills) Specific Plan are maintained; [ii] the Project will 
not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare; [iii] the Project will not result in 
any significant environmental impacts; [iv] the Project will be in harmony with the area in 
which it is located; and [v] the Project will be in full conformity with the Vision, City Council 
Priorities and Policy Plan components of The Ontario Plan, and the California Commerce 
Center North/Ontario Gateway Plaza/Wagner Properties (Ontario Mills) Specific Plan; 
and 
 
(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development standards and 
design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable specific plan or 
planned unit development. The proposed Project has been reviewed for consistency with 
the general development standards and guidelines of the California Commerce Center 
North/Ontario Gateway Plaza/Wagner Properties (Ontario Mills) Specific Plan that are 
applicable to the proposed Project, including building intensity, building and parking 
setbacks, building height, amount of off-street parking and loading spaces, parking lot 
dimensions, design and landscaping, bicycle parking, on-site landscaping, and fences 
and walls, as-well-as those development standards and guidelines specifically related to 
the particular land use being proposed (commercial restaurant). As a result of this review, 
the Development Advisory Board has determined that the Project, when implemented 

Item B - 13 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV21-044 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 14 of 21 

in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the development 
standards and guidelines described in the California Commerce Center North/Ontario 
Gateway Plaza/Wagner Properties (Ontario Mills) Specific Plan. 
 

SECTION 4: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and 
conclusions set forth in Sections 1 through 3, above, the DAB hereby APPROVES the 
Application subject to each and every condition set forth in the Conditions of Approval 
included as Attachment A of this Decision, and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 5: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify, 
and hold harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any 
claim, action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or 
employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this approval. The City of Ontario shall 
promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of 
Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 6: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute 
the record of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the 
City of Ontario City Hall, 303 East "B" Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for 
these records is the City Clerk of the City of Ontario. The records are available for 
inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of May, 2023. 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 

  

Item B - 14 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV21-044 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 15 of 21 

Exhibit A: PROJECT LOCATION MAP 
 

 
 

Item B - 15 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV21-044 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 16 of 21 

Exhibit B: SITE PLAN 
 

Item B - 16 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV21-044 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 17 of 21 

Exhibit C: FLOOR PLAN 
 

 

Item B - 17 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV21-044 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 18 of 21 

Exhibit D: ELEVATIONS 
 

 
North Elevation 

 
 

  
East Elevation 

 

 
West Elevation 

Item B - 18 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV21-044 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 19 of 21 

Exhibit D: ELEVATIONS CONTINUED  
 

 
South Elevation 

 

 
 
 

Item B - 19 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV21-044 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 20 of 21 

Exhibit E: LANDSCAPE PLANS 
 

   

Item B - 20 of 48



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV21-044 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 21 of 21 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A: Conditions of Approval 
 

(Conditions of Approval follow this page) 
 

Item B - 21 of 48



 

Page 1 of 4 

303 East B Street, Ontario, California 91764 Phone: 909.395.2036 / Fax: 909.395.2420 

LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 
Date Prepared: 5/15/2023 
 
File No: PDEV21-044 
 
Related Files: PMTT18-010 
 
Project Description: A Development Plan to construct a 4,290 drive-thru restaurant (Panera) and 
500-square-foot outdoor patio on 1.26 acres of land located at the southwest corner of Fourth 
Street and Ontario Mills Drive within Commercial/Office land use designation of the California 
Commerce Center North/Ontario Gateway Plaza/Wagner Properties (Ontario Mills) Specific Plan. 
(APN: 238-014-05); submitted by Panera LLC. 
 
Prepared By: Lorena Mejia, Senior Planner 

Phone: 909.395.2276 (direct) 
Email: lmejia@ontarioca.gov 

 
 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable 
to the above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of 
approval listed below: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions 
for New Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy 
of the Standard Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning 
Department or City Clerk/Records Management Department. 
 
2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New 
Development identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following 
special conditions of approval: 
 

2.1 Time Limits. 
 

(a) Development Plan approval shall become null and void 2 years following 
the effective date of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is 
commenced, and diligently pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved 
by the Planning Director. This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified 
herein, or any other departmental conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the 
performance of specific conditions or improvements. 
 

2.2 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general 
requirements: 

 
(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, 

including, but not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape 

Item B - 22 of 48



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV21-044 
 
 

Page 2 of 4 

and irrigation, grading, utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with 
the approved entitlement plans on file with the Planning Department. 
 

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved 
plans on file with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved 
by the Planning Department prior to building permit issuance. 
 

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be 
included in the construction plan set for project, which shall be maintained on site during project 
construction. 
 

2.3 Landscaping.  
 

(a) The Project shall provide and continuously maintain landscaping and 
irrigation systems in compliance with the provisions of Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 
(Landscaping). 
 

(b) Comply with the conditions of approval of the Planning Department; 
Landscape Planning Division. 
 

(c) Landscaping shall not be installed until the Landscape and Irrigation 
Construction Documentation Plans required by Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 
(Landscaping) have been approved by the Landscape Planning Division. 
 

(d) Changes to approved Landscape and Irrigation Construction 
Documentation Plans, which affect the character or quantity of the plant material or irrigation 
system design, shall be resubmitted for approval of the revision by the Landscape Planning 
Division, prior to the commencement of the changes. 
 

2.4 Walls and Fences. All Project walls and fences shall comply with the requirements 
of Ontario Development Code Division 6.02 (Walls, Fences and Obstructions). 
 

2.5 Parking, Circulation and Access. 
 

(a) The Project shall comply with the applicable off-street parking, loading and 
lighting requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and 
Loading). 
 

(b) Areas provided to meet the City’s parking requirements, including off-street 
parking and loading spaces, access drives, and maneuvering areas, shall not be used for the 
outdoor storage of materials and equipment, nor shall it be used for any other purpose than 
parking. 

 
(c) The required number of off-street parking spaces and/or loading spaces 

shall be provided at the time of site and/or building occupancy. All parking and loading spaces 
shall be maintained in good condition for the duration of the building or use. 

 
(d) Parking spaces specifically designated and conveniently located for use 

by the physically disabled shall be provided pursuant to current accessibility regulations 
contained in State law (CCR Title 24, Part 2, Chapters 2B71, and CVC Section 22507.8). 

Item B - 23 of 48



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV21-044 
 
 

Page 3 of 4 

 
(e) Bicycle parking facilities, including bicycle racks, lockers, and other secure 

facilities, shall be provided in conjunction with development projects pursuant to current 
regulations contained in CALGreen (CAC Title 24, Part 11). Final design and placement of bicycle 
parking facilities shall be subject to Planning Department review and approval. 
 

2.6 Site Lighting. 
 

(a) All off-street parking facilities shall be provided with nighttime security 
lighting pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 4-11.08 (Special Residential Building 
Provisions) and Section 4-11.09 (Special Commercial/Industrial Building Provisions), designed to 
confine emitted light to the parking areas. Parking facilities shall be lighted from sunset until sunrise, 
daily, and shall be operated by a photocell switch. 
 

(b) Unless intended as part of a master lighting program, no operation, activity, 
or lighting fixture shall create illumination on any adjacent property. 
 

2.7 Mechanical and Rooftop Equipment. 
 

(a) All exterior roof-mounted mechanical, heating and air conditioning 
equipment, and all appurtenances thereto, shall be completely screened from public view by 
parapet walls or roof screens that are architecturally treated so as to be consistent with the 
building architecture. The building parapet walls shall be increased in height to completely screen 
the rooftop mechanical equipment, all rooftop mechanical equipment shall fall below parapet 
line. 

 
(b) All ground-mounted utility equipment and structures, such as tanks, 

transformers, HVAC equipment, and backflow prevention devices, shall be located out of view 
from a public street, or adequately screened through the use of landscaping and/or decorative 
low garden walls. 
 

2.8 Security Standards. The Project shall comply with all applicable requirements of 
Ontario Municipal Code Title 4 (Public Safety), Chapter 11 (Security Standards for Buildings). 
 

2.9 Signs.  
 

(a) All Project signage shall comply with the requirements of Ontario 
Development Code Division 8.1 (Sign Regulations). 
 

2.10 Sound Attenuation. The Project shall be constructed and operated in a manner so 
as not to exceed the maximum interior and exterior noise levels set forth in Ontario Municipal Code 
Title 5 (Public Welfare, Morals, and Conduct), Chapter 29 (Noise). 

(a)  
 

2.11 Environmental Requirements.  
 

(a) If human remains are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required 
investigation is completed by the County Coroner and Native American consultation has been 
completed (if deemed applicable). 

Item B - 24 of 48



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV21-044 
 
 

Page 4 of 4 

(b) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the 
resource is determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a 
qualified archeologist or paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other 
appropriate measures implemented. 
 

2.12 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, 
the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul 
any approval of the City of Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other 
authorized board or officer. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such 
claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.13 Additional Fees. 
 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Exemption 
(“NOE”) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, 
made payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San 
Bernardino County Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental 
forms/notices, pursuant to the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”). 
The filing of a NOE is voluntary; however, failure to provide said fee within the time specified will 
result in the extension of the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit from 30 days to 
180 days. 
 

(b) After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final 
building permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the 
rate established by resolution of the City Council. 
 

2.14 Additional Requirements. 
 

(a) The drive-thru screen wall shall be designed to match the architecture and 
building materials of the building and incorporate pilasters with a decorative cap.  
 

(b) The west facing entrance shall incorporate a canopy over the entrance 
and incorporate 2 additional wall trellises (as shown below). 
 

 

Item B - 25 of 48



AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Project File No.:

Address:

APN:

Existing Land 
Use:

Proposed Land 
Use:

Site Acreage:

ONT-IAC Project Review:

This proposed Project is: Exempt from the ALUCP Consistent Consistent with Conditions Inconsistent

Reviewed By:

Date:

Contact Info:

Project Planner:

CD No.:

PALU No.:

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones: 

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection

Zone 1

Zone 1A

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

Zone 5

75+ dB CNEL

70 - 75 dB CNEL

65 - 70 dB CNEL

60 - 65 dB CNEL

High Terrain Zone Avigation Easement 
Dedication

Real Estate Transaction

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

Airspace Avigation 
Easement Area

Allowable 
Height:

The project is impacted by the following Chino ALUCP Safety Zones: 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 1

Zone 6

Allowable Height:

PDEV21-044

SWC 4th St & Ontario Mills Drive

0238-014-05

Parking Lot

A Development Plan to construct a 4,290 SF drive-thru restaurant (Panera)

0.79

N/A

ONT

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) was evaluated
and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP) for ONT.

✔

Lorena Mejia

909-395-2276

Lorena Mejia

1/25/2023

2021-074

N/A

20 FT

190 FT

Item B - 26 of 48



Last Revised:  4/27/2023 

 
 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT                                            
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 
(Engineering Services Division [Land Development Section and Environmental Section], Traffic & Transportation 
Division, Ontario Municipal Utilities Company and Broadband Operations & Investment and Revenue Resources 

Department Conditions incorporated) 

 
                 DEVELOPMENT    PARCEL MAP        TRACT MAP 
                     PLAN 
       OTHER                        FOR CONDOMINIUM PURPOSES 

 
 

     PROJECT FILE NO. PDEV21-044 
 

RELATED FILE NO(S). ___________________ 
 

 ORIGINAL     REVISED: __/__/__ 

 
CITY PROJECT ENGINEER & PHONE NO: David Zurita                      (909) 395-2155 

CITY PROJECT PLANNER & PHONE NO:   

 
Lorena Mejia                     (909) 395-2721 

DAB MEETING DATE: 

 
May 15, 2023 

PROJECT NAME / DESCRIPTION: 

 
A development plan to construct one 
commercial building totaling 4,290 sqft 
on 0.79 acres of land located within the 
Regional Commercial land use district 
of the Ontario Mills Specific Plan. 

LOCATION: 4900 E Fourth St (APN: 0238-014-05) 

APPLICANT: Inland Western Ontario 4th St 

REVIEWED BY: 

 
 
 
APPROVED BY: 

 
__________________        _________ 
Raymond Lee, P.E.                            Date 
Assistant City Engineer 
 
__________________        _________ 
Khoi Do, P.E.                                      Date 
City Engineer 

Item B - 27 of 48



Project File No. PDEV21-044 
Project Engineer: David Zurita 
DAB Date: May 15, 2023 

Last Revised 4/27/2023            Page 2 of 14  

THIS PROJECT SHALL COMPLY WITH THE REQUIREMENTS SET FORTH IN THE GENERAL STANDARD 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL (RESOLUTION NO. 2017-027) AND THE 
PROJECT SPECIFIC CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL SPECIFIED HEREIN. ONLY APPLICABLE CONDITIONS OF 
APPROVAL ARE CHECKED. THE APPLICANT SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE COMPLETION OF ALL 
APPLICABLE CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL PRIOR TO FINAL MAP OR PARCEL MAP APPROVAL, ISSUANCE OF 
PERMITS AND/OR OCCUPANCY CLEARANCE, AS SPECIFIED IN THIS REPORT. 

 
1. PRIOR TO FINAL MAP OR PARCEL MAP APPROVAL, APPLICANT SHALL: Check When  

Complete 

 
 

 
1.01 

 
Dedicate to the City of Ontario, the right-of-way, described below: 
 
____________ feet on _______________________________________________________________ 
 
Property line corner ‘cut-back’ required at the intersection of __________________________________ 
and___________________________________________. 

 
 

 1.02 Dedicate to the City of Ontario, the following easement(s):  ___________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

 1.03 Restrict vehicular access to the site as follows:   ________________________________  

 1.04 Vacate the following street(s) and/or easement(s): 
a. All interfering on-site easements shall be quitclaimed, vacated, and/or submit non-interference 

letter from affected owner/utility company. 

 

 1.05 Submit a copy of a recorded private reciprocal use agreement or easement. The agreement or 
easement shall ensure, at a minimum, common ingress and egress and joint maintenance of all 
common access areas and drive aisles. 

 

 1.06 Provide (original document) Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs) as applicable to the 
project and as approved by the City Attorney and the Engineering and Planning Departments, ready for 
recordation with the County of San Bernardino. The CC&Rs shall provide for, but not be limited to, 
common ingress and egress, joint maintenance responsibility for all common access improvements, 
common facilities, parking areas, utilities, median and landscaping improvements and drive 
approaches, in addition to maintenance requirements established in the Water Quality Management 
Plan (WQMP), as applicable to the project. The CC&Rs shall also address the maintenance and repair 
responsibility for public improvements/utilities (sewer, water, storm drain, recycled water, etc.) located 
within open space/easements. In the event of any maintenance or repair of these facilities, the City 
shall only restore disturbed areas to current City Standards.                                                                                                                                                 

 

 1.07 For all development occurring south of the Pomona Freeway (60-Freeway) and within the specified 
boundary limits (per Boundary Map found at http://tceplumecleanup.com/), the property 
developer/owner is made aware of the South Archibald Trichloroethylene (TCE) Plume “Disclosure 
Letter”.  Property owner may wish to provide this Letter as part of the Real Estate Transfer Disclosure 
requirements under California Civil Code Section 1102 et seq.  This may include notifications in the 
Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs) or other documents related to property transfer and 
disclosures.  Additional information on the plume is available from the Santa Ana Regional Water 
Quality Control Board at http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile_report?global_id=T10000004658. 

 

 1.08 File an application for Reapportionment of Assessment, together with payment of a reapportionment 
processing fee, for each existing assessment district listed below. Contact the Financial Services 
Department at (909) 395-2124 regarding this requirement. 
         

(1) ___________________________________ 
 

        (2)  ___________________________________      

 

 1.09 Prepare a fully executed Subdivision Agreement (on City approved format and forms) with 
accompanying security as required, or complete all public improvements. 

 

Item B - 28 of 48

http://tceplumecleanup.com/
http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile_report?global_id=T10000004658


Project File No. PDEV21-044 
Project Engineer: David Zurita 
DAB Date: May 15, 2023 

Last Revised 4/27/2023            Page 3 of 14  

 1.10 Provide a monument bond (i.e. cash deposit) in an amount calculated by the City’s approved cost 
estimate spreadsheet (available for download on the City’s website: www.ontarioca.gov) or as specified 
in writing by the applicant’s Registered Engineer or Licensed Land Surveyor of Record and approved 
by the City Engineer, whichever is greater. 

 

 1.11 Provide a preliminary title report current to within 30 days.  

 1.12 File an application, together with an initial deposit (if required), to establish a Community Facilities 
District (CFD) pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities District Act of 1982.  The application 
and fee shall be submitted a minimum of four (4) months prior to final subdivision map approval, and 
the CFD shall be established prior to final subdivision map approval or issuance of building permits, 
whichever occurs first. The CFD shall be established upon the subject property to provide funding for 
various City services.  An annual special tax shall be levied upon each parcel or lot in an amount to be 
determined. The special tax will be collected along with annual property taxes.  The City shall be the 
sole lead agency in the formation of any CFD.  Contact Investment and Revenue Resources at (909) 
395-2341 to initiate the CFD application process. 

 

 
 
 
 

1.13 Ontario Ranch Developments:  
 

 1) Provide evidence of final cancellation of Williamson Act contracts associated with this tract, prior 
to approval of any final subdivision map. Cancellation of contracts shall have been approved by the City 
Council. 
 

  2) Provide evidence of sufficient storm water capacity availability equivalents (Certificate of Storm 
Water Treatment Equivalents).  
 

  3) Provide evidence of sufficient water availability equivalents (Certificate of Net MDD Availability). 

 
 
 
 

 1.14 Other conditions: ____________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

 
2. PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF ANY PERMITS,  APPLICANT SHALL:  

 A. GENERAL  
(Permits includes Grading, Building, Demolition and Encroachment)  

 

 
 

 
2.01 

 
Record Parcel Map/Tract Map No. __________ pursuant to the Subdivision Map Act and in accordance 
with the City of Ontario Municipal Code.  
 

 

 2.02 Submit a PDF of the recorded Parcel Map 20087 to the City Engineer’s office. 
 

 

 2.03 Note that the subject parcel is a recognized parcel in the City of Ontario per LLA96-015 (1997-
092217).  
 

 

 2.04 Note that the subject parcel is an ‘unrecognized’ parcel in the City of Ontario and shall require a 
Certificate of Compliance to be processed unless a deed is provided confirming the existence of the 
parcel prior to the date of March 4, 1972.  
 

 

 2.05 Apply for a: 
 

 Certificate of Compliance with a Record of Survey; 
 

 Lot Line Adjustment (Record a Conforming Deed with the County of San Bernardino within six 
months of the recordation of the Lot Line Adjustment to conform the new LLA legal description. Submit 
a copy of the recorded Conforming Deed to the Engineering Department.); 
 

 Make a Dedication of Easement. 

 

Item B - 29 of 48

http://www.ontarioca.gov/


Project File No. PDEV21-044 
Project Engineer: David Zurita 
DAB Date: May 15, 2023 

Last Revised 4/27/2023            Page 4 of 14  

 2.06 Provide (original document) Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&R’s), as applicable to the 
project, and as approved by the City Attorney and the Engineering and Planning Departments, ready 
for recordation with the County of San Bernardino. The CC&R’s shall provide for, but not be limited to, 
common ingress and egress, joint maintenance of all common access improvements, common 
facilities, parking areas, utilities and drive approaches in addition to maintenance requirements 
established in the Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP), as applicable to the project.  
 

 

 2.07 For all development occurring south of the Pomona Freeway (60-Freeway) and within the specified 
boundary limits (per Boundary Map found at http://tceplumecleanup.com/), the property 
developer/owner is made aware of the South Archibald Trichloroethylene (TCE) Plume “Disclosure 
Letter”.  Property owner may wish to provide this Letter as part of the Real Estate Transfer Disclosure 
requirements under California Civil Code Section 1102 et seq.  This may include notifications in the 
Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs) or other documents related to property transfer and 
disclosures.  Additional information on the plume is available from the Santa Ana Regional Water 
Quality Control Board at http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile_report?global_id=T10000004658. 
 

 

 2.08 Submit a soils/geology report.  
 

 

 2.09 Other Agency Permit/Approval:  Submit a copy of the approved permit and/or other form of approval of 
the project from the following agency or agencies:   
 

       State of California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) 

       San Bernardino County Road Department (SBCRD) 

         San Bernardino County Flood Control District (SBCFCD) 

         Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) 

         Cucamonga Valley Water District (CVWD) for sewer/water service 

         United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) 

         California Department of Fish & Game 

         Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) 

         Other: ______________________________________    

 

 2.10 Dedicate to the City of Ontario the right-of-way described below: 
____________  feet on _______________________________________________________________ 
 
Property line corner ‘cut-back’ required at the intersection of __________________________________ 
and __________________________________________.  
 

 

 2.11 Dedicate to the City of Ontario the following easement(s):____________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________  
 

 

 2.12 Vacate the following street(s) and/or easement(s): 
A. All interfering on-site easements shall be quitclaimed, vacated, and/or submit non-

interference letter from affected owner/utility company. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.13 Ontario Ranch Developments: 

 1) Submit a copy of the permit from the San Bernardino County Health Department to the 
Engineering Department and the Ontario Municipal Utilities Company (OMUC) for the 
destruction/abandonment of the on-site water well. The well shall be destroyed/abandoned in 
accordance with the San Bernardino County Health Department guidelines.  

 2)  Make a formal request to the City of Ontario Engineering Department for the proposed temporary 
use of an existing agricultural water well for purposes other than agriculture, such as grading, dust 
control, etc. Upon approval, the Applicant shall enter into an agreement with the City of Ontario and pay 
any applicable fees as set forth by said agreement. 

 3) Design proposed retaining walls to retain up to a maximum of three (3) feet of earth. In no case 
shall a wall exceed an overall height of nine (9) feet (i.e. maximum 6-foot high wall on top of a 

 

Item B - 30 of 48

http://tceplumecleanup.com/
http://geotracker.waterboards.ca.gov/profile_report?global_id=T10000004658


Project File No. PDEV21-044 
Project Engineer: David Zurita 
DAB Date: May 15, 2023 

Last Revised 4/27/2023            Page 5 of 14  

maximum 3-foot high retaining wall. 

 2.14 Submit a security deposit to the Engineering Department to guarantee construction of the 
public improvements required herein valued at 100% of the approved construction cost 
estimate. Security deposit shall be in accordance with the City of Ontario Municipal Code. 
Security deposit will be eligible for release, in accordance with City procedure, upon completion 
and acceptance of said public improvements. 
 

 

 2.15 The applicant/developer shall submit all necessary survey documents prepared by a Licensed 
Surveyor registered in the State of California detailing all existing survey monuments in and 
around the project site.  These documents are to be reviewed and approved by the City Survey 
Office. 
 

 

 2.16 Pay all Development Impact Fees (DIF) to the Building Department.   Storm Drain Development 
Impact Fee, approximately $21,746.34 shall be paid to the Building Department. Final fee shall 
be determined based on the approved site plan and the DIF rate at the time of payment. 
 

 

 2.17 Other conditions: 
A. The project is subject to all the requirements and conditions of approval from the 

Ontario Mills Specific Plan and PMTT18-010 (PM-20087) as amended. For any 
conditions of approval that conflict, these conditions shall supersede those conflicting 
conditions.  

B. Submit a Final Utilities System Map (USM) as part of the precise grading plan submittal 
that meets all the City’s USM requirements. These requirements include to show and 
label all existing and proposed utilities (including al appurtenances such as backflow 
devices, DCDAs, etc.), sizes, points of connection and any easements. The final utility 
design shall comply with all Division of Drinking Water (CCR 64572) Separation 
Requirements. See Utility Systems Map (USM) Requirements document for details.  

 

 

Item B - 31 of 48



Project File No. PDEV21-044 
Project Engineer: David Zurita 
DAB Date: May 15, 2023 

Last Revised 4/27/2023            Page 6 of 14  

 
 B.  PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS 

(See attached Exhibit ‘A’ for plan check submittal requirements.) 
 

 
 

 
2.18 

 
Design and construct full public improvements in accordance with the City of Ontario Municipal 
Code, current City standards and specifications, master plans and the adopted specific plan for 
the area, if any. These public improvements shall include, but not be limited to, the following 
(checked boxes): 
  

Improvement  Fourth Street 
Ontario Mills 

Drive 
Street 3 Street  4 

 
Curb and Gutter 

 

 New; ___ ft. 

       from C/L              

 Replace 

       damaged 

 Remove 

       and replace    
 

 New; ___ ft. 

       from C/L              

 Replace 

       damaged 

 Remove 

       and replace  
     
 

 New; ___ ft. 

       from C/L              

 Replace 

       damaged 

 Remove 

       and replace 
    
   

 New; ___ ft. 

       from C/L              

 Replace 

       damaged 

 Remove 

       and replace 
   

 
AC Pavement 

 

 Replacement 

 Widen ____ 

additional feet 
along frontage, 
including pavm’t 
transitions 

 Replacement 

 Widen ____ 

additional feet 
along frontage, 
including pavm’t 
transitions 

 Replacement 

 Widen ____ 

additional feet 
along frontage, 
including pavm’t 
transitions  
   

 Replacement 

 Widen ____ 

additional feet 
along frontage, 
including pavm’t 
transitions  
   

 
PCC Pavement 

(Truck Route 
Only) 

 New 

 Modify  

       existing 

 

 New 

 Modify  

       existing 

 

 New 

 Modify 

       existing 

 

 New 

 Modify 

       existing 

 
 

Drive Approach 
 

 New 

 Remove  

       and replace 

 New 

 Remove  

      and replace 

 New 

 Remove  

       and replace 

 New 

 Remove  

       and replace 

 
Sidewalk 

 

 New 

 Remove  

       and replace  

 New 

 Remove 

       and replace 
 

 New 

 Remove 

       and replace 
 

 New 

 Remove 

       and replace 

 
ADA Access 

Ramp 
 

 New 

 Remove 

       and replace 
 

 New 

 Remove 

       and replace 

 New 

 Remove 

       and replace  

 New 

 Remove 

       and replace  

 
Parkway 

 

 Trees 

 Landscaping     

      (w/irrigation) 

 Trees 

 Landscaping     

      (w/irrigation) 
 

 Trees 

 Landscaping     

      (w/irrigation) 

 Trees 

 Landscaping     

(w/irrigation) 
 

 
Raised 

Landscaped 
Median 

 

 New 

 Remove 

       and replace   
 

 New 

 Remove 

       and replace   
  
      

 New 

 Remove 

       and replace   
  
    
      

 New 

 Remove  

       and replace   
     

 
Fire Hydrant 

 Upgrade 

 Relocation 

 

 Upgrade 

 Relocation 

 

 New / 

Upgrade 

 Relocation 

 

 New / 

Upgrade 

 Relocation 

 

 

Item B - 32 of 48



Project File No. PDEV21-044 
Project Engineer: David Zurita 
DAB Date: May 15, 2023 

Last Revised 4/27/2023            Page 7 of 14  

 
Sewer 

(see Sec. 2.C) 

 Main 

 Lateral 

 

 Main 

 Lateral 

 Main 

 Lateral  

 

 Main 

 Lateral 

 
Water 

(see Sec. 2.D) 

 Main 

 Service 

 

 Main 

 Service  

 Main 

 Service  

 Main 

 Service 

 
Recycled  Water 
(see Sec. 2.E) 

 Main 

 Service 

 Main 

 Service 

 Main 

 Service 

 Main 

 Service 

 
Traffic Signal 

System 
(see Sec. 2.F) 

 

 New 

 Modify 

       existing 
 

 New 

 Modify 

       existing 
 

 New 

 Modify  

       existing 
 

 New 

 Modify  

       existing 
 

 
Traffic Signing 
and Striping 

(see Sec. 2.F) 

 New 

 Modify  

       existing 
 

 New 

 Modify  

       existing 
 

 New 

 Modify 

       existing 
 

 New 

 Modify  

       existing 
 

Street Light  
(see Sec. 2.F) 

 Upgrade 

 Relocation 

 

 Upgrade 

 Relocation 

 

 New / 

Upgrade 

 Relocation 

 

 New / 

Upgrade 

 Relocation 

 

Bus Stop Pad or 
Turn-out 

(see Sec. 2.F) 

 New 

 Modify  

       existing 

 

 New 

 Modify  

       existing 

 

 New 

 Modify 

       existing 

 

 New 

 Modify 

       existing 

 

Storm Drain 
(see Sec. 2G) 

 Main 

 Lateral 

 

 Main 

 Lateral 

 

 Main 

 Lateral 

 

 Main 

 Lateral 

 

Fiber Optics 
(see Sec. 2K) 

 Conduit / 

Appurtenances 

 Conduit / 

Appurtenances 

 Conduit / 

Appurtenances 
 Conduit / 

Appurtenances 

 
Overhead Utilities 

 
 

 Underground 

 Relocate 

 Underground 

 Relocate 

 Underground 

 Relocate 

 Underground 

 Relocate 

 
Removal of 

Improvements 
 

______________ 
______________ 
______________ 
 

______________ 
______________ 
______________ 

______________ 
______________ 
______________ 

______________ 
______________ 
______________ 

 
Other 

Improvements 
 

______________ 
______________ 
______________ 

______________ 
______________ 
______________ 

______________    
______________ 
______________ 

______________ 
______________ 
______________ 

 
Specific notes for improvements listed in item no. 2.17, above:______________________________ 
 

 2.19 Construct a 2" asphalt concrete (AC) grind and overlay on the following street(s):  
A. Ontario Mills Drive along the entire frontage from curb to median. 

 

 

 2.20 Reconstruction of the full pavement structural section, per City of Ontario Standard Drawing number 
1011, may be required based on the existing pavement condition and final street design.  Minimum 
limits of reconstruction shall be along property frontage, from street centerline to curb/gutter. 

 

Item B - 33 of 48



Project File No. PDEV21-044 
Project Engineer: David Zurita 
DAB Date: May 15, 2023 

Last Revised 4/27/2023            Page 8 of 14  

 2.21 Make arrangements with the Cucamonga Valley Water District (CVWD) to provide    water service  
 sewer service to the site. This property is within the area served by the CVWD and Applicant shall 

provide documentation to the City verifying that all required CVWD fees have been paid. 
 

 

 2.22 Overhead utilities shall be under-grounded, in accordance with Title 7 of the City’s Municipal Code 
(Ordinance No. 2804 and 2892).  Developer may pay in-lieu fee, approximately _________, for 
undergrounding of utilities in accordance with Section 7-7.302.e of the City’s Municipal Code. 
 

 

 2.23 Other conditions: ____________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

 C.  SEWER   

 2.24 An 8-inch sewer main is available for connection by this project in Ontario Mills Drive. 
(Ref: Sewer Drawing Number: S10505) 

 

 2.25 Design and construct a sewer main extension. A sewer main is not available for direct connection. The 
closest main is approximately _____ feet away. 

 

 2.26 Submit documentation that shows expected peak loading values for modeling the impact of the subject 
project to the existing sewer system. The project site is within a deficient public sewer system area. 
Applicant shall be responsible for all costs associated with the preparation of the model. Based on the 
results of the analysis, Applicant may be required to mitigate the project impact to the deficient public 
sewer system, including, but not limited to, upgrading of existing sewer main(s), construction of new 
sewer main(s) or diversion of sewer discharge to another sewer. 

 

 2.27 Other conditions:  
A. Sewer Lateral:  

a. Each building and its onsite private sewer system shall discharge wastewater to the 
City of Ontario Public Sanitary Sewer System through a Public Sewer Lateral per 
Standard #2003. 

b. The existing sewer main being connected to shall be CCTV Inspected between the 
upstream and downstream manholes of the connection once before and once after the 
Sewer Lateral connections is made and any damage to the sewer main resulting from 
the installation of the Sewer Lateral shall be repaired to meet City Standards and 
Requirements prior to placing the Sewer Lateral in service.  

 
B. Onsite Sewer:   

a. Onsite sewer shall be privately owned and maintained.  
b. Private Onsite Sewer and Storm Water Quality Improvements: No storm water quality 

improvements (infiltration, detention, retention, bioswale, etc) shall be installed above 
or within 5 feet of any Private Onsite Sewer pipes.  

c. The plumbing of the onsite sewer system shall be designed and constructed in such a 
way that:  

i. The building’s domestic wastewater leaves the building separate from the 
building’s food service wastewater.  

ii. A grease interceptor and sample box shall be installed for each food service 
establishment discharging a greasy wastestream as required by Ontario 
Municipal Code Section 6-7.404. 

 
C. Wastewater Discharge Requirements: For Wastewater Sewer Discharge, the project site 

shall meet the following requirements: 
a. Each food service establishment occupant shall individually apply for a Wastewater 

Discharge Permit for their Establishment, and shall comply will all the requirements of 
the Wastewater Discharge Permit (https://www.ontarioca.gov/sites/default/files/Ontario-
Files/Municipal-Utilities-Company/fse_wastewater_permit_application_fillable.pdf 
).Requirements of the Wastewater Discharge Permit may include, but not limited to:  
Installation of wastewater pretreatment equipment, such as grease interceptors. 
 

 

 D.  WATER   

 2.28 A 12-inch water main is available for connection by this project in Ontario Mills Drive.  
(Ref: Water Drawing Number: W10693) 

 

Item B - 34 of 48

https://www.ontarioca.gov/sites/default/files/Ontario-Files/Municipal-Utilities-Company/fse_wastewater_permit_application_fillable.pdf
https://www.ontarioca.gov/sites/default/files/Ontario-Files/Municipal-Utilities-Company/fse_wastewater_permit_application_fillable.pdf


Project File No. PDEV21-044 
Project Engineer: David Zurita 
DAB Date: May 15, 2023 

Last Revised 4/27/2023            Page 9 of 14  

 2.29 Design and construct a water main extension. A water main is not available for direct connection. The 
closest main is approximately _____ feet away. 

 

 2.30 Other conditions: 

A. Potable Water Service:  

a. Domestic Service: The building shall have its own domestic water service and 
meter with backflow prevention device connected to the City of Ontario Public 
Potable Water System. 

b. Irrigation Service: For landscape irrigation uses that are not served by Recycled 
Water, the landscape irrigation uses shall have a separate irrigation water service 
and meter with backflow prevention device connected to the City of Ontario Public 
Potable Water System separate from the domestic water uses and the onsite 
plumbing systems shall be also separate from each other. 

c. Fire Water Service: For onsite private Fire System uses: 

i. Where the domestic water service and meters connected to the Public 
Potable Water System that serves any use that is more than one (1) single 
family detached residential unit, or any non-residential use: if an onsite 
private fire system is required, then a separate Fire Service with Double 
Check Detector Assembly (DCDA) per City Standard #4208 connected to 
the City of Ontario Public Potable Water System is required, to serve the 
onsite private fire system. The onsite fire system and onsite domestic 
water plumbing system shall be separate. 

 

B. Fire Hydrants: Fire hydrants fronting the Project shall be upgraded to meet current City 
standards. 

 

 

 E.  RECYCLED WATER   

 2.31 A ______inch recycled water main is available for connection by this project in ___________________.   
(Ref: Recycled Water Drawing Number:__________) 

 

 2.32 Design and construct an on-site recycled water system for this project. A recycled water main does 
exist in the vicinity of this project.  

 

 2.33 Design and construct an on-site recycled water ready system for this project. A recycled water main 
does not currently exist in the vicinity of this project, but is planned for the near future. If Applicant 
would like to connect to this recycled water main when it becomes available, the cost for the connection 
shall be borne solely by the Applicant.   

 

 2.34 Submit two (2) hard copies and one (1) electronic copy, in PDF format, of the Engineering Report (ER), 
for the use of recycled water, to the OMUC for review and subsequent submittal to the California 
Department of Public Health (CDPH) for final approval. 
 
Note: The OMUC and the CDPH review and approval process will be approximately three (3) months.  
Contact the Ontario Municipal Utilities Company at (909) 395-2647 regarding this requirement. 

 

 2.35 Other conditions: ____________________________________________________________________  

 F.  TRAFFIC / TRANSPORTATION   

 2.36 Submit a focused traffic impact study, prepared and signed by a Traffic/Civil Engineer registered in the 
State of California. The study shall address, but not be limited to, the following issues as required by 
the City Engineer:   
 1.  On-site and off-site circulation  
 2.  Traffic level of service (LOS) at ‘build-out’ and future years  
 3.  Impact at specific intersections as selected by the City Engineer 

 

 2.37 New traffic signal installations shall be added to Southern California Edison (SCE) customer account 
number # 2-20-044-3877. 

 

 2.38 Other conditions:  
A. The Applicant/Developer shall provide reciprocal access between the project site and all 

other adjacent properties. 
 
B. The Applicant/Developer shall be responsible to replace any existing street light fixtures 

along its project frontage of 4th Street and Ontario Mills Drive with the current City approved 

 

Item B - 35 of 48



Project File No. PDEV21-044 
Project Engineer: David Zurita 
DAB Date: May 15, 2023 

Last Revised 4/27/2023            Page 10 of 14  

LED equivalent fixture per the Traffic and Transportation Design Guidelines. 
 
C. Property frontage along 4th Street and Ontario Mills Drive shall be signed “No Stopping 

Anytime”. 
 

 G.  DRAINAGE / HYDROLOGY   

 2.39 An 18-inch storm drain main is available to accept flows from this project in Ontario Mills Drive.  
(Ref: Storm Drain Drawing Number: D10514) 
 

 

 2.40 Submit a hydrology study and drainage analysis, prepared and signed by a Civil Engineer registered in 
the State of California. The study shall be prepared in accordance with the San Bernardino County 
Hydrology Manual and City of Ontario standards and guidelines. Additional drainage facilities, 
including, but not limited to, improvements beyond the project frontage, may be required to be designed 
and constructed, by Applicant, as a result of the findings of this study. 
 

 

 2.41 An adequate drainage facility to accept additional runoff from the site does not currently exist 
downstream of the project.  Design and construct a storm water detention facility on the project site. 
100-year post-development peak flow shall be attenuated such that it does not exceed 80% of pre-
development peak flows, in accordance with the approved hydrology study and improvement plans. 
 

 

 2.42 Submit a copy of a recorded private drainage easement or drainage acceptance agreement to 
the Engineering Department for the acceptance of any increase to volume and/or concentration 
of historical drainage flows onto adjacent property, prior to approval of the grading plan for the 
project; unless it’s covered in the CC&R’s.  
 

 

 2.43 Comply with the City of Ontario Flood Damage Prevention Ordinance (Ordinance No. 2409). The 
project site or a portion of the project site is within the Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA) as indicated 
on the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) and is subject to flooding during a 100-year frequency storm. 
The site plan shall be subject to the provisions of the National Flood Insurance Program. 
 

 

 2.44 Other conditions: ___________________________________________________________________ 
 

 

 H.  STORM WATER QUALITY / NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE AND ELIMINATION SYSTEM 
(NPDES)  

  

 2.45 401 Water Quality Certification/404 Permit – Submit a copy of any applicable 401 Certification or 404 
Permit for the subject project to the City project engineer. Development that will affect any body of 
surface water (i.e. lake, creek, open drainage channel, etc.) may require a 401 Water Quality 
Certification from the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, Santa Ana Region (RWQCB) 
and a 404 Permit from the United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE). The groups of water 
bodies classified in these requirements are perennial (flow year round) and ephemeral (flow during rain 
conditions, only) and include, but are not limited to, direct connections into San Bernardino County 
Flood Control District (SBCFCD) channels.  
If a 401 Certification and/or a 404 Permit are not required, a letter confirming this from Applicant’s 
engineer shall be submitted. 
Contact information: USACE (Los Angeles District) (213) 452-3414; RWQCB  (951) 782-4130. 
 

 
 

 
 
 

2.46 Submit a Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP). This plan shall be approved by the 
Engineering Department prior to approval of any grading plan. The WQMP shall be submitted, 
utilizing the current San Bernardino County Stormwater Program template, available at: 
http://www.sbcounty.gov/dpw/land/npdes.asp.   
 

 

 

 2.46 
 

Other conditions: ____________________________________________________________________   
 

 
 

2.47 Design and construct a Connector Pipe Trash Screen or equivalent Trash Treatment Control Device, 
per catch basin located within or accepting flows tributary of a Priority Land Use (PLU) area that meets 
the Full Capture System definition and specifications, and is on the Certified List of the State Water 
Resources Control Board. The device shall be adequately sized per catch basin and include a deflector 
screen with vector control access for abatement application, vertical support bars, and removable 
component to facilitate maintenance and cleaning. 
 

 
 

 2.48 
 

Other conditions:  
A. Activities resulting in land disturbance of one acre or more is required to obtain 

coverage under the Construction General Permit (CGP). The owner is the legally 

 

Item B - 36 of 48

http://www.sbcounty.gov/dpw/land/npdes.asp


Project File No. PDEV21-044 
Project Engineer: David Zurita 
DAB Date: May 15, 2023 

Last Revised 4/27/2023            Page 11 of 14  

responsible person (LRP) of the site and shall have a Stormwater Pollution Prevention 
Plan (SWPPP) developed and submitted through the SMARTS website at 
https://smarts.waterboards.ca.gov/smarts/faces/SwSmartsLogin.xhtml  
 

 J.  SPECIAL DISTRICTS   

 2.49 File an application, together with an initial deposit (if required), to establish a Community Facilities 
District (CFD) pursuant to the Mello-Roos Community Facilities District Act of 1982.  The application 
and fee shall be submitted a minimum of four (4) months prior to final subdivision map approval, and 
the CFD shall be established prior to final subdivision map approval or issuance of building permits, 
whichever occurs first. The CFD shall be established upon the subject property to provide funding for 
various City services.  An annual special tax shall be levied upon each parcel or lot in an amount to be 
determined. The special tax will be collected along with annual property taxes.  The City shall be the 
sole lead agency in the formation of any CFD.  Contact Investment and Revenue Resources at (909) 
395-2341 to initiate the CFD application process. 

 

 2.50 Other conditions: ___________________________________________________________________  

 K.  FIBER OPTIC   

 2.51 A fiber optic line is available for connection by this project in Fourth Street.   
(Ref: Fiber Optic Drawing Number: O10158) 
 

 

 
 

2.52 Building entrance conduits shall start from the closest OntarioNet hand hole constructed along 
the project frontage in the ROW and shall terminate in the main telecommunications room for 
each building.  Conduit infrastructure shall interconnect with the primary and/or secondary 
backbone fiber optic conduit system at the nearest OntarioNet hand hole. Generally located in 
Fourth Street, see Fiber Optic Exhibit herein. 
 

 

 
 

2.53 Refer to the City’s Fiber Optic Master Plan for design and layout guidelines.  Contact the 
Broadband Operations Department at (909) 395-2000, regarding this requirement. 

 

 

3. PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF A CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY, APPLICANT SHALL:   

 3.01 Set new monuments in place of any monuments that have been damaged or destroyed as a 
result of construction of the subject project. Monuments shall be set in accordance with City of 
Ontario standards and to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3.02 
 
 
 

Complete all requirements for recycled water usage. 
 

  1)  Procure from the OMUC a copy of the letter of confirmation from the California Department of 
Public Health (CDPH) that the Engineering Report (ER) has been reviewed and the subject site is 
approved for the use of recycled water. 
 

  2)  Obtain clearance from the OMUC confirming completion of recycled water improvements and 
passing of shutdown tests and cross connection inspection, upon availability/usage of recycled water. 
 

  3)  Complete education training of on-site personnel in the use of recycled water, in accordance 
with the ER, upon availability/usage of recycled water. 
 

 

 3.03 The applicant/developer shall submit all final survey documents prepared by a Licensed Surveyor 
registered in the State of California detailing all survey monuments that have been preserved, revised, 
adjusted or set along with any maps, corner records or Records of Survey needed to comply with these 
Conditions of Approvals and the latest edition of the California Professional Land Survey Act.  These 
documents are to be reviewed and approved by the City Survey Office. 

 

 

 3.04 Ontario Ranch Projects:  For developments located at an intersection of any two collector or arterial 
streets, the applicant/developer shall set a monument if one does not already exist at that intersection.  
Contact the City Survey office for information on reference benchmarks, acceptable methodology and 
required submittals. 
 

 

 3.05 Confirm payment of all Development Impact Fees (DIF) to the Building Department. 
 

 

Item B - 37 of 48

https://smarts.waterboards.ca.gov/smarts/faces/SwSmartsLogin.xhtml


Project File No. PDEV21-044 
Project Engineer: David Zurita 
DAB Date: May 15, 2023 

Last Revised 4/27/2023            Page 12 of 14  

 3.06 Submit electronic copies (PDF and Auto CAD format) of all approved improvement plans, studies 
and reports (i.e. hydrology, traffic, WQMP, etc.). 
 

 

4. PRIOR TO FINAL ACCEPTANCE, APPLICANT SHALL:   

 4.01 Complete all Conditions of Approval listed under Sections 1-3 above.  

 4.02 Pay all outstanding fees pursuant to the City of Ontario Municipal Code, including but not 
limited to, plan check fees, inspection fees and Development Impact Fees. 

 

 4.03 The applicant/developer shall submit a written request for the City’s final acceptance of the 
project addressed to the City Project Engineer. The request shall include a completed 
Acceptance and Bond Release Checklist, state that all Conditions of Approval have been 
completed and shall be signed by the applicant/developer. Upon receipt of the request, review 
of the request shall be a minimum of 10 business days. Conditions of Approval that are deemed 
incomplete by the City will cause delays in the acceptance process. 
 

 

 4.04 Submit record drawings (PDF) for all public improvements identified within Section 2 of these 
Conditions of Approval. 

 

Item B - 38 of 48



Project File No. PDEV21-044 
Project Engineer: David Zurita 
DAB Date: May 15, 2023 

Last Revised 4/27/2023            Page 13 of 14  

EXHIBIT ‘A’ 
 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
First Plan Check Submittal Checklist 

 

Project Number: PDEV21-044 
 

The following items are required to be included with the first plan check submittal: 
 

1.    A copy of this check list  
 

2.    Payment of fee for Plan Checking  
 

3.    One (1) copy of Engineering Cost Estimate (on City form) with engineer’s wet signature and stamp. 
 

4.    One (1) copy of project Conditions of Approval 
 

5.    Include a PDF (electronic submittal) of each required improvement plan at every submittal.  
 

6.    Two (2) sets of Potable and Recycled Water demand calculations (include water demand calculations 
showing low, average and peak water demand in GPM for the proposed development and proposed water 
meter size).    

 
7.    Three (3) sets of Public Street improvement plan with street cross-sections 

 
8.    Four (4) sets of Public Water improvement plan (include water demand calculations showing low, average 

and peak water demand in GPM for the proposed development and proposed water meter size)    
 

9.    Four (4) sets of Recycled Water improvement plan (include recycled water demand calculations showing 
low, average and peak water demand in GPM for the proposed development and proposed water meter size 
and an exhibit showing the limits of areas being irrigated by each recycled water meter) 

 
10.    Four (4) sets of Public Sewer improvement plan 

 
11.    Five (5) sets of Public Storm Drain improvement plan 

 
12.    Three (3) sets of Public Street Light improvement plan 

 
13.    Three (3) sets of Signing and Striping improvement plan 

 
14.    Three (3) sets of Fiber Optic plan (include Auto CAD electronic submittal) 

 
15.    Three (3) sets of HOA Landscape improvement plans. Show corner sight line distance per engineering 

standard drawing 1309.  
 

16.   Five (5) sets of CFD Landscape improvement plans. Show corner sight line distance per engineering 
standard drawing 1309.  
 

17.    Three (3) sets of Dry Utility plans within public right-of-way (at a minimum the plans must show 
existing and ultimate right-of-way, curb and gutter, proposed utility location including centerline 
dimensions, wall to wall clearances between proposed utility and adjacent public line, street work 
repaired per Standard Drawing No. 1306.  Include Auto CAD electronic submittal) 

 
18.    Three (3) sets of Traffic Signal improvement plan and One (1) copy of Traffic Signal Specifications with 

modified Special Provisions.  Please contact the Traffic Division at (909) 395-2154 to obtain Traffic Signal 
Specifications.  

 
19.    Two (2) copies of Water Quality Management Plan (WQMP), including one (1) copy of the approved 

Preliminary WQMP (PWQMP). 
 

Item B - 39 of 48



Project File No. PDEV21-044 
Project Engineer: David Zurita 
DAB Date: May 15, 2023 

Last Revised 4/27/2023            Page 14 of 14  

20.    One (1) copy of Hydrology/Drainage study 
 

21.    One (1) copy of Soils/Geology report 
 

22.    Payment for Final Map/Parcel Map processing fee  
 

23.    Three (3) copies of Final Map/Parcel Map 
 

24.    One (1) copy of approved Tentative Map 
 

25.    One (1) copy of Preliminary Title Report (current within 30 days) 
 

26.    One (1) copy of Traverse Closure Calculations 

 
27.    One (1) set of supporting documents and maps (legible copies): referenced improvement plans (full 

size), referenced record final maps/parcel maps (full size, 18”x26”), Assessor’s Parcel map (full size, 
11”x17”), recorded documents such as deeds, lot line adjustments, easements, etc. 

 
28.    Two (2) copies of Engineering Report and an electronic file (include PDF format electronic submittal) for 

recycled water use 
 

29.    Other: 
a. Covenants, Conditions, and Restrictions (CC&R’s) or agreements showing reciprocal access 

and cross lot drainage agreement between project site and all other adjacent properties  
 

 

Item B - 40 of 48



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
 
TO:  Lorena Mejia, Senior Planner 
  Planning Department 
 
FROM:  Paul Ehrman, Sr. Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal 
  Fire Department 
 
DATE:  December 20, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: PDEV21-044 - A Development Plan to construct one (1) commercial 

buildings totaling 4,290 square feet on 0.79 acres of land located at the 
southwest corner of 4th Street and Ontario Mills Drive, within the 
Regional Commercial land use district of the Ontario Mills Specific Plan 
(APN(s): 0238-014-05). Related File(s): PMTT18-010.  

 
 

   The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.  

   Standard Conditions of Approval apply, as stated below. 

 
 
SITE AND BUILDING FEATURES: 
 

A. 2019 CBC Type of Construction:  Type VB 
 

B. Type of Roof Materials:  Ordinary 
 

C. Ground Floor Area(s):  4,290 Sq. Ft.  
 

D. Number of Stories:  1 
 

E. Total Square Footage:  4,290 Sq. Ft.  
 

F. 2019 CBC Occupancy Classification(s):  A2 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Item B - 41 of 48



 
2 of 4  

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 
 

1.0 GENERAL 
 

  1.1 The following are the Ontario Fire Department (“Fire Department”) requirements for this 
development project, based on the current edition of the California Fire Code (CFC), and the 
current versions of the Fire Prevention Standards (“Standards.”) It is recommended that the 
applicant or developer transmit a copy of these requirements to the on-site contractor(s) and 
that all questions or concerns be directed to the Bureau of Fire Prevention, at (909) 395-2029. 
For copies of Ontario Fire Department Standards please access the City of Ontario web site at 
www.ontarioca.gov/Fire/Prevention.  

 
  1.2 These Fire Department conditions of approval are to be included on any and all construction 

drawings.  
 
2.0 FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS 
 

  2.1 Fire Department vehicle access roadways shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all portions of 
the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved. Roadways 
shall be paved with an all-weather surface and shall be a minimum of twenty-four (24) ft. wide. 
See Standard #B-004.   

 
  2.2 In order to allow for adequate turning radius for emergency fire apparatus, all turns shall be 

designed to meet the minimum twenty five feet (25’) inside and forty-five feet (45’) outside 
turning radius per Standard #B-005.   

 
  2.3 Fire Department access roadways that exceed one hundred and fifty feet (150’) in length shall 

have an approved turn-around per Standard #B-002.   
 

  2.4 Access drive aisles which cross property lines shall be provided with CC&Rs, access 
easements, or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected 
properties, and copies of same shall be provided at the time of building plan check. 

 
  2.5 "No Parking-Fire Lane" signs and /or red painted curbs with lettering are required to be instal-

led in interior access roadways, in locations where vehicle parking would obstruct the 
minimum clear width requirement. Installation shall be per Standard #B-001.  

 
  2.7 Any time PRIOR to on-site combustible construction and/or storage, a minimum twenty-four 

(24) ft. wide circulating all weather access roads shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all 
portions of the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved by 
fire department and other emergency services. 
 

3.0 WATER SUPPLY 
 

  3.1 The required fire flow per Fire Department standards, based on the 2019 California Fire Code, 
Appendix B, is 1500  gallons per minute (g.p.m.) for 2 hours at a minimum of 20 pounds per 
square inch (p.s.i.) residual operating pressure. 

 

Item B - 42 of 48

http://www.ontarioca.gov/Fire/Prevention


 
3 of 4  

 

  3.2 Off-site (public) fire hydrants are required to be installed on all frontage streets, at a minimum 
spacing of three hundred foot (300’) apart, per Engineering Department specifications.  
 

  3.4 The water supply, including water mains and fire hydrants, shall be tested and approved by the 
Engineering Department and Fire Department prior to combustible construction to assure 
availability and reliability for firefighting purposes.  

 
4.0 FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS 
 

  4.2 Underground fire mains which cross property lines shall be provided with CC & R, easements, 
or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected properties, and 
copies of same shall be provided at the time of fire department plan check. The shared use of 
private fire mains or fire pumps is allowable only between immediately adjacent properties 
and shall not cross any public street. 

 
  4.3 An automatic fire sprinkler system is required.  The system design shall be in accordance with 

National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 13. All new fire sprinkler systems, 
except those in single family dwellings, which contain twenty (20) sprinkler heads or more 
shall be monitored by an approved listed supervising station. An application along with 
detailed plans shall be submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire 
Department, prior to any work being done.   

 
  4.4 Wood frame buildings that are to be sprinkled shall have these systems in service (but not 

necessarily finaled) before the building is enclosed.  
 

  4.5 Fire Department Connections (FDC) shall be located on the address side of the building within 
one hundred fifty feet (150’) of a public fire hydrant on the same side of the street.  Provide 
identification for all fire sprinkler control valves and fire department connections per Standard 
#D-007. Raised curbs adjacent to Fire Department connection(s) shall be painted red, five feet 
either side, per City standards. 

 
  4.6 A fire alarm system is required.  The system design shall be in accordance with National Fire 

Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 72. An application along with detailed plans shall be 
submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire Department, prior to any work 
being done.  

 
  4.7 Portable fire extinguishers are required to be installed prior to occupancy per Standard #C-001.  

Please contact the Fire Prevention Bureau to determine the exact number, type and placement 
required. 

 
  4.8 A fixed fire extinguishing system is required for the protection of hood, duct, plenum and 

cooking surfaces.  This system must comply with National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 
Standards 17A and 96. An application with detailed plans shall be submitted, and a 
construction permit shall be issued by the Fire Department, prior to any work being done.  
   
 
 
 

Item B - 43 of 48



 
4 of 4  

 

5.0 BUILDING CONSTRUCTION FEATURES 
 

  5.1 The developer/general contractor is to be responsible for reasonable periodic cleanup of the 
development during construction to avoid hazardous accumulations of combustible trash and 
debris both on and off the site. 

 
  5.2 Approved numbers or addresses shall be placed on all new and existing buildings in such a 

position as to be plainly visible and legible from the street or road fronting the property.  Multi-
tenant or building projects shall have addresses and/or suite numbers provided on the rear of 
the building.  Address numbers shall contrast with their background. See Section 9-1 6.06 of 
the Ontario Municipal Code and Standards #H-003 and #H-002.  

 
  5.6 Knox ® brand key-box(es) shall be installed in location(s) acceptable to the Fire Department. 

All Knox boxes shall be monitored for tamper by the building fire alarm system. See Standard 
#H-001 for specific requirements. 

 

Item B - 44 of 48



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 

TO:  Lorena Mejia, Senior Planner 

 

FROM:  Officer Tony Galban, Police Department 

 

DATE:  December 14, 2021 

 

SUBJECT: PDEV21-044 - A DEVELOPMENT PLAN TO CONSTRUCT ONE 

COMMERCIAL BUILDING TOTALING 4,290 SQUARE FEET 

LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF 4TH STREET AND 

ONTARIO MILLS DRIVE. RELATED FILE PMTT18-010. 

 

 

The “Standard Conditions of Approval” contained in Resolution No. 2017-027 apply. The 

applicant shall read and be thoroughly familiar with these conditions, including but not limited to, 

the requirements listed below. 

 

• Required lighting for all walkways, driveways, doorways, parking areas, and other areas 

used by the public shall be provided and operate on photosensor. Photometrics shall be 

provided to the Police Department. Photometrics shall include the types of fixtures 

proposed and demonstrate that such fixtures meet the vandal-resistant requirement. 

Planned landscaping shall not obstruct lighting. 

• Rooftop addresses shall be installed on the building as stated in the Standard Conditions. 

The numbers shall be at a minimum 3 feet tall and 1 foot wide, in reflective white paint on 

a flat black background, and oriented with the bottom of the numbers towards the addressed 

street. 

• The Applicant shall comply with all construction site security requirements as stated in the 

Standard Conditions. 

• The Applicant shall install a video surveillance system on the site. Cameras shall cover at 

a minimum all entry doors, all cash registers, and at least one camera shall capture any 

vehicle utilizing the drive-thru. Cameras shall be positioned to maximize the coverage of 

patrons and vehicles in these areas. Cameras shall record at least 15 frames per second and 

at a minimum of 720p of resolution. Recordings shall be stored for a minimum of 30 days 

and made available upon request to any member of the Ontario Police Department. 

• The applicant will be responsible for keeping the grounds of the business clean from debris 

and litter. 

• Graffiti abatement by the business owner/licensee, or management shall be immediate and 

on-going on the premises, but in no event shall graffiti be allowed unabated on the premises 

for more than 72 hours. Abatement shall take the form of removal or shall be 

covered/painted over with a color reasonably matching the color of the existing building, 

Item B - 45 of 48



structure, or other surface being abated.  Additionally, the business owner/licensee, or 

management shall notify the City within 24 hours at (909) 395-2626 (graffiti hotline) of 

any graffiti elsewhere on the property not under the business owner/licensee’s or 

management control so that it may be abated by the property owner and/or the City’s 

graffiti team.  

• Maintain all landscaping on property to a standard that all ground covering shrubbery and 

hedges are no taller than 2 feet (24") and the lower canopy of all trees is no lower than 6 

feet (72”). 

• Trash enclosure shall be fully secured by locks and screens/gates in order to reduce crime 

and encampment opportunities for homeless persons.  

 

 

The Applicant is invited to call Tony Galban at (909) 408-1006 regarding any questions or 

concerns. 

 

Item B - 46 of 48



CITY OF ONTARIO 
LANDSCAPE PLANNING DIVISION 

303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
Sign Off 

 10/13/2022 
Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner Date 

Reviewer’s Name:  
Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner 

Phone: 
(909) 395-2615 

 D.A.B. File No.:                                           
PDEV21-044 

Case Planner: 
Lorena Mejia 

Project Name and Location:  
Panera Bread 
SW Corner of 4th Street and Ontario Mills Drive 
Applicant/Representative: 
RSI Group, Inc./Nina Raey 
3187 – A Airway Avenue 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626 
 
 
 

 
 
Preliminary Plans (dated 09/14/2022) meet the Standard Conditions for New 
Development and have been approved considering that the following conditions 
below be met upon submittal of the landscape construction documents. 

 
 
Preliminary Plans (dated) have not been approved. Corrections noted below are 
required before Preliminary Landscape Plan approval. 

A RESPONSE SHEET IS REQUIRED WITH RESUBMITTAL OR PLANS WILL BE RETURNED AS 
INCOMPLETE. 
Landscape construction plans with plan check number may be emailed to: 
landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 

       PREVIOUS COMMENTS – 01/07/2022 
Civil/ Site Plans 

1. Replace modular wetland; consider storm chambers, drywells, etc. 
2. Before permit issuance, stormwater infiltration devices located in landscape areas shall be 

reviewed and plans approved by the Landscape Planning Division. Any stormwater devices 
in parkway areas shall not displace street trees. 

3. Show transformers set back 5’ from paving all sides. Coordinate with landscape plans. 
4. Show backflow devices set back 4’ from paving all sides. Locate on level grade 
5. Locate utilities including light standards, fire hydrants, water, drain, and sewer lines to not 

conflict with required tree locations—coordinate civil plans with landscape plans. 
6. Note for compaction to be no greater than 85% at landscape areas. All finished grades at 1 

½” below finished surfaces. Slopes to be maximum 3:1. 
7. Dimension all planters to have a minimum 5’ wide inside dimension. 
8. Dimension, show and call out for step-outs at parking spaces adjacent to planters; a 12” 

wide monolithic concrete curb, DG paving or pavers with edging.  
Landscape Plans 

9. During plan check, coordinate with Ontario Municipal Utilities Company (OMUC) to submit 
irrigation plans for recycled water systems to omucwaterquality@ontarioca.gov. OMUC shall 
review and approve irrigation systems utilizing recycled water prior to final landscape 
approval. Submit an electronic approval letter or memo from OMUC with resubmittal of the 
landscape package. 

10. Show backflow devices with 36” high strappy leaf shrub screening and trash enclosures and 
transformers, a 4’-5’ high evergreen hedge screening. Do not encircle utility, show as 

Item B - 47 of 48

mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov
mailto:omucwaterquality@ontarioca.gov


masses and duplicate masses in other locations at regular intervals. 
11. Dimension all planters to have a minimum 5’ wide inside dimension with 6” curbs and 12” 

wide curbs where parking spaces are adjacent to planters. 
12. Show 8’ diameter of mulch only at new trees, 12’ min. at existing trees. Detail irrigation 

dripline outside of mulched root zone. 
13. Designer or developer to provide agronomical soil testing and include a report on landscape 

construction plans. A new report is required for phased projects for each phase or a 
minimum of every six homes in residential developments.  

14. Landscape construction plans shall meet the requirements of the Landscape Development 
Guidelines. See http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards 

15. After a project’s entitlement approval, the applicant shall pay all applicable fees for 
landscape plan check and inspections at a rate established by resolution of the City Council. 
Landscape construction plans with building permit number for plan check may be emailed 
to: landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 

 

Item B - 48 of 48

http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards
mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov


Page 1 of 23 

DECISION NO.: [insert #] 

FILE NO.: PMTT22-020 (TPM 20587) 

DESCRIPTION: A Tentative Parcel Map (TPM 20587) to subdivide 0.423 acres of land 
into 2 parcels located at 121 East Sixth Street within the LDR-5 (Low-Density Residential - 
2.1 to 5.0 du/ac) zoning district. APN: 1047-241-05; submitted by Samson Mulugeta. 
Planning Commission action is required. 

PART 1: BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 

SAMSON MULUGETA, (hereinafter referred to as "Applicant") has filed an 
application requesting approval of a Tentative Parcel Map, File No. PMTT22-020, as 
described in the subject of this Decision (hereinafter referred to as "Application" or 
"Project"). 

PROJECT BACKGROUND: The Project site is comprised of 0.423 acres of land located at 
121 East Sixth Street, which is depicted in Exhibit A: Project Location Map, attached. The 
existing rectangular lot is developed with a 2,460 square-foot single-family residence built 
in 1950 (est.). The single-family one-story structure resembles the Mid-Century-California 
Ranch style, is L-shaped in plan with a design that includes a low gabled composition 
shingle roof, boxed eaves, two brick chimneys, and vertical wood and batten style siding 
and concrete block walls. The front elevation has fixed windows and the rear elevation 
has large floor-to-ceiling wooden windows. A 487-square-foot carport is attached to the 
west side of the house. 

Between 1950 and 1956, the previous property owner extended the house to the west, 
converted the previous one-car garage to living space, added a second fireplace and 
chimney, and built a 487-square-foot two-car carport. In 1963, the kitchen was expanded 
to the south connecting it to the residence's main entrance and enclosed a portion of 
the front elevation with a concrete block wall. The structure is no longer occupied and 
the Applicant is proposing to restore the house to its previous condition and reestablish 
its architectural integrity (Exhibit D—Conceptual Elevations, attached). 

A Cultural Resource Assessment was prepared (Charles J. Fisher, August 29, 2022) and 
concluded that the existing single-family residence is not architecturally significant and is 
not significantly associated with important events or people related to the founding or 
development of the region. In addition, the single-family residence does not embody the 

303 East B Street, Ontario, California 91764 Phone: 909.395.2036 / Fax: 909.395.2420 

DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD 
DECISION 

May 15, 2023 

Item C - 1 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT22-020 (TPM 20587) 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 2 of 23 

distinctive characteristics of a type, period, region, or construction method, represent the 
work of an important creative individual, or possess high artistic values.  
 
The Project site is located within LDR-5 (Low-Density Residential—2.1 to 5.0 du/ac) zoning 
district and is bounded by one- and two-story single-family residences on all sides. The 
existing land uses, Policy Plan (general plan) and zoning designations, and specific plan 
land designations on and surrounding the project site are as follows: 
 

 Existing Land Use Policy Plan 
Land Use Designation 

Zoning 
Designation 

Specific Plan 
Land Use Designation 

Site: Single-Family 
Residence Low-Density Residential 

LDR-5 (Low-Density 
Residential—2.1 to 5.0 
du/ac) zoning district 

Not Applicable 

North: Single-Family 
Residence Low-Density Residential 

LDR-5 (Low-Density 
Residential—2.1 to 5.0 
du/ac) zoning district 

Not Applicable 

South: Single-Family 
Residence Low-Density Residential 

LDR-5 (Low-Density 
Residential—2.1 to 5.0 
du/ac) zoning district 

Not Applicable 

East: Single-Family 
Residence Low-Density Residential 

LDR-5 (Low-Density 
Residential—2.1 to 5.0 
du/ac) zoning district 

Not Applicable 

West: Single-Family 
Residence Low-Density Residential 

LDR-5 (Low-Density 
Residential—2.1 to 5.0 
du/ac) zoning district 

Not Applicable 

 
Tentative Parcel Map (TPM 20587) — The proposed Tentative Parcel Map will subdivide 
the Project site into 2 rectangular-shaped lots (see Exhibit B: Tentative Parcel Map 20587). 
The proposed parcel sizes range from 7,950 to 10,400 square feet. The lot widths range 
from 60 to 79.16 feet, and both proposed parcels have a depth of 132.50 feet. The 
Development Code requires lots established by the Traditional Single-Family Subdivision 
Standards to have a minimum lot size of 7,200 square feet, minimum lot width of 60 feet, 
and minimum lot depth of 75 feet. The Project meets the minimum lot area and dimension 
requirements of the LDR-5 (Low-Density Residential—2.1 to 5.0 du/ac) zoning district and 
is physically suitable for the existing and proposed density of development. 
 
Approval of the Tentative Parcel Map will facilitate the future construction of a new two-
story single-family dwelling unit on lot 1. The infill project will front onto Sixth Street (Exhibit 
C—Conceptual Site Plan, attached) and will be conditioned to be compatible with the 
existing neighborhood. Lot 1 will have an attached garage with a side-on configuration 
to be compatible with the existing neighborhood. Lot 1 will provide vehicle access from 
Sixth Street and will utilize its existing driveway. The Applicant will be required to construct 
a new driveway for Lot 2 to meet City standards. The proposed driveway will lead to a 
newly constructed two-car garage located in the rear of the lot. 
 

Item C - 2 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT22-020 (TPM 20587) 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 3 of 23 

Conditions of Approval have been imposed on the Project to ensure future development 
of the lots will be designed to safeguard the existing neighborhood. The development of 
the lots will require separate approval through the City's Building Plan Check process.  
 
PUBLIC NOTIFICATION: Public notification is not required, as the Development Advisory 
Board is acting in its capacity as an advisory body to the Planning Commission. Public 
notification is required prior to the Planning Commission hearing on the Project. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE: As of the preparation of this Decision, Planning Department staff has 
not received any written or verbal communications from the owners of properties 
surrounding the project site or from the public in general, regarding the subject 
application. 
 
AGENCY/DEPARTMENT REVIEWS: Each City agency/department has been provided the 
opportunity to review and comment on the subject application and recommend 
conditions of approval to be imposed upon the application. At the time of the Decision 
preparation, recommended conditions of approval were provided and are included 
with this Decision. 
 
AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLAN (ALUCP) COMPLIANCE: The California State 
Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires that an Airport Land 
Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with 
the policies set forth in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. 
 
On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario approved and adopted the ONT 
ALUCP, establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport, which 
encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, 
and limits future land uses and development within the Airport Influence Area, as they 
relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future 
airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the Development Advisory 
Board has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the 
Application and supporting documentation against the ONT ALUCP compatibility 
factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ONT ALUCP Table 2-2) and Safety Zones (ONT ALUCP 
Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ONT ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ONT ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ONT ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight 
Notification Zones (ONT ALUCP Map 2-5). As a result, the Development Advisory Board, 
therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with 
the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ONT ALUCP. 
 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE ONTARIO PLAN: The proposed Project is consistent with the 
principles, goals and policies contained within the Vision, Governance, Policy Plan 
(general plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan ("TOP"). More 
specifically, the goals and policies of TOP that are furthered by the proposed Project are 
as follows: 

Item C - 3 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT22-020 (TPM 20587) 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 4 of 23 

(1) City Council Goals. 
 Invest in the Growth and Evolution of the City's Economy 
 Maintain the Current High Level of Public Safety 
 Operate in a Businesslike Manner 
 Pursue City's Goals and Objectives by Working with Other Governmental 

Agencies 
 Focus Resources in Ontario's Commercial and Residential Neighborhoods 
 Invest in the City's Infrastructure (Water, Streets, Sewers, Parks, Storm Drains 

and Public Facilities) 
 
(2) Vision. 
 

Distinctive Development: 
 

 Commercial and Residential Development 
 

 Development quality that is broadly recognized as distinctive and not 
exclusively tied to the general suburban character typical of much of Southern California. 

 
(3) Governance. 
 

Decision Making: 
 

 Goal G1: Sustained decision-making that consistently moves Ontario towards 
its Vision by using The Ontario Plan as a framework for assessing choices. 
 

 G 1-2. Long-term Benefit. We require decisions to demonstrate and 
document how they add value to the community and support the Ontario Vision. 
 
(4) Policy Plan (General Plan) 

 
Land Use Element: 

 
 Goal LU-1 Balance: A community that has a spectrum of housing types and 

price ranges that match the jobs in the City and that make it possible for people to live 
and work in Ontario and maintain a quality of life. 
 

 LU-1.1 Strategic Growth. We concentrate growth in strategic locations that 
help create place and identity, maximize available and planned infrastructure, foster the 
development of transit, and support the expansion of the active and multimodal 
transportation networks throughout the City. 
 

 LU-1.6 Complete Community. We incorporate a variety of land uses and 
building types in our land use planning efforts that result in a complete community where 
residents at all stages of life, employers, workers, and visitors have a wide spectrum of 
choices of where they can live, work, shop and recreate within Ontario. 

Item C - 4 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT22-020 (TPM 20587) 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 5 of 23 

 Goal LU-2 Compatibility: Compatibility between a wide range of uses and a 
resultant urban patterns and forms. 
 

 LU-2.6 Infrastructure Compatibility. We require infrastructure to be 
aesthetically pleasing and in context with the community character. 
 

Housing Element: 
 

 Goal H-2 Housing Supply & Diversity: Diversity of types of quality housing that 
are affordable to a range of household income levels, accommodate changing 
demographics, and support and reinforce the economic sustainability of Ontario. 
 

 H-2.5 Housing Design. We require architectural excellence through 
adherence to City design guidelines, thoughtful site planning, environmentally 
sustainable practices, and other best practices. 
 

Community Economics Element: 
 

 Goal CE-1 Complete Community: A complete community that provides for all 
incomes and stages of life. 
 

 CE-1.6 Diversity of Housing. We collaborate with residents, housing 
providers, and the development community to provide housing opportunities for every 
stage of life; we plan for a variety of housing types and price points to encourage the 
development of housing supportive of our efforts to attract business in growing sectors of 
the community while being respectful of existing viable uses. 
 

 Goal CE-2 Placemaking: A City of distinctive neighborhoods, districts, corridors, 
and centers where people choose to be. 
 

 CE-2.1 Development Projects. We require new development and 
redevelopment to create unique, high-quality places that add value to the community. 
 

 CE-2.2 Development Review. We require those proposing new 
development and redevelopment to demonstrate how their projects will create 
appropriately unique, functional, and sustainable places that will compete well with their 
competition within the region. 
 

 CE-2.4 Protection of Investment. We require that new development and 
redevelopment protect existing investment by providing architecture and urban design 
of equal or greater quality. 
 

 CE-2.5 Private Maintenance. We require adequate maintenance, upkeep, 
and investment in private property because proper maintenance on private property 
protects property values. 
 

Item C - 5 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT22-020 (TPM 20587) 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 6 of 23 

Safety Element: 
 

 Goal S-1 Seismic & Geologic Hazards: Minimized risk of injury, loss of life, 
property damage, and economic and social disruption caused by earthquake-induced 
and other geologic hazards. 
 

 S-1.1 Implementation of Regulations and Standards. We require that all new 
habitable structures be designed in accordance with the most recent California Building 
Code adopted by the City, including provisions regarding lateral forces and grading. 
 

Community Design Element: 
 

 Goal CD-1 Image & Identity: A dynamic, progressive city containing distinct 
and complete places that foster a positive sense of identity and belonging among 
residents, visitors, and businesses. 
 

 CD-1.1 City Identity. We take actions that are consistent with the City being 
a leading urban center in Southern California while recognizing, enhancing, and 
preserving the character of our existing viable neighborhoods. 
 

 CD-1.3 Existing Neighborhoods. We require the existing character of viable 
residential and non-residential neighborhoods be preserved, protected, and enhanced. 
 

 Goal CD-2 Design Quality: A high level of design quality resulting in 
neighborhoods, public spaces, parks, and streetscapes that are attractive, safe, 
functional, human-scale, and distinct. 
 

 CD-2.1 Quality Building Design and Architecture. We encourage all 
development projects to convey visual interest and character through: 
 

• Building volume, massing, and height to provide context-appropriate 
scale and proportion; 

• A true architectural style which is carried out in plan, section, and 
elevation through all aspects of the building and site design and appropriate for its 
setting; and 

• Exterior building materials that are articulated, high quality, durable, 
and appropriate for the architectural style. 
 

 CD-2.2 Neighborhood Design. We create distinct residential neighborhoods 
that promote a sense of community and identity by emphasizing access, connectivity, 
livability, and social interaction through such elements as: 
 

• A pattern of smaller, walkable blocks that promote activity, safety, and 
access to nearby amenities and services; 

• Varied parcel sizes and lot configurations to accommodate a diversity 
of housing types; 

Item C - 6 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT22-020 (TPM 20587) 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 7 of 23 

• Traffic calming measures to slow traffic and promote walkability while 
maintaining acceptable traffic flows and emergency evacuation access; 

• Floor plans that encourage views onto the street and de-emphasize the 
visual and physical dominance of garages (introducing the front porch as the "outdoor 
living room"), as appropriate; and 

• Landscaped parkways, with sidewalks separated from the curb and 
designed to maximize safety, comfort, and aesthetics for all users. 
 

 CD-2.7 Sustainability. We collaborate with the development community to 
design and build neighborhoods, streetscapes, sites, outdoor spaces, landscaping, and 
buildings to reduce energy demand through solar orientation, maximum use of natural 
daylight, passive solar and natural ventilation, building form, mechanical and structural 
systems, building materials, and construction techniques. 
 

 CD-2.8 Safe Design. We incorporate defensible space design into new and 
existing developments to ensure the maximum safe travel and visibility on pathways, 
corridors, and open space and at building entrances and parking areas by avoiding 
physically and visually isolated spaces, maintaining visibility and accessibility, and using 
lighting. 
 

 CD-2.9 Landscape Design. We encourage durable, sustainable, and 
drought-tolerant landscaping materials and designs that enhance the aesthetics of 
structures, create and define public and private spaces, and provide shade and 
environmental benefits. 
 

 CD-2.10 Parking Areas. We require all development, including single-family 
residential, to minimize the visual impact of surface, structured, and garage parking areas 
visible from the public realm in an aesthetically pleasing, safe and environmentally 
sensitive manner. Examples include: 
 

• Surface parking: Shade trees, pervious surfaces, urban run-off capture 
and infiltration, and pedestrian paths to guide users through the parking field; 

• Structured parking: facade articulation, screening, appropriate lighting, 
and landscaping; and 

• Garage parking: providing access to single-family residential garages 
through alley access, recessing garages from the frontage to emphasize front doors or 
active living spaces. 
 

 CD-2.11 Entry Statements. We encourage the inclusion of amenities, 
signage, and landscaping at the entry to neighborhoods, commercial centers, mixed 
use areas, industrial developments, and public places that reinforce them as uniquely 
identifiable places. 
 

 CD-2.13 Entitlement Process. We work collaboratively with all stakeholders 
to ensure a high degree of certainty in the efficient review and timely processing of all 
development plans and permits. 

Item C - 7 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT22-020 (TPM 20587) 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 8 of 23 

 CD-3.3 Complete and Connected Network. We require that pedestrian, 
vehicular, and bicycle circulation on both public and private property be coordinated 
to provide connections internally and externally to adjacent neighborhoods and 
properties (existing and planned) through a system of local roads and trails that promote 
walking and biking to nearby destinations (including existing and planned parks, 
commercial areas, and transit stops) and are designed to maximize safety, comfort, and 
aesthetics. 
 

 CD-3.4 Context-Aware and Appropriate Design. We require appropriate 
building and site design that complements existing development, respects the intent and 
identity of the Place Type, and provides appropriate transitions and connections 
between adjacent uses to ensure compatibility of scale, maintain an appropriate level 
of privacy for each use, and minimize potential conflicts. 
 

 CD-3.5 Active Frontages. We create lively pedestrian streetscapes by 
requiring primary building, business, and residential entrances, outdoor dining, and 
storefronts be located on ground floors adjacent to sidewalks or public spaces and 
designed to maximize safety, comfort, aesthetics, and the intended functionality (as 
defined by the Place Type). 
 

 CD-3.6 Managed Infrastructure. We collaborate with developers and 
property owners to facilitate development that realizes the envisioned character and 
functionality of the Place Type through the use of green and shared infrastructure within 
each Place Type. 
 

 Goal CD-5 Protection of Investment: A sustained level of maintenance and 
improvement of properties, buildings, and infrastructure that protects the property values 
and encourages additional public and private investments. 
 

 CD-5.1 Maintenance of Buildings and Property. We require all public and 
privately-owned buildings and property (including trails and easements) to be properly 
and consistently maintained. 
 

 CD-5.2 Maintenance of Infrastructure. We require the continual 
maintenance of infrastructure. 
 
HOUSING ELEMENT COMPLIANCE: The Project is consistent with the Housing Element of the 
Policy Plan (general plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not one 
of the properties in the Housing Element Sites contained in Tables B-1 and B-2 (Housing 
Element Sites Inventory) of the Housing Element Technical Report. 
 
 

PART 2: RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to a categorical exemption 
(listed in CEQA Guidelines Article 19, commencing with Section 15300) and the 

Item C - 8 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT22-020 (TPM 20587) 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 9 of 23 

application of that categorical exemption is not barred by one of the exceptions set forth 
in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the 
Development Advisory Board (hereinafter referred to as "DAB") the responsibility and 
authority to review and make recommendation to the Planning Commission on the 
subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the 
opportunity to review and comment on the Application, and no comments were 
received opposing the proposed development; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element 
of the Policy Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as 
prescribed in Government Code Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that 
development projects must be consistent with the Housing Element, if upon consideration 
of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and policies of the 
Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport, which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, 
and Los Angeles Counties, and is subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and 
criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
(hereinafter referred to as "ONT ALUCP"), which applies only to jurisdictions within San 
Bernardino County, and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight 
impacts of current and future airport activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) 
prescribes the manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing 
procedures to be followed, and all such notifications and procedures have been 
completed; and 
 

WHEREAS, on May 15, 2023, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing 
on the Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 
 

PART 3: THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED AND DECIDED by the 
Development Advisory Board of the City of Ontario as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending 
body for the Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained 
in the administrative record for the Project, including all written and oral evidence 

Item C - 9 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT22-020 (TPM 20587) 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 10 of 23 

provided during the comment period. Based upon the facts and information contained 
in the administrative record, including all written and oral evidence presented to the DAB, 
the DAB finds as follows: 
 
(1) The Project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Section 15315 (Class 15: Minor Land 
Divisions) of the CEQA Guidelines, which consists of  division of property in urbanized areas 
zoned for residential, commercial, or industrial use into four or fewer parcels when the 
division is in conformance with the General Plan and zoning, no variance or exceptions 
are required, all services and access to the proposed parcels to local standards are 
available, the parcel was not involved in a division of a larger parcel within 2 years, and 
the parcel does not have an average slope greater than 20 percent; and 
 
(2) The application of the categorical exemption is not barred by one of the 
exceptions set forth in CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2; and 
 
(3) The determination of CEQA exemption reflects the independent judgment of the 
DAB. 
 

SECTION 2: Housing Element Compliance. Pursuant to the requirements of 
California Government Code Chapter 3, Article 10.6, commencing with Section 65580, 
as the recommending body for the Project, the DAB finds that based on the facts and 
information contained in the Application and supporting documentation, at the time of 
Project implementation, the Project is consistent with the Housing Element of the Policy 
Plan (General Plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the Project site is not one of the 
properties in the Housing Element Sites contained in Tables B-1 and B-2 (Housing Element 
Sites Inventory) of the Housing Element Technical Report. 
 

SECTION 3: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial 
evidence presented to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the 
facts and information set forth in Parts I (Background and Analysis) and II (Recitals), 
above, and the determinations set forth in Sections 1 and 2, above, the DAB hereby 
concludes as follows: 
 
(1) The proposed Tentative Tract/Parcel Map is consistent with the goals, policies, 
plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan, and applicable area and specific plans, and planned 
unit developments. The proposed Tentative Tract/Parcel Map is located within the Low-
Density Residential land use district of the Policy Plan Land Use Map, and the LDR-5 (Low 
Density Residential—2.1 to 5.0 du/ac) zoning district. The proposed subdivision is 
consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General 
Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, as the Project will 
contribute to providing "a spectrum of housing types and price ranges that match the 
jobs in the City, and that make it possible for people to live and work in Ontario and 
maintain a quality of life" (Goal LU-1). Furthermore, the Project will promote the City's 
policy to "incorporate a variety of land uses and building types in our land use planning 

Item C - 10 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT22-020 (TPM 20587) 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 11 of 23 

efforts that result in a complete community where residents at all stages of life, employers, 
workers, and visitors have a wide spectrum of choices of where they can live, work, shop, 
and recreate within Ontario" (Policy LU-1.6 Complete Community). 
 
(2) The design or improvement of the proposed Tentative Tract/Parcel Map is 
consistent with the goals, policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General 
Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan, and applicable specific 
plans and planned unit developments. The proposed Tentative Tract/Parcel Map is 
located within the Low-Density Residential land use district of the Policy Plan Land Use 
Map, and the LDR-5 (Low Density Residential—2.1 to 5.0 du/ac) zoning district. The 
proposed design or improvement of the subdivision is consistent with the goals, policies, 
plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities 
components of The Ontario Plan, as the Project will contribute to providing "[a] high level 
of design quality resulting in neighborhoods, commercial areas, public spaces, parks, and 
streetscapes that are attractive, safe, functional, human-scale, and distinct" (Goal CD-
2). Furthermore, the Project will promote the City's policy to "create distinct residential 
neighborhoods that promote a sense of community and identity by emphasizing access, 
connectivity, livability, and social interaction through such elements as:  
 
 A pattern of smaller, walkable blocks that promote activity, safety, and access to 

nearby amenities and services; 
 Varied parcel sizes and lot configurations to accommodate a diversity of housing 

types; 
 Floor plans that encourage views onto the street and de-emphasize the visual and 

physical dominance of garages (introducing the front porch as the "outdoor living 
room"), as appropriate; and 
 Landscaped parkways, with sidewalks separated from the curb and designed to 

maximize safety, comfort, and aesthetics for all users." (Policy CD-2.2 Neighborhood 
Design). 
 
(3) The site is physically suitable for the type of development proposed. The Project 
site meets the minimum lot area and dimensions of the LDR-5 (Low Density Residential—
2.1 to 5.0 du/ac) zoning district and is physically suitable for the type of residential 
development proposed in terms of zoning, land use and development activity proposed, 
and existing and proposed site conditions. 
 
(4) The site is physically suitable for the density/intensity of development proposed. 
The Project site is proposed for residential development at a density of 2.1 -5.0 DUs/acre. 
The Project site meets the minimum lot area and dimensions of the LDR-5 (Low Density 
Residential—2.1 to 5.0 du/ac) zoning district and is physically suitable for this proposed 
density/ intensity of development. 
 
(5) The design of the subdivision or the proposed improvements thereon, are not likely 
to cause substantial environmental damage, or substantially and avoidably injure fish or 
wildlife, or their habitat. The Project site is not located in an area that has been identified 
as containing species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or special status species in 

Item C - 11 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT22-020 (TPM 20587) 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 12 of 23 

local or regional plans, policies or regulations or by the California Department of Fish and 
Wildlife or the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, nor does the site contain any riparian habitat 
or other sensitive natural community, and no wetland habitat is present on site; therefore, 
the design of the subdivision, or improvements proposed thereon, are not likely to cause 
substantial environmental damage, or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife, or 
their habitat. 
 
(6) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, are not likely 
to cause serious public health problems. The design of the proposed subdivision, and the 
infrastructure improvements existing or proposed on the Project site, are not likely to 
cause serious public health problems, as the Project is not anticipated to involve the 
transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials during either construction or Project 
implementation, include the use of hazardous materials or volatile fuels, nor are there any 
known stationary commercial or industrial land uses within close proximity to the subject 
site that use/store hazardous materials to the extent that they would pose a significant 
hazard to visitors or occupants to the Project site. 
 
(7) The design of the subdivision, or the type of improvements thereon, will not conflict 
with easements acquired by the public at large for access through, or use of property 
within, the proposed subdivision. The proposed subdivision has provided for all necessary 
public easements and dedications for access through, or use of property within, the 
proposed subdivision. Furthermore, all such public easements and dedications have 
been designed pursuant to: (a) the requirements of the Policy Plan component of The 
Ontario Plan and applicable area plans; (b) applicable specific plans or planned unit 
developments; (c) applicable provisions of the City of Ontario Development Code; (d) 
applicable master plans and design guidelines of the City; and (e) applicable Standard 
Drawings of the City. 
 

SECTION 4: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and 
conclusions set forth in Sections 1 through 3, above, the DAB hereby recommends the 
Planning Commission APPROVES the Application subject to each and every condition set 
forth in the Conditions of Approval included as Attachment A of this Decision and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 5: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify, 
and hold harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any 
claim, action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or 
employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this approval. The City of Ontario shall 
promptly notify the Applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of 
Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 6: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute 
the record of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the 
City of Ontario City Hall, 303 East "B" Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for 
these records is the City Clerk of the City of Ontario. The records are available for 
inspection by any interested person, upon request. 

Item C - 12 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT22-020 (TPM 20587) 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 13 of 23 

 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - 

 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of May 2023. 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Board Chairman 
 

 

Item C - 13 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT22-020 (TPM 20587) 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 14 of 23 

 
Exhibit A: PROJECT LOCATION MAP 

 

Item C - 14 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT22-020 (TPM 20587) 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 15 of 23 

Exhibit B: TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP (TPM 20587) 

 

Item C - 15 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT22-020 (TPM 20587) 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 16 of 23 

Exhibit C: CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN 
 

 
 

Sixth Street 

LOT 1 LOT 2 

Item C - 16 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT22-020 (TPM 20587) 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 17 of 23 

Exhibit D: CONCEPTUAL ELEVATIONS 
 

 
Figure 1: Conceptual Elevation for Lot 1 (Street View) 

 

Item C - 17 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT22-020 (TPM 20587) 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 18 of 23 

 

 
Figure 2: Conceptual Elevation for Lot 1 (Northeast View) 

 
 
 

Item C - 18 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT22-020 (TPM 20587) 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 19 of 23 

 
 

 
Figure 3: Conceptual Elevation for Lot 2 (Street View) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item C - 19 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT22-020 (TPM 20587) 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 20 of 23 

 
 

Figure 4: Conceptual Elevation for Lot 2 (Northeast Elevation) 

Item C - 20 of 43



Page 21 of 23 
 

Exhibit E: SITE PHOTOS 
 
 

 

View from 6th Street (Street 
View) 

 

View of Main Entrance 

Item C - 21 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT22-020 (TPM 20587) 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 22 of 23 

 

View of the front façade 
(Northeastern view) 

 

Rear View of Property 

Item C - 22 of 43



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PMTT22-020 (TPM 20587) 
May 15, 2023 
 

Page 23 of 23 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A: Conditions of Approval 
 

(Conditions of Approval follow this page) 
 

Item C - 23 of 43



 

Page 1 of 5 

303 East B Street, Ontario, California 91764 Phone: 909.395.2036 / Fax: 909.395.2420 

LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 
Date Prepared: 5/15/2023 
 
File No: PMTT22-020 
 
Project Description: A Tentative Parcel Map (TPM 20587) to subdivide 0.423 acres of land into 2 
parcels located at 121 East Sixth Street within the LDR-5 (Low-Density Residential - 2.1 to 5.0 du/ac) 
zoning district APN: 1047-241-05; submitted by Samson Mulugeta.  
 
Prepared By: Robert Morales, Assistant Planner 

Phone: 909.395.2432 (direct) 
Email: Rmorales@ontarioca.gov 

 
 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable 
to the above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of 
approval listed below: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The Project shall comply with the Standard Conditions 
for New Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy 
of the Standard Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning 
Department or City Clerk/Records Management Department. 
 
2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New 
Development identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the Project shall comply with the following 
special conditions of approval: 
 

2.1 Time Limits. Tentative Parcel Map approval shall become null and void 2 years 
following the effective date of application approval, unless the final parcel map has been 
recorded, or a time extension has been approved by the Planning Commission pursuant to 
Development Code Section 2.02.025 (Time Limits and Extensions). This Permit does not supersede 
any individual time limits specified herein for performance of specific conditions or improvements. 
 

2.2 Subdivision Map. 
 

(a) The Final Parcel Map shall be in conformance with the approved Tentative 
Parcel Map on file with the City. Variations from the approved Tentative Parcel Map may be 
reviewed and approved by the Planning Department. A substantial variation from the approved 
Tentative Parcel Map may require review and approval by the Planning Commission, as 
determined by the Planning Director. 
 

(b) Tentative Parcel Map approval shall be subject to all conditions, 
requirements and recommendations from all other departments/agencies provided on the 
attached reports/memorandums. 
 

Item C - 24 of 43



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PMTT21-015 (TPM 20375) 
 
 

Page 2 of 5 

(c) Pursuant to California Government Section 66474.9, the subdivider agrees 
that it will defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Ontario or its agents, officers and 
employees from any claim, action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers 
or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul any approval of the City of Ontario, whether by 
its City Council, Planning Commission or other authorized board or officer of this subdivision, which 
action is brought within the time period provided for in Government Code Section 66499.37. The 
City of Ontario shall promptly notify the subdivider of any such claim, action or proceeding and 
the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.3 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general 
requirements: 

 
(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, 

including, but not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape 
and irrigation, grading, utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with 
the approved entitlement plans on file with the Planning Department. 
 

(b) The Project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved 
plans on file with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved 
by the Planning Department prior to building permit issuance. 
 

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be 
included in the construction plan set for the Project, which shall be maintained on-site during 
Project construction. 
 

2.4 Landscaping.  
 

(a) The Project shall provide and continuously maintain landscaping and 
irrigation systems in compliance with the provisions of Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 
(Landscaping). 
 

(b) Comply with the conditions of approval of the Planning Department; 
Landscape Planning Division. 
 

2.5 Walls and Fences. All Project walls and fences shall comply with the requirements 
of Ontario Development Code Division 6.02 (Walls, Fences and Obstructions). 
 

2.6 Parking, Circulation and Access. 
 

(a) The Project shall comply with the applicable off-street parking, loading and 
lighting requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and 
Loading). 
 

(b) All drive approaches shall be provided with an enhanced pavement 
treatment. The enhanced paving shall extend from the back of the approach apron, into the site, 
to the first intersecting drive aisle or parking space. 

 
(c) Areas provided to meet the City’s parking requirements, including off-street 

parking and loading spaces, access drives, and maneuvering areas, shall not be used for the 

Item C - 25 of 43



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PMTT21-015 (TPM 20375) 
 
 

Page 3 of 5 

outdoor storage of materials and equipment, nor shall it be used for any other purpose than 
parking. 

 
(d) The required number of off-street parking spaces and/or loading spaces 

shall be provided at the time of site and/or building occupancy. All parking and loading spaces 
shall be maintained in good condition for the duration of the building or use. 

 
(e) Parking spaces specifically designated and conveniently located for use 

by the physically disabled shall be provided pursuant to current accessibility regulations 
contained in State law (CCR Title 24, Part 2, Chapters 2B71, and CVC Section 22507.8). 

 
(f) Bicycle parking facilities, including bicycle racks, lockers, and other secure 

facilities, shall be provided in conjunction with development projects pursuant to current 
regulations contained in CALGreen (CAC Title 24, Part 11). 
 

2.7 Mechanical and Rooftop Equipment. 
 

(a) All ground-mounted utility equipment and structures, such as tanks, 
transformers, HVAC equipment, and backflow prevention devices, shall be located out of view 
from a public street, or adequately screened through the use of landscaping and/or decorative 
low garden walls. 
 

2.8 Security Standards. The Project shall comply with all applicable requirements of 
Ontario Municipal Code Title 4 (Public Safety), Chapter 11 (Security Standards for Buildings). 
 

2.9 Sound Attenuation. The Project shall be constructed and operated in a manner so 
as not to exceed the maximum interior and exterior noised levels set forth in Ontario Municipal 
Code Title 5 (Public Welfare, Morals, and Conduct), Chapter 29 (Noise). 
 

2.10 Disclosure Statements. A copy of the Public Report from the Department of Real 
Estate, prepared for the subdivision pursuant to Business and Professions Code Section 11000 et 
seq., shall be provided to each prospective buyer of the residential units and shall include a 
statement to the effect that is tract is subject to noise from the Ontario International Airport and 
may be more severely impacted in the future. 
 

2.11 Environmental Requirements.  
 

(a) The proposed Project is categorically exempt from the requirements of the 
California Environmental Quality Act of 1970 (CEQA), as amended, and the Guidelines 
promulgated thereunder, pursuant to Section 15315 (Class 15, Minor Land Division) of the CEQA 
Guidelines, which consists of the division of property in urbanized areas zoned for residential, 
commercial, or industrial use into four or fewer parcels when the division is in conformance with 
the General Plan and zoning, no variances or exceptions are required, all services and access to 
the proposed parcels to local standards are available, the parcel was not involved in a division of 
a larger parcel within 2 years, and the parcel does not have an average slope greater than 20 
percent. 
 

(b) If human remains are found during Project 
grading/excavation/construction activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required 

Item C - 26 of 43



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PMTT21-015 (TPM 20375) 
 
 

Page 4 of 5 

investigation is completed by the County Coroner and Native American consultation has been 
completed (if deemed applicable). 
 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during Project 
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the 
resource is determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a 
qualified archeologist or paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other 
appropriate measures implemented. 
 

2.12 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, 
the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul 
any approval of the City of Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other 
authorized board or officer. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such 
claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.13 Additional Fees. 
 
(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of Exemption 

(“NOE”) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be paid by check, 
made payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded to the San 
Bernardino County Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable environmental 
forms/notices, pursuant to the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”). 
The filing of a NOE is voluntary; however, failure to provide said fee within the time specified will 
result in the extension of the statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit from 30 days to 
180 days. 
 

(b) After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final 
building permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the 
rate established by resolution of the City Council. 

 
2.14 Final Occupancy. The Project Architect of record will certify that construction of 

each building site and the exterior elevations of each structure shall be completed in compliance 
with the approved plans. Any deviation to approved plans shall require a resubmittal to the 
Planning Department for review and approval prior to construction. The Occupancy Release 
Request Form/Architect Certificate of Compliance shall be provided prior to final occupancy. 
After the receipt of this Certification, the Planning Department will conduct a final site and exterior 
elevations inspection. The Owner’s Representative and Contractor shall be present. 
 

2.15 Additional Requirements. 
 

(a) The future development of Lots 1 and 2 shall be designed in a manner 
compatible with the surrounding single-family residences and neighborhood. The 
Applicant/Owner shall submit Plans to the City’s Building Department for City review. 
 

(i) The Applicant shall obtain a building permit prior to any demolition, 
relocation, or construction. 

 

Item C - 27 of 43



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PMTT21-015 (TPM 20375) 
 
 

Page 5 of 5 

(b) Infill construction on Lot 1 and 2 shall be oriented towards Sixth Street, have 
a greater front yard setback than existing residence in Lot 2. Infill construction shall be setback a 
minimum of 30-feet from south property line (Sixth Street). 

 
(c) A new, 2-car garage shall be constructed on Lot 2. The garage shall be 

constructed to match the residence and shall match the residence dominant roof slope, 
horizontal wood siding and wood trim around windows and doors. 
 

(d) The Applicant shall submit Landscape and Irrigation Construction 
Documentation Plans, which affect the character or quantity of the plant material or irrigation 
system design, shall be resubmitted for approval of the revision by the Landscape Planning 
Division, prior to the commencement of the changes. 

 
(i) Landscaping shall not be installed until the Landscape and Irrigation 

Construction Documentation Plans required by Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 
(Landscaping) have been approved by the Landscape Planning Division. 
 

(e) All buildings or structures located within the setback area along the newly 
created interior property line shall be demolished or removed prior to final map recordation. 

 
(f) All new walls shall be constructed of split face block, slump stone, or 

plastered, textured, and painted to match the main structures. 
 

(g) Prior to Occupancy the Planning Department shall inspect the premises to 
ensure the Conditions of Approval have been met and that the addition has been constructed 
per the approved plans. 

Item C - 28 of 43



Item C - 29 of 43



Item C - 30 of 43



Item C - 31 of 43



Item C - 32 of 43



 
Page 1 of 3 

S:\OMUC\40000 ENGINEERING\44000 Land Development\P\2022\PMTT22-020\PMTT22-020 DPR3 (#9029) COA.docx 

 

 CITY OF ONTARIO 
 MEMORANDUM   

 

DATE: March 2, 2023 

TO: Trevor Rivero, Engineering Department 

Jeffrey Tang, Engineering Department 

CC: Robert Morales, Planning Department 

FROM: Heather Young, Utilities Engineering Division 

Christy Stevens, Utilities Engineering Division 
SUBJECT: DPR#3 - Utilities Conditions of Approval (COA) (#9029)   

PROJECT NO.: PM-20587 (PMTT22-020)  

 
BRIEF DESCRIPTION: 

A Tentative Parcel Map (TPM 20587) to subdivide 0.423 acres of land into 2 parcels located at 121 E 6th, Street 
within the LDR-5 (Low-Density - 2.1 to 5.0 du/ac) zoning district (APN: 1047-241-05).

 

OMUC UTILITIES ENGINEERING DIVISION 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: The Ontario Municipal Utilities Company (OMUC) Utilities Engineering Division 
recommends this application for approval subject to the Conditions of Approval outlined below and compliance with 
the City’s Design Development Guidelines, Specifications Design Criteria, and City Standards. The Applicant shall 
be responsible for the compliance with and the completion of all the following applicable Conditions of Approval 
prior to the following milestones and subject to compliance with City’s Design Development Guidelines, 
Specifications Design Criteria, and City Standards: 

General Conditions: 

1. Standard Conditions of Approval: Project shall comply with the requirements set forth in the Amendment to the 
Standard Conditions of Approval for New Development Projects adopted by the City Council (Resolution No. 
2017-027) on April 18, 2017, or as amended or superseded by Council Resolution; as well as project-specific 
conditions/requirements as outlined below. 

Prior to Issuance of Any Permits (Grading, Building, Demolition and Encroachment), unless other 
timeline milestones are specified by individual conditions below, the Applicant Shall:  

General Conditions (Section 2.A, Other conditions): The Applicant shall comply with the following: 
 

2. Precise Grading Plans: The precise grading plans shall include the construction of the utility improvements 
required from the conditions below. The precise grading plans shall be submitted separate from the 
architectural and plumbing plans and be reviewed under a separate building permit application/record number. 
Immediately after formally resubmitting the plan set for Plan Check to the Building Department, email flatten 
PDF copies of the plans to: utilityengplanchecks@ontarioca.gov (if files are larger than 20MB, then send a link 
to download the files). Be sure to include the Project Number (such as Tract or Parcel Map, or PDEV), Building 
Permit Number (B#########), and the Encroachment Permit Number (E#########). 

3. Note the following definitions and concepts for Public Utility Improvements and Private Utility Improvements: 
Public Improvements shall be designed per City Public Design Guidelines and City Standards and constructed 
through a City Encroachment Permit; and Private Onsite Improvements shall be designed per Building Code 
and Plumbing Code and constructed through a City Building Permit. 

a. Public Utility Improvements include the following: water main pipelines and sewer main pipelines; 
sewer laterals connecting to a Public Sewer Main up to the Cleanout (or Manhole) at PL/RoW; water 
services and connected appurtenances (Meters/Meter Boxes, Fire Hydrants, Airvacs, Blowoffs, etc.) 
connecting to a Public Water Main per City Standards; and Fire Services connecting to a Public Water 

Item C - 33 of 43

mailto:utilityengplanchecks@ontarioca.gov


 
Page 2 of 3 

S:\OMUC\40000 ENGINEERING\44000 Land Development\P\2022\PMTT22-020\PMTT22-020 DPR3 (#9029) COA.docx 

Main from the Main up to the DCDA. Public Water Improvements and Public Sewer Improvements are 
required to be designed and constructed through Public Improvement Plans with Plan View and Profile 
View per City Standards, Guidelines, and Requirements. 

b. Private Utility Improvements include the following: onsite water plumbing lines after a Public Meter, or 
after the Fire DCDA and including the DCDA; Backflow Devices and other Cross-Connection 
Prevention; onsite sewer upstream of the Public Sewer Lateral, including the Cleanout (or Manhole) at 
PL/RoW/PUE Edge; Monitoring Manholes and other Wastewater Pretreatment Facilities. Private Onsite 
Utility Improvements are required to be designed and constructed per Building and Plumbing Plans 
with: the Backflows, DCDAs, Cleanout (or Manhole) at PL/RoW/PUE Edge, and Monitoring Manholes 
being designed and constructed through a Precise Grading Plan; and, the other Pretreatment Devices 
(Grease Interceptor, Sand, Oil Interceptors, etc.) and the connections to the buildings and structures 
through a building Plumbing Plan. 

4. Public Utilities and Public Right-of-Way including Public Utility Easements (PUE): All City of Ontario Public 
Utilities shall be installed within a Public Right-of-Way (RoW), or within a Public Utility Easements (PUE), or 
within a combination of RoW and PUE. In this case, Public Utilities is referring to the mains and connected 
appurtenances of the following City of Ontario/OMUC Utilities: Public Potable Water; Public Recycled Water; 
and Public Sanitary Sewer. Public Utilities shall be subject to the Minimum RoW/PUE Area Requirements and 
PUE Restrictions: 

a. Minimum RoW Area Requirements: Public Utilities shall be installed within in existing RoW/PUE in 
alignments/locations that meet the following minimum RoW/PUE areas surrounding the Public Utilities, 
and/or additional RoW/PUE shall be dedicated/granted to the City to provide the following minimum 
RoW/PUE areas surrounding the Public Utilities: 

i. For each main, the RoW/PUE Area shall be a minimum of 10 feet wide. 
b. PUE Restrictions: The Minimum PUE Area required surrounding Public Utilities shall be subject to the 

following restrictions: 
i. The Minimum PRoW Area required surrounding Public Utilities shall not contain: 

A. Any storm water quality improvements (infiltration, detention, retention, bioswale, 
etc);  

B. Landscaping with thick or intrusive root structures, 
C. Any trees;  
D. Any private utilities, plumbing lines, private fire system, or irrigation lines; or,  
E. Any permanent structures or overhangs of permanent structures. 

ii. Minimum Separations: Within a PUE, all Department of Drinking Water (DDW) Water Main 
Separations per California Code of Regulations (CCR) §64572 shall be met for all Public 
Potable Water Mains and Services between: all Public City Utilities; Non-City Utilities; and 
Private Utilities. Additionally, the following Minimum Separations shall be met: 

A. At minimum there shall be a 4 feet horizontal separation between each utility as 
measured between the outside walls of the utility pipelines, or in the case of a Joint 
Utility Trench, between the outside edge of the Joint Utility Trench and the outside 
wall of the Utility Pipeline.  

B. Public Utility mains shall not be located behind curb or under curb & gutter and 
shall be located at minimum of 5 feet from curbface. 

 
Sanitary Sewer Conditions (Section 2.C): The Applicant shall comply with the following: 

5. Sanitary Sewer Service:  

a. Each lot and its onsite private sewer system shall discharge wastewater to the Public Sanitary Sewer 
System through a Public Sewer Lateral per Standard #2003. Each sewer lateral shall have a cleanout 
located at the back of the PUE outside of the PUE. 

b. Public Sewer Laterals and Storm Water Quality Improvements: No storm water quality improvements 
(infiltration, detention, retention, bioswale, etc) shall be installed above or within 5 feet of any Public 
Sewer Lateral. 

Potable Water Conditions (Section 2.D): The Applicant shall comply with the following: 

6. Potable Water Service:  

a. Domestic Service: Each lot shall have a its own domestic water service and meter connected to the 
Public Potable Water System. The meter shall be located a minimum of 5 feet away from wing of the 
drive approach. 

Item C - 34 of 43



 
Page 3 of 3 

S:\OMUC\40000 ENGINEERING\44000 Land Development\P\2022\PMTT22-020\PMTT22-020 DPR3 (#9029) COA.docx 

b. Relocated Services: For any existing service with appurtenances to be relocated, the service shall be 
abandoned back to the main connection and the service and appurtenances shall be installed new per 
related City Standards. 

c. Division of Drinking Water Separation Requirements: The final utility design shall comply with all 
Division of Drinking Water (CCR §64572) Separation Requirements. 

Item C - 35 of 43



Item C - 36 of 43

Cameron Chadwick
Broken Character
X symbol

Cameron Chadwick
Line

Cameron Chadwick
Broken Character
X symbol

Cameron Chadwick
Line

Cameron Chadwick
CC Blue Signature 2020
Broadband Operations     Cameron Chadwick 

Cameron Chadwick
Date blue



Page 1 of 2 

 

 CITY OF ONTARIO 
 MEMORANDUM 
 

 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW COMMENTS  
Broadband Operations Section 

 
DATE:     
 
PROJECT:  
 
LOCATION:   
 
PROJECT ENGINEER:   
 
BROADBAND PLAN CHECKER: Cameron Chadwick  -  CChadwick@ontarioca.gov    

  

              
 
A.  General Comments: 
 

1. The applicant/developer shall respond to these comments as well as the comments provided by the 

Environmental Section, Traffic & Transportation Division, Ontario Municipal Utilities Company and 

Broadband Operations and address all of them prior to the next submittal. 

 

2. The applicant/developer shall address all additional redlined comments on the plans attached. 

 

3. Provide plans in digital format (PDF) for future submittals.  

 

4. Refer to the In-tract Fiber Network Design guideline on the City's website for additional in-tract conduit 

guidelines 

B. The following items will be incorporated in the Conditions of Approval Report prior to the Development 
Advisory Board and/or Zoning Administrator Hearing upon all departments’ comments being satisfactorily 
addressed: 

 

 

1. Project shall be designed and constructed to provide access to the City's conduit and fiber optic system per 

the City's Fiber Optic Master Plan.  Building entrance conduits shall start from the closest OntarioNet hand 

hole in the Right-of-Way (ROW) and shall terminate in the main telecommunications room for each building.  

Conduit infrastructure shall interconnect with the primary and/or secondary backbone fiber optic conduit 

system at the nearest OntarioNet hand hole.  

2. Contractor is responsible for locating and connecting conduit to existing OntarioNet hand holes on adjacent 

properties within a reasonable distance.  There should be no "Gaps" in conduit between the contractor's 

development and the adjacent property. OntarioNet hand holes are typically located in the ROW at the 

extreme edge of a property. 

3. Where a joint telecom or street light street crossing is required, include (2) 2" HDPE  SDR-11 conduits or (1) 

4" schedule 80 conduit sleeve. Terminate the street crossing conduit(s) in a new HH-3/22 OntarioNet hand 

hole in the right of way 

4. The City requires a public utility easement for fiber optics on all private aisles/alley ways. 

5. Hand holes - Design and install OntarioNet fiber optic hand hole HH-FP (10x00x10), HH-1 (13x24x18), HH-2 

(17x30x24), HH-2A (24x36x30), HH-3 (30x48x36) and/or HH-4 (36x60x36) as needed.  Respectively, 

Newbasis Part # PLA100010T-00002, PCA132418-00006, PCA-173024-90116, PCA-243630-90064, PCA-

304836-90244 and PCA-366036-90146 or equivalent as specified per City Standard 1316. Conduits 

sweeping into hand holes shall enter in flush with the cut-out mouse holes aligned parallel to the bottom of 

 

Item C - 37 of 43

Cameron Chadwick
CC Blue Signature 2020
07-19-22

Cameron Chadwick
CC Blue Signature 2020
PMTT22-020

Cameron Chadwick
CC Blue Signature 2020
121 E 6th st

Cameron Chadwick
CC Blue Signature 2020
Jeff



Page 2 of 2 

 

the box and come in perpendicular to the wall of the box. Conduits shall not enter at any angle other than 

parallel.  Provide 5-foot minimum clearance from existing/proposed utilities.  All hand holes will have ¼-inch 

galvanized wire between the hand holes and the gravel it is placed on. 

6. ROW Conduit – Design and install fiber optic conduit at a minimum depth of 36-inch.  Trenching shall be per 

City Standard 1306. Install (1) 2-inch HDPE SDR-11 (Smoothwall) roll pipe (Orange) duct and (1) 2-inch 

HDPE SDR-11 (Smoothwall) roll pipe (Orange with Black Stripe) duct. Conduit(s) between ROW hand holes 

and hand holes on private property shall be 2-inch HDPE SDR-11 (Smoothwall) roll pipe (Orange) duct.  

7. Building Entrance (Single Family) – Design and install 0.75-inch HDPE SDR-11 (Smoothwall) roll pipe 

(Orange) duct from hand holes on property or hand holes in the ROW. Consult City's Fiber Team for design 

assistance. 

8. Building Entrance (Multi-family and Commercial) - From the nearest handhole to the building entrance, 

design and install fiber optic conduit at a minimum depth of 36-inches.  Trenching shall be per City Standard 

for Commercial Buildings. (1) 2-inch HDPE SDR-11 (Smoothwall) roll pipe (Orange) duct.  Install 

locate/tracer wires minimum 12AWG within conduit bank and fiber warning tape 18-inch above the 

uppermost duct 

9. Multi-family and commercial properties shall terminate conduit in an electrical room adjacent to the wall no 

less than five inches above the finished floor.  A 20" width X length 36" space shall be reserved on the 

plywood wall for OntarioNet equipment.  This space shall be labeled "OntarioNet Only".  Ontario Conduit 

shall be labeled "OntarioNet" 

10. A minimum 1.5-inch joint use telecommunications conduit with pull-rope from the single-family, multi-family 

or commercial building communal telecom/electrical room/closet to each multi-family or commercial building 

unit shall be installed. See Structured Wiring Checklist on City's website for additional details. 

11. Warning Tape - Contractor shall supply and install an approved non-detectable warning tape 18-inch above 

the uppermost conduit when backfilling trenches, pits or excavations greater than 10' in length. Warning Tape 

shall be non-detectable, Orange in color, 4-inch minimum width, 4 mil, 500% minimum elongation, with bold 

printed black letters "CAUTION - BURIED FIBER OPTIC CABLE BELOW" printed in bold black lettering no 

less than 2-inch high. 

12. All hand holes, conduits, conduit banks, materials and installations are per the City's Fiber Optic Master Plan 

and City Fiber Optic Cable and Duct Standards. All hand holes, conduits and ducts shall be placed in the 

public right of way. 

13. All unused conduits/ducts/microducts shall be protected with duct plugs that provide a positive seal.  Ducts 

that are occupied shall be protected with industry accepted duct seal compound. 

14. Locate/Tracer Wire - Conduit bank requires (1) 12AWG high strength (minimum break load 452#) copper-

clad steel with 30mil HDPE orange insulation for locate/tracer wire. Contact City's Fiber Team for tracer wire 

specifications and see note 8. 

15. Multi-family dwellings are considered commercial property. 

16. Refer to the In-tract Fiber Network Design guideline on the City's website for additional in-tract conduit 

guidelines. 

 
 
 
 
 

Item C - 38 of 43



CITY OF ONTARIO 
LANDSCAPE PLANNING DIVISION 

303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
Sign Off 

 10/28/2022 
Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner Date 

Reviewer’s Name:  
Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner 

Phone: 
(909) 395-2615 

 
D.A.B. File No.:                                          Related Files: 
PMTT22-020 

Case Planner: 
Robert Morales 

Project Name and Location:  
Tentative Parcel Map to subdivide 0.423 Acres 
121 E 6th Street  
Applicant/Representative: 
Gary Andreasen jaryand@aeicivil.com (909) 623-1595 Ext 23 
195 N Euclid Avenue, Suite 101 
Upland, CA 91786 
 

 
 
A Tentative Tract/Parcel Map (dated 10/6/2022) has been approved, considering that 
the following conditions below be met upon submittal of the landscape construction 
documents. 

 
 
A Tentative Tract Map/Parcel (dated) has not been approved. Corrections noted 
below are required before DAB approval. 

CORRECTIONS REQUIRED   
1. Locate utilities to minimum clearances to allow parkway trees. Show and note a 10’ 

parkway tree space, 5’ clearance on each side of the tree from any utility or hardscape 
including water, sewer, drain lines, and driveways; and min. 10’ clear from street lights. 
Parkway trees are to be 30’ apart.  

2. Show and identify any on-site stormwater infiltration areas or stormwater infiltration devices 
proposed in parkways or other landscape areas.  

3. 269 inches of trunk replacement is required; see below for mitigation measures: 
a. 269 new 15-gallon trees min 1” diameter trunk, in addition to trees required.  
b. 179 new 24” box trees min 1.5” diameter trunk, in addition to trees required. 
c. Provide a matrix showing upsized trees on the plan one size larger such as 15 gallons 

to 24” box, or 24” to 36” box size. 
d. Monetary value of the trees removed as identified in the “Guide for Plant Appraisal,” 

approved certified arborist plant appraiser, may be equal to the value of the installation 
cost of planting, fertilizing, staking, and irrigating 15-gallon trees (100$ each) to the City 
of Ontario Historic Preservation Fund for city tree planting or city approved combination 
of the above items. A total monetary value of $26,900. 

 
On Grading or Utility Construction Plans: 
4. Stormwater infiltration devices located in parkways or other landscape areas shall be 

routed to this department to be reviewed and approved before permit approval or 
installation. 

5. Note for compaction to not be greater than 85% at landscape areas; all finished grades 1 
½” below finished surfaces; landscaped slopes to be max 3:1. 

Item C - 39 of 43

mailto:jaryand@aeicivil.com


6. Show or note transformers shall be located in planter areas and set back 3’ from paving for 
small transformers less than 4’ high and 5’ setback for large transformers greater than 4’ 
high. Coordinate with landscape plans. Locate on level grade. 

7. Show or note backflow devices shall be located in planter areas and set back min 3’ from 
paving. Locate on level grade. Coordinate with landscape plans. 

8. Provide a utility clear space 8’ wide in parkways and 30’ apart for street trees. Move water 
meters, drain lines, and light standards to the minimum spacing to allow space for street 
trees.  

9. Show light standards 15’ away from required tree locations. 
10. Wall footings shall not restrict landscape; max 12” in front of footing with 12” of cover. 
11. Stormwater infiltration devices located in landscape areas shall be reviewed and approved 

by the Landscape Planning Division before installation. 
12. After a project’s entitlement approval, the applicant shall pay all applicable fees at a rate 

established by resolution of the City Council. 
Once items are complete, you may email an electronic set to: 
landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 

Item C - 40 of 43

mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov


AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Project File No.:

Address:

APN:

Existing Land 
Use:

Proposed Land 
Use:

Site Acreage:

ONT-IAC Project Review:

This proposed Project is: Exempt from the ALUCP Consistent Consistent with Conditions Inconsistent

Reviewed By:

Date:

Contact Info:

Project Planner:

CD No.:

PALU No.:

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones: 

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection

Zone 1

Zone 1A

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

Zone 5

75+ dB CNEL

70 - 75 dB CNEL

65 - 70 dB CNEL

60 - 65 dB CNEL

High Terrain Zone Avigation Easement 
Dedication

Real Estate Transaction

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

Airspace Avigation 
Easement Area

Allowable 
Height:

The project is impacted by the following Chino ALUCP Safety Zones: 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 1

Zone 6

Allowable Height:

PMTT22-020

121 East 6th Street

1047-241-05

Existing Single Family Home

Tentative Parcel Map to subdivide 0.423 acres into 2 parcels

0.423

N/A

ONT

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) and was
evaluated and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP)
for ONT.

✔

Lorena Mejia

909-395-2276

Robert Morales

1/30/2023

2022-057

N/A

Existing Building

130 FT

Item C - 41 of 43



CD No.:

PALU No.:

PROJECT CONDITIONS

AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 2

1. The applicant is required to meet the Real Estate Transaction Disclosure in accordance with California Codes
(Business and Professions Code Section 11010-11024). New residential subdivisions within an Airport Influence Area
are required to file an application for a Public Report consisting of a Notice of Intention (NOI) and a completed
questionnaire with the Department of Real Estate and include the following language within the NOI:

NOTICE OF AIRPORT IN VICINITY
This property is presently located in the vicinity of an airport, within what is known as an airport influence area. For
that reason, the property may be subject to some of the annoyances or inconveniences associated with proximity to
airport operations (for example: noise, vibration, or odors). Individual sensitivities to those annoyances can vary from
person to person. You may wish to consider what airport annoyances, if any, are associated with the property before
you complete your purchase and determine whether they are acceptable to you.

2022-057

Item C - 42 of 43



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
 
TO:  Robert Morales, Assistant Planner 
  Planning Department 
 
FROM:  Paul Ehrman, Sr. Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal 
  Fire Department 
 
DATE:  June 23, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: PMTT22-020 - A Tentative Parcel Map (TPM 20587) to subdivide 0.423 

acres of land into 2 parcels located at 121 E 6th, Street within the LDR-5 
(Low-Density - 2.1 to 5.0 du/ac) zoning district (APN: 1047-241-05).  

 
 

   The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.  

   No comments. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item C - 43 of 43



Page 1 of 42 

 
 
DECISION NO.: [insert #] 
 
FILE NO.: PDEV22-038 
 
DESCRIPTION: A public hearing to consider a Development Plan to construct 36 
single-family detached 4-pack dwellings with related on-site improvements for a 
subdivision previously approved with Tentative Tract Map No. 18916 (File No. PMTT21-011), 
on approximately 11.05 acres of land located on the west side of Archibald Avenue and 
approximately 575 feet south of Chino Avenue within Planning Area 2 (Neighborhood 7) 
of the Countryside Specific Plan (APN: 0218-131-34); submitted by KB Homes Coastal Inc. 
Planning Commission action is required.  
 
 
 

PART 1: BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 
 

KB HOME COASTAL INC., (herein after referred to as "Applicant") has filed an 
application requesting Development Plan approval, File No. PDEV22-038, as described in 
the subject of this Decision (herein after referred to as "Application" or "Project"). 
 
PROJECT SETTING: The Project site is comprised of 11.05 gross acres of land located on the 
west side of Archibald Avenue and approximately 575 feet south of Chino Avenue, as 
depicted in Exhibit A: Project Location Map, attached. Existing land uses, General Plan 
and zoning designations, and specific plan land uses on and surrounding the project site 
are as follows: 
 

 Existing Land Use Policy Plan 
Land Use Designation 

Zoning 
Designation 

Specific Plan 
Land Use Designation 

Site: Vacant 

Low Density Residential 
(LDR): 2.1 - 5 DU/AC & 
Open Space – Non-
Recreation (OS-NR) 

Countryside Specific 
Plan 

Neighborhood 7  
(RD-Alley Loaded)  

North: Religious Place of 
Worship & Preschool  

Low Density Residential 
(LDR): 2.1 - 5 DU/AC 

Countryside Specific 
Plan 

Neighborhood 7  
(RD-Alley Loaded)  

South: Residential Subdivision 
& Deer Creek Channel 

Low Density Residential 
(LDR): 2.1 - 5 DU/AC & 
Open Space – Non-
Recreation (OS-NR) 

Countryside Specific 
Plan 

Neighborhood 6 
(Cluster Court) 

East: Southern California 
Edison (“SCE”) 

Low Density Residential 
(LDR): 2.1 - 5 DU/AC & 

LDR-5 (Low Density 
Residential—2.1 to 5.0 

N/A 

303 East B Street, Ontario, California 91764 Phone: 909.395.2036 / Fax: 909.395.2420 

DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD 
DECISION 

 
May 15, 2023 

Item D - 1 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 

Page 2 of 42 

Existing Land Use Policy Plan 
Land Use Designation 

Zoning 
Designation 

Specific Plan 
Land Use Designation 

easement & 
Residential Subdivision 

Open Space – Non-
Recreation (OS-NR) 

DU/Acre)) & UC (Utilities 
Corridor) 

West: 

Southern California 
Edison (“SCE”) 
easement & 

Residential Subdivision 

Low Density Residential 
(LDR): 2.1 - 5 DU/AC & 
Open Space – Non-
Recreation (OS-NR) 

Countryside Specific 
Plan Neighborhood 5 (Z-Lot) 

PROJECT ANALYSIS: 

(1) Background — The Countryside Specific Plan (File No. PSP04-001) and
related Environmental Impact Report (State Clearinghouse No. 2004071001) was 
approved by the City Council on April 18, 2006. The Countryside Specific Plan established 
the land use designation, development standards, and design guidelines for the 178-acre 
Specific Plan area, which includes the potential development of 825 residential dwelling 
units and approximately 8.5 acres of neighborhood paseos and two centrally located 
parks (see Figure 1: Countryside Specific Plan Land Use Map).   

On October 20, 2021, the Zoning Administrator approved a 
Specific Plan Minor Amendment (File No. PSPA19-001) to 
modify the Countryside Specific Plan to allow for: (1) the 
introduction of Neighborhood 3A (“Cluster Court 2”); (2) an 
increase in the number of allowed dwelling units from 819 to 
825; (3) the use of Cluster Court product within the proposed 
Neighborhood 3A and existing Neighborhood 7 of the 
Countryside Specific Plan, (4) minor text amendments to the 
RD Z-Lot and RD Cluster Court Site Development Standards; 
and (5) accommodate related text and exhibit updates.  

On November 23, 2021, the Planning Commission approved 
Tentative Tract Map No. 18916 (File No. PMTT21-011) for 
Planning Area 2 (Neighborhood 7), which subdivided the 
11.05-acre Project site into 36 numbered lots and two lettered 
lots to facilitate future residential development. The Final Map 
application is currently under review and is expected to be 
considered by the City Council after June 2023.  

On August 15, 2022, the Applicant submitted the subject Development Plan (File No. 
PDEV22-038) to facilitate the development of Tract Map No. 18916 with 36 single-family 
detached 4-pack dwellings on 11.05 acres of land within Planning Area 2 (Neighborhood 
7, RD-Alley Loaded) of the Countryside Specific Plan.  

Site Design/Building Layout —The proposed 4-Pack Courtyard cluster product provides 
single-family detached homes with a driveway, two-car garage, and private yard area. 

Figure 1: Countryside Specific Plan Land Use Map 

Item D - 2 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 3 of 42 

The site design is characterized by motor court drives constructed with enhanced paving 
consisting of integral-colored concrete with a medium release finish and color concrete 
crosswalks that provides access to each unit’s two-car garage and driveways, for a total 
of four parking spaces for each unit. The residences that are located within the interior of 
the cluster will have front entryways facing the motor court drives, and the residences 
with frontage along East Towhee Street and Dolomite Street will have their front entrance 
doors facing the street (see Exhibit B—Site Plan, attached). 
 
The Project proposes two-story floor plans, with three elevations per plan.  The Countryside 
Specific Plan requires a minimum lot size of 2,925 square feet and a maximum 60 percent 
lot coverage. The Project typical lot sizes range from 4,564 to 5,833 square feet, with a lot 
coverage ranging from 27 percent to 38 percent (without the optional patio) and 30 
percent to 42 percent (with the optional patio). Homebuyers have the option of selecting 
an optional attached patio that is designed with the same architectural characteristics 
as the main residence. All plans incorporate various design features, such as a mix of one- 
and two-story massing, varied entries, second floor laundry facilities, loft, kitchen, open 
dining, and great room/living areas (see Attachment A- Full set of Elevations and Floor 
Plans). The proposed floor plans consist of the following:  
 

Table 1: Floor Plan Summary 

Plan 
Type (No. of 

Units) 
Gross Floor Area Key Features 

1 (9 DUs) 2,380 SF 3 bedrooms, 3 bathrooms, loft, 4th bedroom/optional den 

2 (4 DUs) 2,524 SF 4 bedrooms, 3 bathrooms, den/optional 5th bedroom, 
loft/optional 6th bedroom 

3 (9 DUs) 2,609 SF 4 bedrooms, 3 bathrooms, den/optional 5th bedroom, 
loft/optional 6th bedroom 

4 (14 DUs) 2,791 SF 5 bedrooms, 3 bathrooms, loft, den/optional office 

 
The project site contains an approximately three-acre Southern California Edison (“SCE”) 
easement, transecting the project site in an east-west direction, and contains two 
transmission towers and high voltage power lines. The 4-pack clusters will be constructed 
to the north and south of the SCE easement. A minor recreational facility, proposed along 
the north boundary of the SCE easement, consists of a 30-foot-wide walking paseo that 
contains a meandering sidewalk, landscaping, a dog park, enhanced entryways, and 
seating areas. A Homeowner’s Association (HOA) is proposed to maintain the common 
and private open space areas. 
 

(2) Site Access/Circulation — Primary Access to the project site will be provided 
from Kinglet Avenue to the west and Archibald Avenue to the east. The interior streets, 
East Towhee Street and Dolomite Street, are parallel streets that travel in an east-west 
direction and intersect with both Kinglet Avenue and Archibald Avenue. The proposed 
4-pack clusters will contain motor court drives that provide access to the residential unit’s 

Item D - 3 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 4 of 42 

garage and the driveway. Pedestrian circulation is provided via the new sidewalks, which 
connect to the active walking trails located within and surrounding the community. 
 

(3) Parking — The Countryside Specific Plan requires a minimum two-car 
garage (20 ft. by 20 ft.) for single-family residential units. The Project provides the required 
2-car garage in addition to two driveway spaces and 44 on-street parking spaces along 
Towhee Street, Kinglet Avenue, and Dolomite Street (see Exhibit C - Parking Exhibit). The 
Project requires a total of 72 parking spaces, and a total of 188 parking spaces will be 
provided, exceeding the minimum requirements by 116 parking spaces, as summarized 
in Table 2, below.  

 
Table 2: Parking Summary 

Parking Space Required Provided 
Garage Spaces (2/unit) 72 72 
Driveway Spaces (9’×18’) 0 72 
Street Spaces (8’×24’) 0 44 
Total 72 188 

 
(4) Architecture — A total of three architectural styles, Spanish Colonial, 

Craftsman, and American Farmhouse, are proposed for the Project. The architectural 
styles embody a variety of building material and designs among the different plan types 
(see Exhibit D – Elevations/Floor Plans and Exhibit E – Street Scene).  
 
As proposed, the building elevations are compatible with the surrounding residential 
development in that the architectural style of the homes includes a variety of design 
elements and articulated massing such as vertical and horizontal offsets on the exterior 
wall planes, varied roof planes and roof pitches, and recessed doorways, as well as other 
features. A total of four (4) different floor plans are provided with all the units two (2) stories 
high and a height that ranges from 23-feet 11-inches to 28-feet 7-inches. The architectural 
styles include the following features: 
 

• Spanish Colonial: Varying gable roof with concrete “S” tile roofing, arched entry 
ways, deep recessed openings, wood fascia board, trim, decorative shutters, 
decorative ceramic tiles, and decorative gables and end details. 

 
• Craftsman: Varying gable and shed roofs with concrete flat roof tiles; stucco 

exteriors with horizontal wood siding details, trim along the windows, decorative 
shutters, stone veneer at the base of the building, and fiber cement shake shingle 
siding as well as a stucco finish.  

 
• American Farmhouses: shed roofs with concrete flat roof tiles; wood posts, wood 

trim and a stucco finish, fiber cement siding with vertical battens, wood trim along 
the windows, and decorative gabled end details.  
 

 

Item D - 4 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 5 of 42 

The architectural design provides a variety of material based on the architectural style 
and unit type with additional enhancement in areas that are visible from public vantage 
points (see Exhibit F – Material & Color Sample Board). Enhanced architectural treatment 
is provided on the elevations that are visible from public vantage points, including the 
public right-of-way, the elevations facing the SCE easement, and the paseo through the 
incorporation of features such as additional shutters, trim, siding, and pop outs.  

 
Landscaping/Open Space — Within the Project site, a combination of trees, shrubs and 
groundcover is proposed (see Exhibit G – Landscaping Plans). The Landscaping Plan 
includes a variety of 24-inch box, 36-inch box, and 48-inch box trees. The proposed trees 
include the Western Redbud, Raywood Ash, Australian Willow, Muskogee Crape Myrtle 
Standard, Muskogee Crape Myrtle Multi-Trunk, Saratoga Hybrid Laurel – Standard Form, 
Afghan Pine, California Sycamore, Fern Pine, Coast Live Oak, and the Bay Laurel. The 
trees located along the paseo will include a mix of Lagerstroemia and Cercis trees with 
a maximum height of 15 feet per SCE requirements. Front yard landscaping will be 
provided and maintained by the Homeowner’s Association (HOA) as indicated in the 
Countryside Specific Plan. Each residential lot will have a private rear yard area that 
ranges from 897 square feet to 2,158 square feet.  
 
The landscaping located on the west side of Archibald Avenue will be constructed in 
accordance with the Archibald Streetscape Master Plan, which requires a 27-foot-wide 
landscaped parkway with a single row of street trees, an 8-foot-wide bikeway/pedestrian 
trail, and a 5-foot-wide meandering sidewalk. Trees and shrubs will also be planted in a 
series of layers to add texture and color.  
 
TOP 2050 Policy PR-1.6 requires new development to provide a minimum of two acres of 
developed private park space per 1,000 residents. The park area requirement for this 
Project is 0.274 acres, based on 36 dwelling units and the rate of 3.806 
occupants/dwelling for single-family units less than 25 du/acre, and multiplied by 0.002. 
A total of 0.88 acres of open space is provided within Lots A, B, C, and D, which include 
open space areas and the paseo. The paseo is approximately 12,450 square feet (or 0.28 
acres) in size. The paseo is designed with a dog park with low fencing, a 5-foot-wide 
decomposed granite multi-use trail, rest areas with seating boulders and trees, and two 
pedestrian entry portals (see Exhibit G – Paseo Enlargement). The entry portals will have 
field/flagstone veneer pilasters with an architectural concrete cap that is designed to 
match the neighborhood entry monumentation.  
 
The Countryside Specific Plan area will have a paseo network that will provide access to 
neighborhood parks and all neighborhoods within the Specific Plan. The paseo will 
provide connectivity throughout the community with the use of the multi-purpose 
pedestrian trail and the bicycle paths that are located within the community. The paseo 
system begins at Riverside Drive (within Planning Area 1) and travels south crossing Chino 
Avenue into Planning Area 2. The Project site will have access to neighborhood parks via 
the multi-purpose trail and street networks.  
 

Item D - 5 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 6 of 42 

Walls and fences are proposed along the perimeter of the Project site and along the 
interior residential property lines, consistent with the Countryside Specific Plan. A 6-foot-
high split face block wall with a decorative cap is proposed in areas that are visible from 
the public right-of-way. Along interior residential property lines, the developer will install 
a 6-foot-high precision block wall with a precast precision cap. Along the segment of 
Archibald Avenue, the wall height will increase from 6 feet to 8 feet to provide a noise 
barrier for the residential lots that are adjacent to Archibald Avenue. A neighborhood 
entry monumentation is proposed along the eastern portion of Dolomite Street, which 
includes a 5-foot-tall pedestrian entry pilaster with field/flagstone veneer pilasters and an 
architectural concrete cap with accent pilasters that is designed to match the paseo 
entry pilasters (see Exhibit H –Wall Plan). 
 

(5) Noise Study – A Noise Impact Study was prepared for the proposed Project 
to evaluate the future exterior and interior long-term noise impacts along Archibald 
Avenue (see Attachment B – Noise Impact Analysis). The Noise Impact Analysis, prepared 
by Urban Crossroads dated March 7, 2023, indicates that an 8-feet high noise barrier will 
be required for the outdoor living areas (rear yards) on all lots adjacent to Archibald 
Avenue. The Applicant will be required to construct an 8-foot-tall split face masonry block 
wall on all lots adjacent to Archibald Avenue to be consistent with the project design 
features indicated in the Noise Study. Through the incorporation of the 8-foot-high block 
wall the future exterior noise levels will range from 64.6 to 64.8 dBA CNEL and satisfy the 
City of Ontario 65 dBA CNEL exterior noise levels standard for residential land uses.  
 
To meet the City of Ontario 45 dBA CNEL interior noise level criteria, first-floor receivers on 
lots adjacent to Archibald Avenue will require a Noise Reduction of up to 19.8 dBA and 
second story receivers on lots adjacent to Archibald Avenue will require a Noise 
Reduction of up to 29.7 dBA. The following noise abatement measures will be 
incorporated and verified during the plan check process: 
 

• Windows & Glass Doors: First story facades on lots adjacent to Archibald Avenue 
require windows and glass doors with well-fitted, well-weather-stripped assemblies 
with minimum sound transmission class (STC) ratings of 27 and a means of 
mechanical ventilation (e.g., air conditioning). Second Story facades on lots 
adjacent to Archibald Avenue require windows and glass doors with well-fitted, 
well-weather-stripped assemblies with minimum STC ratings of 32 and a means of 
mechanical ventilation (e.g., air conditioning). 
 

• Doors (Non-Glass): All exterior doors shall be well weather-stripped. Well-sealed 
perimeter gaps around the doors are essential to achieve the optimal STC rating.  
 

• Walls: At any penetrations of exterior walls by pipes, ducts, or conduits, the space 
between the wall and pipes, ducts, or conduits shall be caulked or filled with 
mortar to form an airtight seal. 
 

Item D - 6 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 7 of 42 

• Roof: Roof sheathing of wood construction shall be per manufacturer’s 
specification or caulked plywood of at least one-half inch thick. Ceilings shall be 
per manufacturer’s specification or well-sealed gypsum board of at least one-half 
inch thick. Insulation with at least a rating of R-19 shall be used in the attic space. 
 

• Ventilation: Arrangements for any habitable room shall be such that any exterior 
door or window can be kept closed when the room is in use and still receive 
circulated air. A forced air circulation system (e.g., air conditioning) or active 
ventilation system (e.g., fresh air supply) shall be provided which satisfies the 
requirements of the Uniform Building Code. 

 
(6) Signage — Any proposed signage shall comply with the sign regulations 

provided in the Countryside Specific Plan and the Ontario Development Code Division 
8.01. 
 

(7) Utilities (drainage, sewer) — All major backbone improvements and interior 
site improvements will be constructed in congruence with the related Tract Map. The 
Applicant will also obtain an encroachment permit to conduct work within the public 
rights-of-way. Furthermore, the Applicant has submitted a Preliminary Water Quality 
Management Plan (“PWQMP”), which establishes the Project’s compliance with storm 
water discharge/water quality requirements. The PWQMP includes site design measures 
that capture runoff and pollutant transport by minimizing impervious surfaces and 
maximizes low impact development (“LID”) best management practices (“BMPs”), such 
as retention and infiltration, biotreatment, and evapotranspiration. Additionally, the 
Project is consistent with the previously approved Development Agreement (File No. 
PDA21-004) that required all major backbone infrastructure improvements within the 
Countryside Specific Plan. 

 
(8) Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (“CC&Rs”) — In November of 2021, 

Planning Commission approved the related Tentative Tract Map No. 18916 (File No. 
PMTT21-011) for Planning Area 2 (Neighborhood 7. As part of the Tentative Tract Map 
Conditions of Approval, CC&Rs were required to be prepared and recorded with the 
Final Tentative Tract Map. The CC&Rs will outline the maintenance responsibilities for the 
open space areas, recreation amenities, drive aisles, utilities, and upkeep of the entire 
site, to ensure the on-going maintenance of the common areas and facilities 
 
PUBLIC NOTIFICATION: Public notification is not required, as the Development Advisory 
Board is acting in its capacity as an advisory body to the Planning Commission. Public 
notification is required prior to the Planning Commission hearing on the Project. 
 
CORRESPONDENCE: As of the preparation of this Decision, Planning Department staff has 
not received any written or verbal communications from the owners of properties 
surrounding the project site or from the public in general, regarding the subject 
application. 
 

Item D - 7 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 8 of 42 

AGENCY/DEPARTMENT REVIEWS: Each City agency/department has been provided the 
opportunity to review and comment on the subject application and recommend 
conditions of approval to be imposed upon the application. At the time of the Decision 
preparation, recommended conditions of approval were provided and are included 
with this Decision. 
 
AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLAN (ALUCP) COMPLIANCE: The California State 
Aeronautics Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires that an Airport Land 
Use Compatibility Plan be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires 
that local land use plans and individual development proposals must be consistent with 
the policies set forth in the adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. 
 
On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the City of Ontario approved and adopted the ONT 
ALUCP, establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International Airport, which 
encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los Angeles Counties, 
and limits future land uses and development within the Airport Influence Area, as they 
relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight impacts of current and future 
airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, the Development Advisory 
Board has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the 
Application and supporting documentation against the ONT ALUCP compatibility 
factors, including [1] Safety Criteria (ONT ALUCP Table 2-2) and Safety Zones (ONT ALUCP 
Map 2-2), [2] Noise Criteria (ONT ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ONT ALUCP 
Map 2-3), [3] Airspace protection Zones (ONT ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight 
Notification Zones (ONT ALUCP Map 2-5). As a result, the Development Advisory Board, 
therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when implemented in conjunction with 
the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the policies and criteria set forth within 
the ONT ALUCP. 
 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE ONTARIO PLAN: The proposed project is consistent with the 
principles, goals and policies contained within the Vision, Governance, Policy Plan 
(general plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan ("TOP"). More 
specifically, the goals and policies of TOP that are furthered by the proposed project are 
as follows: 
 
(1) City Council Goals. 
 

(a) Invest in the Growth and Evolution of the City's Economy 
(b) Operate in a Businesslike Manner 
(c) Focus Resources in Ontario's Commercial and Residential Neighborhoods 
(d) Invest in the City's Infrastructure (Water, Streets, Sewers, Parks, Storm Drains 

and Public Facilities) 
(e) Ensure the Development of a Well Planned, Balanced, and Self-Sustaining 

Community in the New Model Colony 
 
 

Item D - 8 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 9 of 42 

(2) Vision. 
 

Distinctive Development: 
 

 Commercial and Residential Development 
 

 Development quality that is broadly recognized as distinctive and not 
exclusively tied to the general suburban character typical of much of Southern California. 
 
(3) Governance. 
 

Decision Making: 
 

 Goal G1: Sustained decision-making that consistently moves Ontario towards 
its Vision by using The Ontario Plan as a framework for assessing choices. 
 

 G 1-2. Long-term Benefit. We require decisions to demonstrate and 
document how they add value to the community and support the Ontario Vision. 
 
(4) Policy Plan (General Plan) 

 
Land Use Element: 
 
 Goal LU-1 Balance: A community that has a spectrum of housing types and 

price ranges that match the jobs in the City and that make it possible for people to live 
and work in Ontario and maintain a quality of life. 
 

 LU-1.1 Strategic Growth. We concentrate growth in strategic locations that 
help create place and identity, maximize available and planned infrastructure, foster the 
development of transit, and support the expansion of the active and multimodal 
transportation networks throughout the City. 
 

 LU-1.6 Complete Community. We incorporate a variety of land uses and 
building types in our land use planning efforts that result in a complete community where 
residents at all stages of life, employers, workers, and visitors have a wide spectrum of 
choices of where they can live, work, shop and recreate within Ontario. 
 

 Goal LU-2 Compatibility: Compatibility between a wide range of uses and a 
resultant urban patterns and forms. 
 

 LU-2.6 Infrastructure Compatibility. We require infrastructure to be 
aesthetically pleasing and in context with the community character. 
 
 
 

Item D - 9 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 10 of 42 

Housing Element: 
 

 Goal H-2 Housing Supply & Diversity: Diversity of types of quality housing that 
are affordable to a range of household income levels, accommodate changing 
demographics, and support and reinforce the economic sustainability of Ontario. 
 

 H-2.4 Ontario Ranch. We support a premier lifestyle community in the 
Ontario Ranch, distinguished by diverse housing, highest design quality, and cohesive 
and highly amenitized neighborhoods. 
 

 H-2.5 Housing Design. We require architectural excellence through 
adherence to City design guidelines, thoughtful site planning, environmentally 
sustainable practices, and other best practices. 
 

 Goal H-5 Special Needs: A full range of housing types and community services 
that meet the special housing needs for all individuals and families in Ontario, regardless 
of income level, age, or other status. 
 

 H-5.2 Family Housing. We support the development of larger rental 
apartments that are appropriate for families with children, including, as feasible, the 
provision of services, recreation, and other amenities. 
 

Community Economics Element: 
 

 Goal CE-1 Complete Community: A complete community that provides for all 
incomes and stages of life. 
 

 CE-1.6 Diversity of Housing. We collaborate with residents, housing 
providers, and the development community to provide housing opportunities for every 
stage of life; we plan for a variety of housing types and price points to encourage the 
development of housing supportive of our efforts to attract business in growing sectors of 
the community while being respectful of existing viable uses. 
 

 Goal CE-2 Placemaking: A City of distinctive neighborhoods, districts, corridors, 
and centers where people choose to be. 
 

 CE-2.1 Development Projects. We require new development and 
redevelopment to create unique, high-quality places that add value to the community. 
 

 CE-2.2 Development Review. We require those proposing new 
development and redevelopment to demonstrate how their projects will create 
appropriately unique, functional, and sustainable places that will compete well with their 
competition within the region. 
 

Item D - 10 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 11 of 42 

 CE-2.4 Protection of Investment. We require that new development and 
redevelopment protect existing investment by providing architecture and urban design 
of equal or greater quality. 
 

 CE-2.5 Private Maintenance. We require adequate maintenance, upkeep, 
and investment in private property because proper maintenance on private property 
protects property values. 
 

Safety Element: 
 

 Goal S-1 Seismic & Geologic Hazards: Minimized risk of injury, loss of life, 
property damage, and economic and social disruption caused by earthquake-induced 
and other geologic hazards. 
 

 S-1.1 Implementation of Regulations and Standards. We require that all new 
habitable structures be designed in accordance with the most recent California Building 
Code adopted by the City, including provisions regarding lateral forces and grading. 

 
Community Design Element: 

 
 Goal CD-1 Image & Identity: A dynamic, progressive city containing distinct 

and complete places that foster a positive sense of identity and belonging among 
residents, visitors, and businesses. 
 

 CD-1.1 City Identity. We take actions that are consistent with the City being 
a leading urban center in Southern California while recognizing, enhancing, and 
preserving the character of our existing viable neighborhoods. 
 

 CD-1.3 Existing Neighborhoods. We require the existing character of viable 
residential and non-residential neighborhoods be preserved, protected, and enhanced. 
 

 Goal CD-2 Design Quality: A high level of design quality resulting in 
neighborhoods, public spaces, parks, and streetscapes that are attractive, safe, 
functional, human-scale, and distinct. 

 
 CD-2.1 Quality Building Design and Architecture. We encourage all 

development projects to convey visual interest and character through: 
 

• Building volume, massing, and height to provide context-appropriate 
scale and proportion; 

• A true architectural style which is carried out in plan, section, and 
elevation through all aspects of the building and site design and appropriate for its 
setting; and 

• Exterior building materials that are articulated, high quality, durable, 
and appropriate for the architectural style. 

Item D - 11 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 12 of 42 

 CD-2.2 Neighborhood Design. We create distinct residential neighborhoods 
that promote a sense of community and identity by emphasizing access, connectivity, 
livability, and social interaction through such elements as: 
 

• A pattern of smaller, walkable blocks that promote activity, safety, and 
access to nearby amenities and services; 

• Varied parcel sizes and lot configurations to accommodate a diversity 
of housing types; 

• Traffic calming measures to slow traffic and promote walkability while 
maintaining acceptable traffic flows and emergency evacuation access; 

• Floor plans that encourage views onto the street and de-emphasize the 
visual and physical dominance of garages (introducing the front porch as the "outdoor 
living room"), as appropriate; and 

• Landscaped parkways, with sidewalks separated from the curb and 
designed to maximize safety, comfort, and aesthetics for all users. 
 

 CD-2.7 Sustainability. We collaborate with the development community to 
design and build neighborhoods, streetscapes, sites, outdoor spaces, landscaping, and 
buildings to reduce energy demand through solar orientation, maximum use of natural 
daylight, passive solar and natural ventilation, building form, mechanical and structural 
systems, building materials, and construction techniques. 
 

 CD-2.8 Safe Design. We incorporate defensible space design into new and 
existing developments to ensure the maximum safe travel and visibility on pathways, 
corridors, and open space and at building entrances and parking areas by avoiding 
physically and visually isolated spaces, maintaining visibility and accessibility, and using 
lighting. 
 

 CD-2.9 Landscape Design. We encourage durable, sustainable, and 
drought-tolerant landscaping materials and designs that enhance the aesthetics of 
structures, create and define public and private spaces, and provide shade and 
environmental benefits. 
 

 CD-2.10 Parking Areas. We require all development, including single-family 
residential, to minimize the visual impact of surface, structured, and garage parking areas 
visible from the public realm in an aesthetically pleasing, safe and environmentally 
sensitive manner. Examples include: 
 

• Surface parking: Shade trees, pervious surfaces, urban run-off capture 
and infiltration, and pedestrian paths to guide users through the parking field; 

• Garage parking: providing access to single-family residential garages 
through alley access, recessing garages from the frontage to emphasize front doors or 
active living spaces. 
 

Item D - 12 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 13 of 42 

 CD-2.13 Entitlement Process. We work collaboratively with all stakeholders 
to ensure a high degree of certainty in the efficient review and timely processing of all 
development plans and permits. 
 

 Goal CD-3 Urban, Mixed Use, and Transit-Oriented Place Types: Vibrant urban 
environments that are organized around intense buildings, pedestrian and transit areas, 
public plazas, and linkages between and within developments that are conveniently 
located, visually appealing and safe during all hours. 
 

 CD-3.3 Complete and Connected Network. We require that pedestrian, 
vehicular, and bicycle circulation on both public and private property be coordinated 
to provide connections internally and externally to adjacent neighborhoods and 
properties (existing and planned) through a system of local roads and trails that promote 
walking and biking to nearby destinations (including existing and planned parks, 
commercial areas, and transit stops) and are designed to maximize safety, comfort, and 
aesthetics. 
 

 CD-3.4 Context-Aware and Appropriate Design. We require appropriate 
building and site design that complements existing development, respects the intent and 
identity of the Place Type, and provides appropriate transitions and connections 
between adjacent uses to ensure compatibility of scale, maintain an appropriate level 
of privacy for each use, and minimize potential conflicts. 
 

 CD-3.5 Active Frontages. We create lively pedestrian streetscapes by 
requiring primary building, business, and residential entrances, outdoor dining, and 
storefronts be located on ground floors adjacent to sidewalks or public spaces and 
designed to maximize safety, comfort, aesthetics, and the intended functionality (as 
defined by the Place Type). 
 

 Goal CD-5 Protection of Investment: A sustained level of maintenance and 
improvement of properties, buildings, and infrastructure that protects the property values 
and encourages additional public and private investments. 
 

 CD-5.1 Maintenance of Buildings and Property. We require all public and 
privately-owned buildings and property (including trails and easements) to be properly 
and consistently maintained. 
 

 CD-5.2 Maintenance of Infrastructure. We require the continual 
maintenance of infrastructure. 
 
HOUSING ELEMENT COMPLIANCE: The project is consistent with the Housing Element of 
the Policy Plan (general plan) component of The Ontario Plan, as the project site is not 
one of the properties in the Housing Element Sites contained in Tables B-1 and B-2 
(Housing Element Sites Inventory) of the Housing Element Technical Report. 
 

Item D - 13 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 14 of 42 

PART 2: RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Application is a Project pursuant to the California Environmental 
Quality Act (Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.) ("CEQA") and an initial study 
has been prepared to determine possible environmental impacts; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Countryside Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report (State 
Clearinghouse No. 2004071001) was certified on April 18, 2006 (hereinafter referred to as 
"Certified EIR"), in which development and use of the Project site was discussed; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Countryside Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report (State 
Clearinghouse No. 2004071001) was certified by the City Council on April 18, 2006 
("Certified EIR") in conjunction with File No. PSP04-001, in which development and use of 
the Project site was discussed; and 
 

WHEREAS, the environmental impacts of this Project were thoroughly analyzed in 
the Certified EIR, which concluded that implementation of the Project could result in a 
number of significant effects on the environment and identified mitigation measures that 
would reduce each of those significant effects to a less-than-significant level; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City's "Local Guidelines for the Implementation of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)" provide for the use of a single environmental 
assessment in situations where the impacts of subsequent projects are adequately 
analyzed; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ontario Development Code Table 2.02-1 (Review Matrix) grants the 
Development Advisory Board (hereinafter referred to as "DAB") the responsibility and 
authority to review and make recommendation to the Planning Commission on the 
subject Application; and 
 

WHEREAS, all members of the DAB of the City of Ontario were provided the 
opportunity to review and comment on the Application, and no comments were 
received opposing the proposed development; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project has been reviewed for consistency with the Housing Element 
of the Policy Plan component of The Ontario Plan, as State Housing Element law (as 
prescribed in Government Code Sections 65580 through 65589.8) requires that 
development projects must be consistent with the Housing Element, if upon consideration 
of all its aspects, it is found to further the purposes, principals, goals, and policies of the 
Housing Element; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario 
International Airport, which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, 
and Los Angeles Counties, and is subject to, and must be consistent with, the policies and 
criteria set forth in the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 

Item D - 14 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 15 of 42 

(hereinafter referred to as "ONT ALUCP"), which applies only to jurisdictions within San 
Bernardino County, and addresses the noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight 
impacts of current and future airport activity; and 
 

WHEREAS, City of Ontario Development Code Division 2.03 (Public Hearings) 
prescribes the manner in which public notification shall be provided and hearing 
procedures to be followed, and all such notifications and procedures have been 
completed; and 
 

WHEREAS, on May 15, 2023, the DAB of the City of Ontario conducted a hearing 
on the Application and concluded said hearing on that date; and 
 

WHEREAS, all legal prerequisites to the adoption of this Decision have occurred. 
 
 

PART 3: THE DECISION 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED AND DECIDED by the 
Development Advisory Board of the City of Ontario as follows: 
 

SECTION 1: Environmental Determination and Findings. As the recommending 
body for the Project, the DAB has reviewed and considered the information contained 
in the previous Certified EIR and supporting documentation. Based upon the facts and 
information contained in the previous Certified EIR and supporting documentation, the 
DAB finds as follows: 
 

(1) The environmental impacts of this Project were previously reviewed in 
conjunction with File No. PSP04-001, a Specific Plan for which an Environmental Impact 
Report (State Clearinghouse No. 2004071001) (“Certified EIR”) was adopted by the City 
Council on April 18, 2006; and 
  

(2) The previous Certified EIR contains a complete and accurate reporting of 
the environmental impacts associated with the Project; and 
 

(3) The previous Certified EIR was completed in compliance with CEQA, and 
the Guidelines promulgated thereunder, and the City of Ontario Local CEQA Guidelines; 
and 
 

(4) The previous Certified EIR reflects the independent judgment of the 
Planning Commission; and 
 

(5) The proposed Project will introduce no new significant environmental 
impacts beyond those previously analyzed in the previous Certified EIR, and all mitigation 
measures previously adopted with the Certified EIR, are incorporated herein by this 
reference. 

Item D - 15 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 16 of 42 

SECTION 2: Subsequent or Supplemental Environmental Review Not Required. 
Based on the information presented to the DAB, and the specific findings set forth in 
Section 1, above, the DAB finds that the preparation of a subsequent or supplemental 
Certified EIR is not required for the Project, as the Project: 
 

(1) Does not constitute substantial changes to the Certified EIR that will require 
major revisions to the Certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant 
environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously 
identified significant effects; and 

 
(2) Does not constitute substantial changes with respect to the circumstances 

under which the Certified EIR was prepared, that will require major revisions to the 
Certified EIR due to the involvement of new significant environmental effects or a 
substantial increase in the severity of the previously identified significant effects; and 
 

(3) Does not contain new information of substantial importance that was not 
known and could not have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the 
time the Certified EIR was certified/adopted, that shows any of the following: 
 

(a) The Project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in 
the Certified EIR; or 
 

(b) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more 
severe than shown in the Certified EIR; or 
 

(c) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be 
feasible would in fact be feasible and would substantially reduce one or more significant 
effects of the Project, but the City declined to adopt such measures; or 
 

(d) Mitigation measures or alternatives considerably different from those 
analyzed in the Certified EIR would substantially reduce one or more significant effects 
on the environment, but which the City declined to adopt. 
 

SECTION 3: ALUCP Compliance. The California State Aeronautics Act (Public 
Utilities Code Section 21670 et seq.) requires that an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan 
be prepared for all public use airports in the State; and requires that local land use plans 
and individual development proposals must be consistent with the policies set forth in the 
adopted Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. On April 19, 2011, the City Council of the 
City of Ontario approved and adopted the Ontario International Airport Land use 
Compatibility Plan, establishing the Airport Influence Area for Ontario International 
Airport, which encompasses lands within parts of San Bernardino, Riverside, and Los 
Angeles Counties, and limits future land uses and development within the Airport 
Influence Area, as they relate to noise, safety, airspace protection, and overflight 
impacts of current and future airport activity. As the recommending body for the Project, 
the DAB has reviewed and considered the facts and information contained in the 

Item D - 16 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 17 of 42 

Application and supporting documentation against the ALUCP compatibility factors, 
including [1] Safety Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-2) and Safety Zones (ALUCP Map 2-2), [2] 
Noise Criteria (ALUCP Table 2-3) and Noise Impact Zones (ALUCP Map 2-3), [3] Airspace 
protection Zones (ALUCP Map 2-4), and [4] Overflight Notification Zones (ALUCP Map 2-
5). As a result, the DAB, therefore, finds and determines that the Project, when 
implemented in conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the 
policies and criteria set forth within the ALUCP. 
 

SECTION 4: Concluding Facts and Reasons. Based upon the substantial 
evidence presented to the DAB during the above-referenced hearing and upon the 
facts and information set forth in Parts I (Background and Analysis) and II (Recitals), 
above, and the determinations set forth in Sections 1 through 3, above, the DAB hereby 
concludes as follows: 
 

(1) The proposed development at the proposed location is consistent with the 
goals, policies, plans and exhibits of the Vision, Policy Plan (General Plan), and City 
Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan. The proposed Project is located within 
the (LDR) Low Density Residential (2.1-5 DU/AC) and (OS-NR) Open Space – Non-
Recreation land use district of the TOP 2050 Policy Plan Land Use Map, and Neighborhood 
7 (RD-Alley Loaded) land use district of the Countryside Specific Plan. The development 
standards and conditions under which the proposed Project will be constructed and 
maintained, is consistent with the goals, policies, plans, and exhibits of the Vision, Policy 
Plan (General Plan), and City Council Priorities components of The Ontario Plan; and 
 

(2) The proposed development is compatible with those on adjoining sites in 
relation to location of buildings, with particular attention to privacy, views, any physical 
constraint identified on the site and the characteristics of the area in which the site is 
located. The Project has been designed consistent with the requirements of the City of 
Ontario Development Code and Neighborhood 7 (RD-Alley Loaded) land use district of 
the Countryside Specific Plan, including standards relative to the particular land use 
proposed (residential), as-well-as building intensity, building and parking setbacks, 
building height, number of off-street parking and loading spaces, on-site and off-site 
landscaping, and fences, walls and obstructions; and 
 

(3) The proposed development will complement and/or improve upon the 
quality of existing development in the vicinity of the Project and the minimum safeguards 
necessary to protect the public health, safety and general welfare have been required 
of the proposed Project. The Development Advisory Board has required certain 
safeguards, and impose certain conditions of approval, which have been established to 
ensure that: [i] the purposes of the Countryside Specific Plan are maintained; [ii] the 
Project will not endanger the public health, safety or general welfare; [iii] the Project will 
not result in any significant environmental impacts; [iv] the Project will be in harmony with 
the area in which it is located; and [v] the Project will be in full conformity with the Vision, 
City Council Priorities and Policy Plan components of The Ontario Plan, and the 
Countryside Specific Plan; and 

Item D - 17 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 18 of 42 

(4) The proposed development is consistent with the development standards 
and design guidelines set forth in the Development Code, or applicable specific plan or 
planned unit development. The proposed Project has been reviewed for consistency with 
the general development standards and guidelines of the Countryside Specific Plan that 
are applicable to the proposed Project, including building intensity, building and parking 
setbacks, building height, amount of off-street parking and loading spaces, parking lot 
dimensions, design and landscaping, bicycle parking, on-site landscaping, and fences 
and walls, as-well-as those development standards and guidelines specifically related to 
the particular land use being proposed (residential). As a result of this review, the 
Development Advisory Board has determined that the Project, when implemented in 
conjunction with the conditions of approval, will be consistent with the development 
standards and guidelines described in the Countryside Specific Plan. 

 
SECTION 5: Development Advisory Board Action. Based on the findings and 

conclusions set forth in Sections 1 through 4, above, the DAB hereby recommends the 
Planning Commission APPROVES the Application subject to each and every condition set 
forth in the Conditions of Approval included as Attachment A of this Decision, and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

SECTION 6: Indemnification. The Applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and 
hold harmless, the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, 
action or proceeding against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to 
attack, set aside, void or annul this approval. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the 
applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall 
cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

SECTION 7: Custodian of Records. The documents and materials that constitute 
the record of proceedings on which these findings have been based are located at the 
City of Ontario City Hall, 303 East "B" Street, Ontario, California 91764. The custodian for 
these records is the City Clerk of the City of Ontario. The records are available for 
inspection by any interested person, upon request. 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - 
 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 15th day of May 2023. 
 
 
 
 
 

Development Advisory Chairman

Item D - 18 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 19 of 42 

Exhibit A: PROJECT LOCATION MAP 
 
 

Item D - 19 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 20 of 42 

Exhibit B-1: SITE PLAN 
 

 

Item D - 20 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 21 of 42 

Exhibit B-2: ENHANCED ELEVATION SITE PLAN 
 

  
 

Item D - 21 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 22 of 42 

Exhibit C: PARKING EXHIBIT 
 

 

Item D - 22 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 23 of 42 

 
Exhibit D-1: Front Elevations (Plan 1) 

 

 

Item D - 23 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 24 of 42 

 
Exhibit D-1: Floor Plan (Plan 1) 

 

 

Item D - 24 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 25 of 42 

Exhibit D-2: Front Elevations (Plan 2) 
 

 
 

Item D - 25 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 26 of 42 

Exhibit D-2: Floor Plan (Plan 2) 
 

 
 

Item D - 26 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 27 of 42 

Exhibit D-3: Front Elevations (Plan 3) 
 

 
 

Item D - 27 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 28 of 42 

Exhibit D-3: Floor Plan (Plan 3) 
 

 
 

Item D - 28 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 29 of 42 

Exhibit D-4: Front Elevations (Plan 4) 
 

 

 

Item D - 29 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 30 of 42 

Exhibit D-4: Floor Plan (Plan 4) 
 

 

Item D - 30 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 31 of 42 

Exhibit E: STREET SCENE 
 

 

 
  

Item D - 31 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 32 of 42 

Exhibit F-1: MATERIAL & COLOR SAMPLE BOARD – SPANISH ELEVATIONS 
 

 
 

  

Item D - 32 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 33 of 42 

Exhibit F-2: MATERIAL & COLOR SAMPLE BOARD – CRAFTSMAN ELEVATIONS 
 
 
 
 

  

Item D - 33 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 34 of 42 

Exhibit F-3: MATERIAL & COLOR SAMPLE BOARD – AMERICAN FARMHOUSE ELEVATIONS 
 

 
 

 
  

Item D - 34 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 35 of 42 

Exhibit G-1: LANDSCAPING PLANS 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item D - 35 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 36 of 42 

Exhibit G-2: PASEO ENLARGEMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item D - 36 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 37 of 42 

Exhibit G-3: PASEO AND DOG PARK SECTIONS 
 

 

Item D - 37 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 38 of 42 

Exhibit G-4: PLANT MATERIALS 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item D - 38 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 39 of 42 

Exhibit H: WALL PLAN 
 

  

Item D - 39 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 40 of 42 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A: Elevations and Floor Plans  
 

(Full set of Elevations and Floor Plans follow this page) 
  

Item D - 40 of 201



Item D - 41 of 201



Item D - 42 of 201



Item D - 43 of 201



Item D - 44 of 201



Item D - 45 of 201



Item D - 46 of 201



Item D - 47 of 201



Item D - 48 of 201



Item D - 49 of 201



Item D - 50 of 201



Item D - 51 of 201



Item D - 52 of 201



Item D - 53 of 201



Item D - 54 of 201



Item D - 55 of 201



Item D - 56 of 201



Item D - 57 of 201



Item D - 58 of 201



Item D - 59 of 201



Item D - 60 of 201



Item D - 61 of 201



Item D - 62 of 201



Item D - 63 of 201



Item D - 64 of 201



Item D - 65 of 201



Item D - 66 of 201



Item D - 67 of 201



Item D - 68 of 201



Item D - 69 of 201



Item D - 70 of 201



Item D - 71 of 201



Item D - 72 of 201



Item D - 73 of 201



Item D - 74 of 201



Item D - 75 of 201



Item D - 76 of 201



Item D - 77 of 201



Item D - 78 of 201



Item D - 79 of 201



Item D - 80 of 201



Item D - 81 of 201



Item D - 82 of 201



Item D - 83 of 201



Item D - 84 of 201



Item D - 85 of 201



Item D - 86 of 201



Item D - 87 of 201



Item D - 88 of 201



Item D - 89 of 201



Item D - 90 of 201



Item D - 91 of 201



Item D - 92 of 201



Item D - 93 of 201



Item D - 94 of 201



Item D - 95 of 201



Item D - 96 of 201



Item D - 97 of 201



Item D - 98 of 201



Item D - 99 of 201



Item D - 100 of 201



Item D - 101 of 201



Item D - 102 of 201



Item D - 103 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 41 of 42 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment B: Noise Impact Analysis 
 

(Noise Impact Analysis follow this page) 
  

Item D - 104 of 201



 

  

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Countryside 36 
NOISE IMPACT ANALYSIS 
CITY OF ONTARIO 
 
 
 
 
 
PREPARED BY: 
 
Bill Maddux 
bmaddux@urbanxroads.com 
(619) 778-1971 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MARCH 23, 2023 
 
 
 
15172-02 Noise Study 

  

Item D - 105 of 201



 

 

Item D - 106 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

TABLE OF CONTENTS ............................................................................................................................. I 
APPENDICES .......................................................................................................................................... I 
LIST OF EXHIBITS .................................................................................................................................. II 
LIST OF TABLES .................................................................................................................................... II 
LIST OF ABBREVIATED TERMS ............................................................................................................. III 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ......................................................................................................................... 1 
1 INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................................................... 5 

1.1 Site Location .................................................................................................................................. 5 
1.2 Project Description ........................................................................................................................ 5 

2 FUNDAMENTALS ......................................................................................................................... 9 

2.1 Range of Noise .............................................................................................................................. 9 
2.2 Noise Descriptors ........................................................................................................................ 10 
2.3 Sound Propagation ...................................................................................................................... 10 
2.4 Noise Control .............................................................................................................................. 11 
2.5 Noise Barrier Attenuation ........................................................................................................... 11 
2.6 Land Use Compatibility With Noise ............................................................................................ 12 
2.7 Community Response to Noise ................................................................................................... 12 
2.8 Vibration ..................................................................................................................................... 13 

3 REGULATORY SETTING .............................................................................................................. 15 

3.1 State of California Noise Requirements ...................................................................................... 15 
3.2 City of Ontario General Plan ....................................................................................................... 15 
3.6 Airport Land Use Compatibility ................................................................................................... 17 

4 METHODS AND PROCEDURES.................................................................................................... 21 

4.1 FHWA Traffic Noise Prediction Model ........................................................................................ 21 
4.2 On-Site Traffic Noise Prediction Model Inputs ........................................................................... 21 

5 ON-SITE TRAFFIC NOISE ANALYSIS ............................................................................................. 23 

5.1 Exterior Noise Analysis ................................................................................................................ 23 

6 REFERENCES .............................................................................................................................. 27 
7 CERTIFICATIONS ........................................................................................................................ 29 

 

APPENDICES 

APPENDIX 4.1:   DEVELOPMENT PLANS 
APPENDIX 5.1:  ON-SITE TRAFFIC NOISE CALCULATIONS 

 

  

Item D - 107 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

ii 

LIST OF EXHIBITS 

EXHIBIT ES-A:  SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS ............................................................................. 3 
EXHIBIT 1-A:  LOCATION MAP .............................................................................................................. 6 
EXHIBIT 1-B:  SITE PLAN........................................................................................................................ 7 
EXHIBIT 2-A:  TYPICAL NOISE LEVELS .................................................................................................... 9 
EXHIBIT 2-B:  NOISE LEVEL INCREASE PERCEPTION ............................................................................. 12 
EXHIBIT 2-C:  TYPICAL LEVELS OF GROUND-BORNE VIBRATION .......................................................... 14 
EXHIBIT 3-A:  NOISE LEVEL EXPOSURE AND LAND USE COMPATIBILITY GUIDELINES ........................... 16 
EXHIBIT 3-B:  ONT AIRPORT NOISE LEVEL CONTOURS ......................................................................... 18 
EXHIBIT 3-C:  CHINO AIRPORT NOISE LEVEL CONTOURS ..................................................................... 19 
EXHIBIT 5-1: NOISE RECEIVER LOCATIONS .......................................................................................... 24 

 

LIST OF TABLES 

Table 4-1:  On-Site Roadway Parameters ........................................................................................... 21 
Table 4-2:  Time Of Day Vehicle Splits ................................................................................................ 22 
Table 4-3:  Distribution Of Traffic Flow By Vehicle Type (Vehicle Mix) ................................................ 22 
TABLE 5-1:  FUTURE EXTERIOR NOISE LEVELS ..................................................................................... 23 
TABLE 5-2:  FIRST-FLOOR INTERIOR NOISE IMPACTS (CNEL) ................................................................ 26 
TABLE 5-3:  SECOND-FLOOR INTERIOR NOISE IMPACTS (CNEL) ........................................................... 26 

 

  

Item D - 108 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

iii 

 

LIST OF ABBREVIATED TERMS 

(1) Reference 

ADT Average Daily Traffic 

ANSI American National Standards Institute 

CEQA California Environmental Quality Act 

CNEL Community Noise Equivalent Level 

dBA A-weighted decibels 

EPA Environmental Protection Agency 

FHWA Federal Highway Administration 

FTA Federal Transit Administration 

Hz Hertz 

INCE Institute of Noise Control Engineering 

Leq Equivalent continuous (average) sound level 

Lmax Maximum level measured over the time interval 

Lmin Minimum level measured over the time interval 

OPR Office of Planning and Research 

PPV Peak particle velocity 

Project Countryside 36 

REMEL Reference Energy Mean Emission Level 

RMS Root-mean-square 

VdB Vibration Decibels 

  

Item D - 109 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

iv 

This page intentionally left blank 

Item D - 110 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

1 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Urban Crossroads, Inc. has prepared this noise study to determine the noise exposure and the 
necessary noise abatement measures for the proposed residential development Countryside 36 
(“Project”).  The Project site is generally located west of Archibald Avenue, north of Schaeffer 
Avenue and south of Chino Avenue, in the City of Ontario.  It is our understanding that the Project 
consists of the development of 36 single family residential lots.  This noise impact analysis was 
prepared to verify the City of Ontario noise level standards are complied with and identify 
adequate noise abatement measures, as necessary, for incorporation into the Project’s design.  
All recommendations for exterior and interior noise abatement are identified based on the latest 
Project site plans. 

EXTERIOR NOISE ABATEMENT 

To satisfy the City of Ontario 65 dBA CNEL exterior noise level standard for residential land uses, 
outdoor living areas (backyards) of all lots adjacent to Archibald Avenue will require a minimum 
8-foot-high noise barrier.  The noise barrier height recommendations represent the minimum 
wall and/or berm combination height required to satisfy the City of Ontario exterior noise level 
standards. With the recommended noise barriers shown on Exhibit ES-A, the future exterior noise 
levels will range from 64.6 to 64.8 dBA CNEL in outdoor living areas (backyards).  Therefore, the 
recommended noise barriers will satisfy the City of Ontario 65 dBA CNEL exterior noise level 
standards for residential land uses and impacts will be less than significant.   

The recommended noise control barriers shall be constructed so that the top of each wall and 
/or berm combination extends to the planned height above the pad elevation of the lot it is 
shielding.  When the road is elevated above the pad elevation, the barrier shall extend to the 
recommended height above the highest point between the residential home and the road.  The 
barrier shall provide a weight of at least 4 pounds per square foot of face area with no decorative 
cutouts or line-of-sight openings between shielded areas and the roadways. All gaps (except for 
weep holes) should be filled with grout or caulking. (1)  The noise barrier shall be constructed 
using the following materials: 

 Masonry block; 

 Stucco veneer over wood framing (or foam core), or 1-inch-thick tongue and groove wood of 
sufficient weight per square foot; 

 Glass (1/4-inch-thick), or other transparent material with sufficient weight per square foot 
capable of providing a minimum transmission loss of 20 dBA; 

 Earthen berm; 

 Any combination of these construction materials; or,  

 Any material with a minimum transmission loss of 20 dBA. 

Item D - 111 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

2 

INTERIOR NOISE ABATEMENT 

Typical building construction will provide a Noise Reduction (NR) of approximately 12 dBA with 
"windows open" and a minimum 25 dBA noise reduction with "windows closed." (2) (3)  To satisfy 
the City of Ontario 45 dBA CNEL interior noise level criteria, first-floor receivers on lots adjacent 
to Archibald Avenue will require a Noise Reduction (NR) of up to 19.8 dBA.  To satisfy the City of 
Ontario 45 dBA CNEL interior noise level criteria, second story receivers on lots adjacent to 
Archibald Avenue will require a Noise Reduction (NR) of up to 29.7 dBA.  To meet the City of 
Ontario 45 dBA CNEL interior noise standards for residential land use the Project shall provide 
the following or equivalent noise abatement measures: 

 Windows & Glass Doors:  First story facades on lots adjacent to Archibald Avenue require windows 
and glass doors with well-fitted, well-weather-stripped assemblies with minimum sound 
transmission class (STC) ratings of 27 and a means of mechanical ventilation (e.g. air conditioning). 
Second Story facades on lots adjacent to Archibald Avenue require windows and glass doors with 
well-fitted, well-weather-stripped assemblies with minimum STC ratings of 32 and a means of 
mechanical ventilation (e.g. air conditioning).   

 Doors (Non-Glass):  All exterior doors shall be well weather-stripped.  Well-sealed perimeter gaps 
around the doors are essential to achieve the optimal STC rating. (4) 

 Walls:  At any penetrations of exterior walls by pipes, ducts, or conduits, the space between the 
wall and pipes, ducts, or conduits shall be caulked or filled with mortar to form an airtight seal. 

 Roof:  Roof sheathing of wood construction shall be per manufacturer’s specification or caulked 
plywood of at least one-half inch thick. Ceilings shall be per manufacturer’s specification or well-
sealed gypsum board of at least one-half inch thick. Insulation with at least a rating of R-19 shall 
be used in the attic space.  

 Ventilation:  Arrangements for any habitable room shall be such that any exterior door or window 
can be kept closed when the room is in use and still receive circulated air. A forced air circulation 
system (e.g. air conditioning) or active ventilation system (e.g. fresh air supply) shall be provided 
which satisfies the requirements of the Uniform Building Code. 

With the interior noise abatement measures provided in this study, the proposed Project is 
expected to satisfy the City of Ontario 45 dBA CNEL interior noise level standards for residential 
development. 

  

Item D - 112 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

3 

EXHIBIT ES-A:  SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

  

Item D - 113 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

4 

This page intentionally left blank   

Item D - 114 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

5 

1 INTRODUCTION 

This noise analysis has been completed to determine the noise impacts associated with the 
development of the proposed Countryside 36 (“Project”).  This noise study briefly describes the 
proposed Project, provides information regarding noise fundamentals, sets out the local 
regulatory setting, presents the study methods and procedures for noise analysis, and evaluates 
the future exterior noise environment.  In addition, this study includes an analysis of the potential 
Project-related long-term stationary-source operational noise and short-term construction noise 
and vibration impacts. 

1.1 SITE LOCATION 

The Project site is generally located west of Archibald Avenue, north of Schaeffer Avenue and 
south of Chino Avenue City of Ontario, as shown on Exhibit 1-A.  The Ontario International Airport 
(ONT) is located approximately 3 miles north of the Project site and Chino Airport is located 
approximately 2.7 miles southwest of the Project site. 

1.2 PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The Project consists of the development of 36 single family residential lots, as shown on Exhibit 
1-B.   

Item D - 115 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

6 

EXHIBIT 1-A:  LOCATION MAP 

 

 

Item D - 116 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

7 

EXHIBIT 1-B:  SITE PLAN 

 

  

Item D - 117 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

8 

This page intentionally left blank   

Item D - 118 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

9 

2 FUNDAMENTALS 

Noise is simply defined as "unwanted sound."  Sound becomes unwanted when it interferes with 
normal activities, when it causes actual physical harm or when it has adverse effects on health.  
Noise is measured on a logarithmic scale of sound pressure level known as a decibel (dB).  A-
weighted decibels (dBA) approximate the subjective response of the human ear to broad 
frequency noise source by discriminating against very low and very high frequencies of the 
audible spectrum.  They are adjusted to reflect only those frequencies which are audible to the 
human ear.  Exhibit 2-A presents a summary of the typical noise levels and their subjective 
loudness and effects that are described in more detail below. 

EXHIBIT 2-A:  TYPICAL NOISE LEVELS 

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency Office of Noise Abatement and Control, Information on Levels of Environmental Noise 
Requisite to Protect Public Health and Welfare with an Adequate Margin of Safety (EPA/ONAC 550/9-74-004) March 1974. 

2.1 RANGE OF NOISE 

Since the range of intensities that the human ear can detect is so large, the scale frequently used 
to measure intensity is a scale based on multiples of 10, the logarithmic scale.  The scale for 
measuring intensity is the decibel scale.  Each interval of 10 decibels indicates a sound energy ten 
times greater than before, which is perceived by the human ear as being roughly twice as loud. 
(5) The most common sounds vary between 40 dBA (very quiet) to 100 dBA (very loud).  Normal 
conversation at three feet is roughly at 60 dBA, while loud jet engine noises equate to 110 dBA 

Item D - 119 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

10 

at approximately 1,000 feet, which can cause serious discomfort. (6)  Another important aspect 
of noise is the duration of the sound and the way it is described and distributed in time.   

2.2 NOISE DESCRIPTORS 

Environmental noise descriptors are generally based on averages, rather than instantaneous, 
noise levels.  The most used metric is the equivalent level (Leq).  Equivalent sound levels are not 
measured directly but are calculated from sound pressure levels typically measured in A-
weighted decibels (dBA).  The equivalent sound level (Leq) represents a steady state sound level 
containing the same total energy as a time varying signal over a given sample period and is 
commonly used to describe the “average” noise levels within the environment. 

Peak hour or average noise levels, while useful, do not completely describe a given noise 
environment.  Noise levels lower than peak hour may be disturbing if they occur during times 
when quiet is most desirable, namely evening and nighttime (sleeping) hours.  To account for 
this, the Community Noise Equivalent Level (CNEL), representing a composite 24-hour noise level 
is utilized.  The CNEL is the weighted average of the intensity of a sound, with corrections for time 
of day, and averaged over 24 hours.  The time-of-day corrections require the addition of 5 
decibels to dBA Leq sound levels in the evening from 7:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m., and the addition of 
10 decibels to dBA Leq sound levels at night between 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m.  These additions 
are made to account for the noise sensitive time periods during the evening and night hours 
when noise can become more intrusive.  CNEL does not represent the actual sound level heard 
at any time, but rather represents the total sound exposure.  The City of Ontario relies on the 24-
hour CNEL level to assess land use compatibility with transportation related noise sources. 

2.3 SOUND PROPAGATION 

When sound propagates over a distance, it changes in level and frequency content.  The way 
noise reduces with distance depends on the following factors. 

2.3.1 GEOMETRIC SPREADING 

Sound from a localized source (i.e., a stationary point source) propagates uniformly outward in a 
spherical pattern.  The sound level attenuates (or decreases) at a rate of 6 dB for each doubling 
of distance from a point source.  Highways consist of several localized noise sources on a defined 
path and hence can be treated as a line source, which approximates the effect of several point 
sources.  Noise from a line source propagates outward in a cylindrical pattern, often referred to 
as cylindrical spreading.  Sound levels attenuate at a rate of 3 dB for each doubling of distance 
from a line source. (5) 

2.3.2 GROUND ABSORPTION 

The propagation path of noise from a highway to a receiver is usually very close to the ground. 
Noise attenuation from ground absorption and reflective wave canceling adds to the attenuation 
associated with geometric spreading.  Traditionally, the excess attenuation has also been 
expressed in terms of attenuation per doubling of distance.  This approximation is usually 

Item D - 120 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

11 

sufficiently accurate for distances of less than 200 ft.  For acoustically hard sites (i.e., sites with a 
reflective surface between the source and the receiver, such as a parking lot or body of water), 
no excess ground attenuation is assumed.  For acoustically absorptive or soft sites (i.e., those 
sites with an absorptive ground surface between the source and the receiver such as soft dirt, 
grass, or scattered bushes and trees), an excess ground attenuation value of 1.5 dB per doubling 
of distance is normally assumed. When added to the cylindrical spreading, the excess ground 
attenuation results in an overall drop-off rate of 4.5 dB per doubling of distance from a line 
source. (7) 

2.3.3 ATMOSPHERIC EFFECTS 

Receivers located downwind from a source can be exposed to increased noise levels relative to 
calm conditions, whereas locations upwind can have lowered noise levels.  Sound levels can be 
increased at large distances (e.g., more than 500 feet) due to atmospheric temperature inversion 
(i.e., increasing temperature with elevation).  Other factors such as air temperature, humidity, 
and turbulence can also have significant effects. (5) 

2.3.4 SHIELDING  

A large object or barrier in the path between a noise source and a receiver can substantially 
attenuate noise levels at the receiver.  The amount of attenuation provided by shielding depends 
on the size of the object and the frequency content of the noise source.  Shielding by trees and 
other such vegetation typically only has an “out of sight, out of mind” effect.  That is, the 
perception of noise impact tends to decrease when vegetation blocks the line-of-sight to nearby 
residents.  However, for vegetation to provide a substantial, or even noticeable, noise reduction, 
the vegetation area must be at least 15 feet in height, 100 feet wide and dense enough to 
completely obstruct the line-of-sight between the source and the receiver.  This size of vegetation 
may provide up to 5 dBA of noise reduction.  The Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) does 
not consider the planting of vegetation to be a noise abatement measure. (8) 

2.4 NOISE CONTROL 

Noise control is the process of obtaining an acceptable noise environment for an observation 
point or receiver by controlling the noise source, transmission path, receiver, or all three.  This 
concept is known as the source-path-receiver concept.  In general, noise control measures can 
be applied to these three elements. 

2.5 NOISE BARRIER ATTENUATION 

Effective noise barriers can reduce noise levels by 10 to 15 dBA, cutting the loudness of traffic 
noise in half.  A noise barrier is most effective when placed close to the noise source or receiver.  
Noise barriers, however, do have limitations.  For a noise barrier to work, it must block the line-
of-sight path of sound from the noise source. 

Item D - 121 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

12 

2.6 LAND USE COMPATIBILITY WITH NOISE 

Some land uses are more tolerant of noise than others.  For example, schools, hospitals, 
churches, and residences are more sensitive to noise intrusion than are commercial or industrial 
developments and related activities.  As ambient noise levels affect the perceived amenity or 
livability of a development, so too can the mismanagement of noise impacts impair the economic 
health and growth potential of a community by reducing the area’s desirability as a place to live, 
shop and work.  For this reason, land use compatibility with the noise environment is an 
important consideration in the planning and design process.  The FHWA encourages State and 
Local government to regulate land development in such a way that noise-sensitive land uses are 
either prohibited from being located adjacent to a highway, or that the developments are 
planned, designed, and constructed in such a way that noise impacts are minimized. (9) 

2.7 COMMUNITY RESPONSE TO NOISE 

Approximately sixteen percent of the population has a very low tolerance for noise and will object 
to any noise not of their making.  Consequently, even in the quietest environment, some 
complaints may occur.  Twenty to thirty percent of the population will not complain even in very 
severe noise environments. (10 pp. 8-6)  Thus, a variety of reactions can be expected from people 
exposed to any given noise environment. 

Surveys have shown that community response to noise varies from no reaction to vigorous action 
for newly introduced noises averaging from 10 dB below existing to 25 dB above existing. (11)  
According to research originally published in the Noise Effects Handbook (10), the percentage of 
high annoyance ranges from approximately 0 percent at 45 dB or less, 10 percent are highly 
annoyed around 60 dB, and increases rapidly to approximately 70 percent being highly annoyed 
at approximately 85 dB or greater.  Despite this variability in behavior on an individual level, the 
population can be expected to exhibit the following responses to changes in noise levels as shown 
on Exhibit 2-B.  A change of 3 dBA is considered barely perceptible, and changes of 5 dBA are 
considered readily perceptible. (7) 

EXHIBIT 2-B:  NOISE LEVEL INCREASE PERCEPTION 

 

  

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Just Perceptible

Barely Perceptible

Readily Perceptible

Twice as Loud

Noise Level Increase (dBA)

Item D - 122 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

13 

2.8 VIBRATION 

Per the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Transit Noise Impact and Vibration Impact 
Assessment Manual (11) , vibration is the periodic oscillation of a medium or object.  The 
rumbling sound caused by the vibration of room surfaces is called structure-borne noise.  Sources 
of ground-borne vibrations include natural phenomena (e.g., earthquakes, volcanic eruptions, 
sea waves, landslides) or human-made causes (e.g., explosions, machinery, traffic, trains, 
construction equipment).  Vibration sources may be continuous, such as factory machinery, or 
transient, such as explosions.  As is the case with airborne sound, ground-borne vibrations may 
be described by amplitude and frequency. 

There are several different methods that are used to quantify vibration.  The peak particle 
velocity (PPV) is defined as the maximum instantaneous peak of the vibration signal. The PPV is 
most frequently used to describe vibration impacts to buildings but is not always suitable for 
evaluating human response (annoyance) because it takes some time for the human body to 
respond to vibration signals.  Instead, the human body responds to average vibration amplitude 
often described as the root mean square (RMS).  The RMS amplitude is defined as the average of 
the squared amplitude of the signal and is most frequently used to describe the effect of vibration 
on the human body.  Decibel notation (VdB) is commonly used to measure RMS.  Decibel notation 
(VdB) serves to reduce the range of numbers used to describe human response to vibration.  
Typically, ground-borne vibration generated by man-made activities attenuates rapidly with 
distance from the source of the vibration.  Sensitive receivers for vibration include structures 
(especially older masonry structures), people (especially residents, the elderly, and sick), and 
vibration-sensitive equipment and/or activities. 

The background vibration-velocity level in residential areas is generally 50 VdB.  Ground-borne 
vibration is normally perceptible to humans at approximately 65 VdB.  For most people, a 
vibration-velocity level of 75 VdB is the approximate dividing line between barely perceptible and 
distinctly perceptible levels.  Typical outdoor sources of perceptible ground-borne vibration are 
construction equipment, steel-wheeled trains, and traffic on rough roads.  If a roadway is smooth, 
the ground-borne vibration is rarely perceptible.  The range of interest is from approximately 50 
VdB, which is the typical background vibration-velocity level, to 100 VdB, which is the general 
threshold where minor damage can occur in fragile buildings.  Exhibit 2-C illustrates common 
vibration sources and the human and structural response to ground-borne vibration. 

Item D - 123 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

14 

EXHIBIT 2-C:  TYPICAL LEVELS OF GROUND-BORNE VIBRATION 

 

Source:  Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment Manual.  

Item D - 124 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

15 

3 REGULATORY SETTING 

The federal government, the State of California, various county governments, and most 
municipalities in the state have established standards and ordinances to control noise.  In most 
areas, automobile and truck traffic is the major source of environmental noise.  Traffic activity 
generally produces an average sound level that remains constant with time.  Air and rail traffic, 
and commercial and industrial activities are also major sources of noise in some areas.  Federal, 
state, and local agencies regulate different aspects of environmental noise.  Federal and state 
agencies generally set noise standards for mobile sources such as aircraft and motor vehicles, 
while regulation of stationary sources is left to local agencies. 

3.1 STATE OF CALIFORNIA NOISE REQUIREMENTS 

The State of California regulates freeway noise, sets standards for sound transmission, provides 
occupational noise control criteria, identifies noise standards, and provides guidance for local 
land use compatibility.  State law requires that each county and city adopt a General Plan that 
includes a Noise Element which is to be prepared per guidelines adopted by the Governor’s Office 
of Planning and Research (OPR). (12)  The purpose of the Noise Element is to limit the exposure 
of the community to excessive noise levels.  In addition, the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) requires that all known environmental effects of a project be analyzed, including 
environmental noise impacts. 

3.2 CITY OF ONTARIO GENERAL PLAN  

The City of Ontario General Plan (Policy Plan) identifies several policies to minimize the impacts 
of excessive noise levels throughout the community.  Policy Plan Section S4, Noise Hazards, 
establishes a goal of maintaining an environment where noise does not adversely affect the 
public’s health, safety, and welfare. (13)  To satisfy this goal, the Policy Plan identifies six policies 
related to: noise mitigation; coordination with transportation authorities; airport noise 
mitigation; truck traffic; roadway design; and airport noise compatibility.  Noise criteria identified 
In The Ontario Plan 2050 (TOP 2050) Table LU-7 provides guidelines to evaluate land use 
compatibility within various noise environments.  Table LU-7 is reproduced here as Exhibit 3-A 
Noise Level Exposure and Land Use Compatibility Guidelines.  The Project residential land uses 
are considered clearly acceptable within exterior noise level environments approaching 60 dBA 
CNEL and normally acceptable within noise level environments up to 65 dBA CNEL.  For noise 
level environments greater than 70 dBA CNEL, the Project land uses would be considered clearly 
unacceptable and no new construction should be permitted. 

  

Item D - 125 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

16 

EXHIBIT 3-A:  NOISE LEVEL EXPOSURE AND LAND USE COMPATIBILITY GUIDELINES 

 

Source: The Ontario Plan Safety Section on Noise Hazards (Table LU-7). 

  

Item D - 126 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

17 

3.6 AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY 

The Project site is located approximately 3 miles south of the Ontario International Airport (ONT).  
This places the Project site within the ONT Airport Influence Area according to Policy Map 2-1 of 
the Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ONT ALUCP). The ONT ALUCP was 
amended July 2018 to promote compatibility between airport and the land uses that surround it 
(14).  Since the Project site is located within the ONT Airport Influence Area, the Project is subject 
to the Noise Criteria established on Table 2-3 in the ONT ALUCP.  As shown on Exhibit 3-B, the 
Project site is located within the ONT Airport Influence Area but outside the 60 dBA CNEL airport 
noise impact zone consistent with Policy Map 2-3.  According to Table 2-3 of the ONT ALUCP, 
residential land uses and schools located outside the 60 dBA CNEL noise level contours of ONT, 
such as the Project, are considered normally compatible land use.  For normally compatible land 
use, either the activities associated with the land use are inherently noisy or standard 
construction methods will sufficiently attenuate exterior noise to an acceptable indoor 
community noise equivalent level (CNEL). 

The Project site is located approximately 2.7 miles northeast of the Chino Airport (CNO).  This 
places the Project site within the Chino Airport Influence Area according to Figure 1-4 Airport 
Referral Areas of the Comprehensive Land Use Plan for the Chino Airport.  As shown on Exhibit 3-
C, the Project site is outside the 60 dBA CNEL airport noise level contour and impacts would be 
less than significant. 

  

Item D - 127 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

18 

EXHIBIT 3-B:  ONT AIRPORT NOISE LEVEL CONTOURS  

 

Item D - 128 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

19 

EXHIBIT 3-C:  CHINO AIRPORT NOISE LEVEL CONTOURS  

 

  

Item D - 129 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

20 

This page intentionally left blank   

Item D - 130 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

21 

4 METHODS AND PROCEDURES 

The following section outlines the methods and procedures used to model and analyze the future 
traffic noise environment. 

  4.1 FHWA TRAFFIC NOISE PREDICTION MODEL 

The estimated roadway noise impacts from vehicular traffic were calculated using a computer 
program that replicates the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) Traffic Noise Prediction 
Model- FHWA-RD-77-108. (15)  The FHWA Model arrives at a predicted noise level through a 
series of adjustments to the Reference Energy Mean Emission Level (REMEL).  In California the 
national REMELs are substituted with the California Vehicle Noise (Calveno) Emission Levels. (16)  
Adjustments are then made to the REMEL to account for: the roadway classification (e.g., 
collector, secondary, major or arterial), the roadway active width (i.e., the distance between the 
center of the outermost travel lanes on each side of the roadway), the total average daily traffic 
(ADT), the travel speed, the percentages of automobiles, medium trucks, and heavy trucks in the 
traffic volume, the roadway grade, the angle of view (e.g., whether the roadway view is blocked), 
the site conditions ("hard" or "soft" relates to the absorption of the ground, pavement, or 
landscaping), and the percentage of total ADT which flows each hour throughout a 24-hour 
period. 

4.2 ON-SITE TRAFFIC NOISE PREDICTION MODEL INPUTS 

The on-site roadway parameters including the average daily traffic (ADT) volumes used for this 
study are presented on Table 4-1.  Based on the City of Ontario General Plan, Figure M-01: 
Roadway Classifications, Archibald Avenue is classified as a 6-lane Principal Arterial. (17)  The 
maximum two-way traffic volumes at a level of service C, shown on Table 4-1, reflects future 
long-range traffic conditions needed to assess the on-site traffic noise environment and to 
identify the appropriate noise mitigation measures that address the worst-case future noise 
conditions. 

TABLE 4-1:  ON-SITE ROADWAY PARAMETERS 

Roadway Lanes Classification1 
Design 

Capacity2 
Speeds  
(MPH)3 

Site  
Conditions 

Archibald Avenue 6 Principal Arterial 42,000 50 Soft 
1 Road classifications based upon the City of Ontario Mobility Element Figure M-01. 

2 LOS C design capacity traffic volumes.  

3 Speed Limits 

Table 4-2 presents the time-of-day vehicle splits by vehicle type used to develop the 24-hour 
CNEL, and Table 4-3 presents the total traffic flow distributions (vehicle mixes) used for this 
analysis.  The information in Tables 4-2 and 4-3 provides the hourly distribution percentages of 
automobile, medium trucks, and heavy trucks for input into the FHWA Model based on roadway 
types. 

Item D - 131 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

22 

TABLE 4-2:  TIME OF DAY VEHICLE SPLITS 

Vehicle Type 
Time of Day Splits1 Total of Time 

of 
Day Splits Daytime Evening Nighttime 

Autos 77.50% 12.90% 9.60% 100.00% 

Medium Trucks 84.80% 4.90% 10.30% 100.00% 

Heavy Trucks 86.50% 2.70% 10.80% 100.00% 
1 Typical Southern California time of day vehicle splits. 
"Daytime" = 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m.; "Evening" = 7:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m.; "Nighttime" = 10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. 

TABLE 4-3:  DISTRIBUTION OF TRAFFIC FLOW BY VEHICLE TYPE (VEHICLE MIX) 

Roadway 
Total % Traffic Flow 

Total 
Autos Medium Trucks Heavy Trucks 

All Roadways 97.42% 1.84% 0.74% 100.00% 

Source: Typical Southern California vehicle mix. 

To predict the future noise environment at each lot within the Project site, coordinate 
information was collected to identify the noise transmission path between the noise source and 
receiver.  The coordinate information is based on the Project site plan showing the plotting of 
each lot, as shown in Appendix 4.1.  The site plan is used to identify the relationship between the 
roadway centerline elevation, the pad elevation and the centerline distance to the noise barrier, 
and the building façade.  The first-floor exterior noise level receivers were placed five feet above 
the pad elevation. Second-floor receivers were placed 14 feet above the pad elevation. 

  

Item D - 132 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

23 

5 ON-SITE TRAFFIC NOISE ANALYSIS 

An on-site exterior noise impact analysis has been completed to determine the noise exposure 
levels that would result from adjacent transportation noise sources in the Project study area, and 
to identify potential noise mitigation measures that would achieve acceptable Project exterior 
and interior noise levels.  The primary source of transportation noise affecting the Project site is 
anticipated to be from Archibald Avenue.  The Project would also be exposed to nominal traffic 
noise from the Project’s internal roads.  However, due to the low traffic volume/speed, traffic 
noise from these internal roads will not make a substantive contribution to ambient noise 
conditions.   

5.1 EXTERIOR NOISE ANALYSIS 

Using the FHWA traffic noise prediction model and the parameters outlined in Tables 4-1 to 4-3, 
the expected future exterior noise levels for the on-site Project land uses were calculated at the 
receiver locations shown in Exhibit 5-1.  Table 5-1 presents a summary of future on-site exterior 
traffic noise levels in the outdoor living areas (backyards) within the Project site.  Archibald 
Avenue is the primary traffic noise source affecting the Project site.  As indicated in Table 5-1, 
the outdoor living areas adjacent to Archibald Avenue will experience unshielded exterior noise 
levels of 75.1 dBA CNEL, which will exceed the City of Ontario exterior noise level standard of 65 
dBA CNEL.  The on-site traffic noise analysis calculations are provided in Appendix 5.1. 

To satisfy the City of Ontario exterior noise level standards for single-family residential land uses 
at outdoor living areas adjacent to Archibald Avenue, the construction of a noise barrier is 
recommended.  As indicated in Table 5-1. with a minimum 8-foot-high noise barrier shielding the 
outdoor living areas (backyards) of all lots adjacent to Archibald Avenue, the Project would satisfy 
the City of Ontario exterior noise level standard of 65 dBA CNEL for residential land uses.  With 
the recommended noise barriers shown on Exhibit ES-A, the future exterior noise levels at the 
residential lots will range from 64.6 dBA to 64.8 dBA CNEL in all outdoor living areas (backyards).  
This noise analysis shows that the recommended noise barriers will satisfy the City of Ontario 
65 dBA CNEL exterior noise level standard for residential land uses. 

TABLE 5-1:  FUTURE EXTERIOR NOISE LEVELS 

Receivers Lots Roadway 
Unmitigated 
Noise Level  
(dBA CNEL) 

Mitigated  
Noise Level  
(dBA CNEL) 

Barrier 
Height 
(Feet) 

 1 and 2  11 and 12 Archibald Avenue 75.1 64.7 8.0 

 3 and 4  13 and 14 Archibald Avenue 75.1 64.6 8.0 

 5 and 6  35 and 36 Archibald Avenue 75.1 64.8 8.0 
1 Exterior noise level calculations are included Appendix 5.1. 

  

Item D - 133 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

24 

EXHIBIT 5-1: NOISE RECEIVER LOCATIONS 

 

  

Item D - 134 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

25 

5.2 ON-SITE INTERIOR NOISE ANALYSIS 

As indicated in Table 5-1, lots adjacent to Archibald Avenue are predicted to experience noise 
levels in excess of 60 dBA CNEL.  Based on the City of Ontario land use compatibility guidelines, 
noise levels in excess of 60 dBA CNEL should complete a noise analysis to identify any necessary 
insultation of structural upgrades to comply with a 45 dBA CNEL interior noise level standard.  
Traffic noise levels were calculated at the first and second floor building façades to verify that the 
interior noise levels will comply with the City of Ontario 45 dBA CNEL interior noise standards. 

5.2.1 NOISE REDUCTION METHODOLOGY  

The interior noise level is the difference between the predicted exterior noise level at the building 
facade and the noise reduction of the structure.  Typical building construction will provide a Noise 
Reduction (NR) of approximately 12 dBA with "windows open" and a minimum 25 dBA noise 
reduction with "windows closed." (7) (3)  However, sound leaks, cracks and openings within the 
window assembly can greatly diminish its effectiveness in reducing noise.  Several methods are 
used to improve interior noise reduction, including: [1] weather-stripped solid core exterior 
doors; [2] upgraded dual glazed windows; [3] mechanical ventilation/air conditioning; and [4] 
exterior wall/roof assembles free of cut outs or openings. 

5.2.2 INTERIOR NOISE LEVEL ASSESSMENT 

Table 5-2 shows that the future noise levels at the first-floor building façades are expected to 
range from 64.6 dBA to 64.8 dBA CNEL.  Table 5-2 shows that the residential units would comply 
with the City of Ontario 45 dBA CNEL interior noise standard applying standard construction 
practices with a means of mechanical ventilation (e.g. air conditioning) and standard windows 
for residential lots adjacent to Archibald Avenue at first floor receivers when accounting for the 
recommended noise barrier discussed above. 

Table 5-3 shows that the future noise levels at second floor building façades of residential units 
are expected to range from 74.6 dBA to 74.7 dBA CNEL.  Table 5-3 shows that the residential units 
would not comply with the 45 dBA CNEL interior noise standard applying standard construction 
practices with a windows-closed condition and a means of mechanical ventilation (e.g. air 
conditioning) for residential lots adjacent to Archibald Avenue at second-floor receivers.  Second-
floor building facades adjacent to Archibald Avenue would require a windows closed condition 
requiring a means of mechanical ventilation (e.g. air conditioning) and windows with a minimum 
STC rating of 30 to satisfy City of Ontario interior noise standard of 45 dBA CNEL. 

Therefore, the interior noise analysis shows that with the recommended interior noise 
abatement measures for second-floor facades adjacent to Archibald Avenue described in the 
Executive Summary, the Project will satisfy the City of Ontario 45 dBA CNEL interior noise level 
standards for residential development.  

  

Item D - 135 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

26 

TABLE 5-2:  FIRST-FLOOR INTERIOR NOISE IMPACTS (CNEL) 

Receivers Building/Lot 
Noise 
Level  

at Façade1 

Required 
Interior 

NR2 

Estimated 
Interior 

NR3 

Upgraded  
Windows4 

Interior 
Noise 
Level5 

Threshold6 
Threshold 
Exceeded? 

 1 and 2  11 and 12 64.7 19.7 25.0 No 39.7 45 No 

 3 and 4  13 and 14 64.6 19.6 25.0 No 39.6 45 No 

 5 and 6  35 and 36 64.8 19.8 25.0 No 39.8 45 No 
1 Exterior noise level at the facade with a windows closed condition requiring a means of mechanical ventilation (e.g. air conditioning). 
2 Noise reduction required to satisfy the 45 dBA CNEL interior noise standards. 
3 Estimated minimum interior noise reduction. 
4 Does the required interior noise reduction trigger upgraded with a minimum STC rating of greater than 27? 
5 Estimated interior noise level with minimum STC rating for all windows. 
"NR" = Noise reduction 

TABLE 5-3:  SECOND-FLOOR INTERIOR NOISE IMPACTS (CNEL) 

Receivers Building/Lot 
Noise 
Level  

at Façade1 

Required 
Interior 

NR2 

Estimated 
Interior 

NR3 

Upgraded  
Windows4 

Interior 
Noise 
Level5 

Threshold6 
Threshold 
Exceeded? 

 1 and 2  11 and 12 74.6 29.6 25.0 No 49.6 45 Yes 

 3 and 4  13 and 14 74.6 29.6 25.0 No 49.6 45 Yes 

 5 and 6  35 and 36 74.7 29.7 25.0 No 49.7 45 Yes 
1 Exterior noise level at the facade with a windows closed condition requiring a means of mechanical ventilation (e.g. air conditioning). 
2 Noise reduction required to satisfy the 45 dBA CNEL interior noise standards. 
3 Estimated minimum interior noise reduction. 
4 Does the required interior noise reduction trigger upgraded with a minimum STC rating of greater than 27? 
5 Estimated interior noise level with minimum STC rating for all windows. 
"NR" = Noise reduction 

  

Item D - 136 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

27 

6 REFERENCES 

1. U.S. Department of Transportation Federal Highway Administration. Acoustical Consideration. Noise 
Barrier Design Handbook. [Online] [Cited: November 28, 2016.] 
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/noise/noise_barriers/design_construction/design/design0
3.cfm. 

2. U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration, Office of Environment and 
Planning, Noise and Air Quality Branch. Highway Traffic Noise Analysis and Abatement Policy and 
Guidance. December 2011. 

3. California Department of Transportation. Traffic Noise Analysis Protocol. May 2011. 

4. Harris, Cyril M. Noise Control in Buildings. s.l. : McGraw-Hill, Inc., 1994. 

5. California Department of Transportation Environmental Program. Technical Noise Supplement - A 
Technical Supplement to the Traffic Noise Analysis Protocol. Sacramento, CA : s.n., September 2013. 

6. Environmental Protection Agency Office of Noise Abatement and Control. Information on Levels of 
Environmental Noise Requisite to Protect Public Health and Welfare with an Adequate Margin of 
Safety. March 1974. EPA/ONAC 550/9/74-004. 

7. U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration, Office of Environment and 
Planning, Noise and Air Quality Branch. Highway Traffic Noise Analysis and Abatement Policy and 
Guidance. December 2011. 

8. U.S. Department of Transportation Federal Highway Administration. Highway Noise Barrier Design 
Handbook. 2001. 

9. U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration. Highway Traffic Noise in the 
United States, Problem and Response. April 2000. p. 3. 

10. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Office of Noise Abatement and Control. Noise Effects 
Handbook-A Desk Reference to Health and Welfare Effects of Noise. October 1979 (revised July 1981). 
EPA 550/9/82/106. 

11. U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration. Transit Noise and Vibration 
Impact Assessment Manual. September 2018. 

12. Office of Planning and Research. State of California General Plan Guidlines. October 2019. 

13. City of Ontario. The Ontario Plan Safety Section, S4, Noise Hazards. March 2014. 

14. —. Ontario International Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. July 2018. 

15. U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration. FHWA Highway Traffic Noise 
Prediction Model. December 1978. FHWA-RD-77-108. 

16. California Department of Transportation Environmental Program, Office of Environmental 
Engineering. Use of California Vehicle Noise Reference Energy Mean Emission Levels (Calveno REMELs) 
in FHWA Highway Traffic Noise Prediction. September 1995. TAN 95-03. 

17. City of Ontario. The Ontario Plan 2050. 2022. 

 

  

Item D - 137 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

28 

This page intentionally left blank   

Item D - 138 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

29 

7 CERTIFICATIONS 

The contents of this noise study report represent an accurate depiction of the noise environment 
and impacts associated with the proposed Countryside 36 Project.  The information contained in 
this noise study report is based on the best available data at the time of preparation. If you have 
any questions, please contact me directly at (619) 788-1971. 

 

William Maddux 
Senior Associate 
URBAN CROSSROADS, INC. 
(619) 788-1971 
bmaddux@urbanxroads.com 

EDUCATION 

Bachelor of Science in Urban and Regional Planning 
California Polytechnic State University, Pomona • June 2000 

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS 

ASA – Acoustical Society of America  
AEP – Association of Environmental Planners 
AWMA – Air and Waste Management Association  
INCE – Institute of Noise Control Engineers 

PROFESSIONAL CERTIFICATIONS 

Approved Acoustical Consultant • County of San Diego 
FHWA Traffic Noise Model of Training • November 2004 
CadnaA Basic and Advanced Training Certificate • October 2008. 
  

Item D - 139 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

30 

This page intentionally left blank 

Item D - 140 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

 

APPENDIX 4.1:  
 

DEVELOPMENT PLANS   

31
Item D - 141 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

 

This page intentionally left blank  

32
Item D - 142 of 201



XXXXX

X

X

X

X

XXXXXX

X

2

25

26

A

27

28

31

32

35

36

30 34

29 33

3

4

7 116 10

23

24 21

22

16

18 14

20 17

19 15

13

5 8 9 121

D

C

B

MLK

GFE

HIJ

N

A
R

C
H

IB
A

LD
   

 A
V

E
N

U
E

  (
P

U
B

LI
C

)

DOLOMITE   AVENUE   (PUBLIC)

"A"     STREET  (PUBLIC)

K
IN

G
LE

T 
   

 A
V

E
N

U
E

  (
P

U
B

LI
C

)

CRANE
COURT

B
R

O
C

K
R

A
M

D
R

IV
E

MARK DATE BY APPROVED / RCE NO.

REVISIONS DESIGNED BY:

DATE:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

DATE:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET            OF

CONTRACT

ACCOUNT

DWG. NO.

DATEC.E. NO.SIGNATURE

5

B202202263

TRACT
18916

BENCH MARK NO. __________________________________   ELEV. _______________

LOCATION:

6/15/202289279

C 89279

W
ES

TON     G.     CLINITE

R
EG

IS
TE

RED  PROFESSIONAL   ENG
INEER

STATE   OF   CALIFORNIAC IV IL

"

“ ”

X X

1

SHEET INDEX
Sheet Number Sheet Title

1 TITLE SHEET

2 DETAILS AND SECTIONS

3 GRADING PLAN

4 EROSION CONTROL PLAN

5 EROSION CONTROL NOTES

33
Item D - 143 of 201



MARK DATE BY APPROVED / RCE NO.

REVISIONS DESIGNED BY:

DATE:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

DATE:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET            OF

CONTRACT

ACCOUNT

DWG. NO.

DATEC.E. NO.SIGNATURE

5

B202202263

TRACT
18916

BENCH MARK NO. __________________________________   ELEV. _______________

LOCATION:

6/15/202289279

C 89279

W
ES

TON     G.     CLINITE

R
EG

IS
TE

RED  PROFESSIONAL   ENG
INEER

STATE   OF   CALIFORNIAC IV IL

2

34
Item D - 144 of 201



W
W

W
W

T

X

XXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X

X X
X

XX

X
X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

A
R

C
H

IB
A

LD
   

   
   

 A
V

E
N

U
E

   
   

  (
P

U
B

LI
C

)

DOLOMITE   AVENUE    (PUBLIC)

"A"     STREET     (PUBLIC)

K
IN

G
LE

T 
   

 A
V

E
N

U
E

   
  (

P
U

B
LI

C
)

CRANE
COURT

B
R

O
C

K
R

A
M

D
R

IV
E

SHT 2

SHT 2

SHT 2

SHT 2

SHT 2

SHT 2

SHT 2

SHT 2

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

2

25

26

A

27

28

31

32

35

36

30 34

29 33

3

4

7 116 10

23

24 21

22

16

18 14

20 17

19 15

13

5 8 9 121

D

C

B

MLK

GFE

HIJ

N

MARK DATE BY APPROVED / RCE NO.

REVISIONS DESIGNED BY:

DATE:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

DATE:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET            OF

CONTRACT

ACCOUNT

DWG. NO.

DATEC.E. NO.SIGNATURE

5

B202202263

TRACT
18916

BENCH MARK NO. __________________________________   ELEV. _______________

LOCATION:

6/15/202289279

C 89279

W
ES

TON     G.     CLINITE

R
EG

IS
TE

RED  PROFESSIONAL   ENG
INEER

STATE   OF   CALIFORNIAC IV IL

3

35
Item D - 145 of 201



X

XXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X

X X
X

XX

X
X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

2

25

26

A

27

28

31

32

35

36

30 34

29 33

3

4

7 116 10

23

24 21

22

16

18 14

20 17

19 15

13

5 8 9 121

D

C

B

MLK

GFE

HIJ

N

A
R

C
H

IB
A

LD
   

   
   

 A
V

E
N

U
E

DOLOMITE   AVENUE 

"A"     STREET

K
IN

G
LE

T 
   

 A
V

E
N

U
E

CRANE
COURT

B
R

O
C

K
R

A
M

D
R

IV
E

MARK DATE BY APPROVED / RCE NO.

REVISIONS DESIGNED BY:

DATE:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

DATE:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET            OF

CONTRACT

ACCOUNT

DWG. NO.

DATEC.E. NO.SIGNATURE

5

B202202263

TRACT
18916

BENCH MARK NO. __________________________________   ELEV. _______________

LOCATION:

6/15/202289279

C 89279

W
ES

TON     G.     CLINITE

R
EG

IS
TE

RED  PROFESSIONAL   ENG
INEER

STATE   OF   CALIFORNIAC IV IL

4

36
Item D - 146 of 201

AutoCAD SHX Text
Distance Measurement
20.00 ft



“ ”

“

” 

MARK DATE BY APPROVED / RCE NO.

REVISIONS DESIGNED BY:

DATE:

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

DATE:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET            OF

CONTRACT

ACCOUNT

DWG. NO.

DATEC.E. NO.SIGNATURE

5

B202202263

TRACT
18916

BENCH MARK NO. __________________________________   ELEV. _______________

LOCATION:

6/15/202289279

C 89279

W
ES

TON     G.     CLINITE

R
EG

IS
TE

RED  PROFESSIONAL   ENG
INEER

STATE   OF   CALIFORNIAC IV IL

37
Item D - 147 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

38
Item D - 148 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

 

APPENDIX 5.1: 
 

ON-SITE TRAFFIC NOISE CALCULATIONS 
  

39
Item D - 149 of 201



Countryside 36 Noise Impact Analysis 

15172-05 Noise Study.docx 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

40
Item D - 150 of 201



FHWA-RD-77-108 HIGHWAY NOISE PREDICTION MODEL (CALVENO) - v10/31/19

SITE SPECIFIC INPUT DATA

Project Name: Countryside 36

Job Number: 15172

Analyst: B. MadduxLot No: 11 and 12

Road Name: Archibald Avenue

Scenario: Backyard No Wall

42,000

10%

93.0

NOISE MODEL INPUTS

Average Daily Traffic (Adt):

Peak Hour Percentage:

Peak Hour Volume: 4,200 vehicles

Centerline Dist. to Barrier:

98.0Centerline Dist. to Observer:

 Highway Data

feet

feet

vehicles

Road Elevation: 751.0

Barrier Elevation: 750.8

Pad Elevation: 750.8

 Site Data

 Site Conditions (Hard = 10, Soft = 15)

Medium Trucks (2 Axles): 15

Heavy Trucks (3+ Axles): 15

Autos: 15

 Vehicle Mix

feet

feet  Lane Equivalent Distance (in feet)

Barrier Height: 0.0

Observer Height (Above Pad): 5.0 feet

feet

50 mphVehicle Speed:

Near/Far Lane Distance: 80 feet

REMEL Traffic Flow Distance

3.82

VehicleType Day Evening Night Daily

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos: 77.5% 12.9% 9.6% 97.42%

84.8% 4.9% 10.3% 1.84%

86.5% 2.7% 10.8% 0.74%

0.99

Finite Road

-1.20

Barrier Atten

 FHWA Noise Model Calculations

5.0Barrier Distance to Observer: feet

Barrier Type (0-Wall, 1-Berm): 0.0

0.000 0.000

Fresnel Berm Atten

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType

-13.41 1.02 -1.20 0.000 0.000

-17.37 1.01 -1.20 0.000 0.000

-1.83

-2.03

-2.56

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

 Noise Source Elevations (in feet)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos: 751.00

753.30

759.01

42.273

42.075

42.122

Grade Adjustment: 0.0

 Unmitigated Noise Levels (without Topo and barrier attenuation)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType Leq Peak Hour Leq Day Leq Evening Leq Night CNELLdn

74.7 72.8 71.1 65.0 74.273.6

65.2

65.5

63.7 57.3 55.8 64.564.2

64.0 55.0 56.3 64.764.6

Vehicle Noise: 75.6 73.8 71.4 66.0 75.174.6

 Mitigated Noise Levels (with Topo and barrier attenuation)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType Leq Peak Hour Leq Day Leq Evening Leq Night CNELLdn

74.7 72.8 71.1 65.0 74.273.6

65.2

65.5

63.7 57.3 55.8 64.564.2

64.0 55.0 56.3 64.764.6

Vehicle Noise: 75.6 73.8 71.4 66.0 75.174.6

78.79

83.02

71.12

Road Grade: 0.1%

feet

Tuesday, December 6, 2022

41
Item D - 151 of 201



FHWA-RD-77-108 HIGHWAY NOISE PREDICTION MODEL (CALVENO) - v10/31/19

SITE SPECIFIC INPUT DATA

Project Name: Countryside 36

Job Number: 15172

Analyst: B. MadduxLot No: 13 and 14

Road Name: Archibald Avenue

Scenario: Backyard No Wall

42,000

10%

93.0

NOISE MODEL INPUTS

Average Daily Traffic (Adt):

Peak Hour Percentage:

Peak Hour Volume: 4,200 vehicles

Centerline Dist. to Barrier:

98.0Centerline Dist. to Observer:

 Highway Data

feet

feet

vehicles

Road Elevation: 750.0

Barrier Elevation: 750.8

Pad Elevation: 750.8

 Site Data

 Site Conditions (Hard = 10, Soft = 15)

Medium Trucks (2 Axles): 15

Heavy Trucks (3+ Axles): 15

Autos: 15

 Vehicle Mix

feet

feet  Lane Equivalent Distance (in feet)

Barrier Height: 0.0

Observer Height (Above Pad): 5.0 feet

feet

50 mphVehicle Speed:

Near/Far Lane Distance: 80 feet

REMEL Traffic Flow Distance

3.82

VehicleType Day Evening Night Daily

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos: 77.5% 12.9% 9.6% 97.42%

84.8% 4.9% 10.3% 1.84%

86.5% 2.7% 10.8% 0.74%

0.97

Finite Road

-1.20

Barrier Atten

 FHWA Noise Model Calculations

5.0Barrier Distance to Observer: feet

Barrier Type (0-Wall, 1-Berm): 0.0

0.000 0.000

Fresnel Berm Atten

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType

-13.41 1.01 -1.20 0.000 0.000

-17.37 1.02 -1.20 0.000 0.000

-1.75

-1.94

-2.46

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

 Noise Source Elevations (in feet)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos: 750.00

752.30

758.01

42.399

42.146

42.058

Grade Adjustment: 0.0

 Unmitigated Noise Levels (without Topo and barrier attenuation)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType Leq Peak Hour Leq Day Leq Evening Leq Night CNELLdn

74.7 72.8 71.0 65.0 74.273.6

65.2

65.5

63.7 57.3 55.8 64.564.2

64.1 55.0 56.3 64.764.6

Vehicle Noise: 75.6 73.8 71.3 66.0 75.174.6

 Mitigated Noise Levels (with Topo and barrier attenuation)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType Leq Peak Hour Leq Day Leq Evening Leq Night CNELLdn

74.7 72.8 71.0 65.0 74.273.6

65.2

65.5

63.7 57.3 55.8 64.564.2

64.1 55.0 56.3 64.764.6

Vehicle Noise: 75.6 73.8 71.3 66.0 75.174.6

78.79

83.02

71.12

Road Grade: 0.1%

feet

Tuesday, December 6, 2022

42
Item D - 152 of 201



FHWA-RD-77-108 HIGHWAY NOISE PREDICTION MODEL (CALVENO) - v10/31/19

SITE SPECIFIC INPUT DATA

Project Name: Countryside 36

Job Number: 15172

Analyst: B. MadduxLot No: 35 and 36

Road Name: Archibald Avenue

Scenario: Backyard No Wall

42,000

10%

93.0

NOISE MODEL INPUTS

Average Daily Traffic (Adt):

Peak Hour Percentage:

Peak Hour Volume: 4,200 vehicles

Centerline Dist. to Barrier:

98.0Centerline Dist. to Observer:

 Highway Data

feet

feet

vehicles

Road Elevation: 749.0

Barrier Elevation: 748.3

Pad Elevation: 748.3

 Site Data

 Site Conditions (Hard = 10, Soft = 15)

Medium Trucks (2 Axles): 15

Heavy Trucks (3+ Axles): 15

Autos: 15

 Vehicle Mix

feet

feet  Lane Equivalent Distance (in feet)

Barrier Height: 0.0

Observer Height (Above Pad): 5.0 feet

feet

50 mphVehicle Speed:

Near/Far Lane Distance: 80 feet

REMEL Traffic Flow Distance

3.82

VehicleType Day Evening Night Daily

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos: 77.5% 12.9% 9.6% 97.42%

84.8% 4.9% 10.3% 1.84%

86.5% 2.7% 10.8% 0.74%

1.00

Finite Road

-1.20

Barrier Atten

 FHWA Noise Model Calculations

5.0Barrier Distance to Observer: feet

Barrier Type (0-Wall, 1-Berm): 0.0

0.000 0.000

Fresnel Berm Atten

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType

-13.41 1.03 -1.20 0.000 0.000

-17.37 1.01 -1.20 0.000 0.000

-1.88

-2.08

-2.61

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

 Noise Source Elevations (in feet)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos: 749.00

751.30

757.01

42.220

42.048

42.163

Grade Adjustment: 0.0

 Unmitigated Noise Levels (without Topo and barrier attenuation)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType Leq Peak Hour Leq Day Leq Evening Leq Night CNELLdn

74.7 72.8 71.1 65.0 74.373.6

65.2

65.5

63.7 57.3 55.8 64.564.3

64.0 55.0 56.2 64.764.6

Vehicle Noise: 75.6 73.8 71.4 66.0 75.174.6

 Mitigated Noise Levels (with Topo and barrier attenuation)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType Leq Peak Hour Leq Day Leq Evening Leq Night CNELLdn

74.7 72.8 71.1 65.0 74.373.6

65.2

65.5

63.7 57.3 55.8 64.564.3

64.0 55.0 56.2 64.764.6

Vehicle Noise: 75.6 73.8 71.4 66.0 75.174.6

78.79

83.02

71.12

Road Grade: 0.1%

feet

Tuesday, December 6, 2022

43
Item D - 153 of 201



FHWA-RD-77-108 HIGHWAY NOISE PREDICTION MODEL (CALVENO) - v10/31/19

SITE SPECIFIC INPUT DATA

Project Name: Countryside 36

Job Number: 15172

Analyst: B. MadduxLot No: 11 and 12

Road Name: Archibald Avenue

Scenario: Backyard With Wall

42,000

10%

93.0

NOISE MODEL INPUTS

Average Daily Traffic (Adt):

Peak Hour Percentage:

Peak Hour Volume: 4,200 vehicles

Centerline Dist. to Barrier:

98.0Centerline Dist. to Observer:

 Highway Data

feet

feet

vehicles

Road Elevation: 751.0

Barrier Elevation: 750.8

Pad Elevation: 750.8

 Site Data

 Site Conditions (Hard = 10, Soft = 15)

Medium Trucks (2 Axles): 15

Heavy Trucks (3+ Axles): 15

Autos: 15

 Vehicle Mix

feet

feet  Lane Equivalent Distance (in feet)

Barrier Height: 8.0

Observer Height (Above Pad): 5.0 feet

feet

50 mphVehicle Speed:

Near/Far Lane Distance: 80 feet

REMEL Traffic Flow Distance

3.82

VehicleType Day Evening Night Daily

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos: 77.5% 12.9% 9.6% 97.42%

84.8% 4.9% 10.3% 1.84%

86.5% 2.7% 10.8% 0.74%

1.12

Finite Road

-1.20

Barrier Atten

 FHWA Noise Model Calculations

5.0Barrier Distance to Observer: feet

Barrier Type (0-Wall, 1-Berm): 0.0

-10.660 -13.660

Fresnel Berm Atten

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType

-13.41 1.18 -1.20 -10.380 -13.380

-17.37 1.25 -1.20 -9.420 -12.420

1.18

1.04

0.73

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

 Noise Source Elevations (in feet)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos: 751.00

753.30

759.01

41.466

41.034

40.602

Grade Adjustment: 0.0

 Unmitigated Noise Levels (without Topo and barrier attenuation)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType Leq Peak Hour Leq Day Leq Evening Leq Night CNELLdn

74.9 73.0 71.2 65.1 74.473.8

65.4

65.7

63.9 57.5 55.9 64.664.4

64.3 55.2 56.5 65.064.8

Vehicle Noise: 75.8 74.0 71.5 66.1 75.274.7

 Mitigated Noise Levels (with Topo and barrier attenuation)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType Leq Peak Hour Leq Day Leq Evening Leq Night CNELLdn

64.2 62.3 60.5 54.5 63.763.1

55.0

56.3

53.5 47.1 45.6 54.354.0

54.9 45.8 47.1 55.655.4

Vehicle Noise: 65.3 63.5 60.9 55.7 64.764.2

78.79

83.02

71.12

Road Grade: 0.1%

feet

Tuesday, December 6, 2022

44
Item D - 154 of 201



FHWA-RD-77-108 HIGHWAY NOISE PREDICTION MODEL (CALVENO) - v10/31/19

SITE SPECIFIC INPUT DATA

Project Name: Countryside 36

Job Number: 15172

Analyst: B. MadduxLot No: 13 and 14

Road Name: Archibald Avenue

Scenario: Backyard With Wall

42,000

10%

93.0

NOISE MODEL INPUTS

Average Daily Traffic (Adt):

Peak Hour Percentage:

Peak Hour Volume: 4,200 vehicles

Centerline Dist. to Barrier:

98.0Centerline Dist. to Observer:

 Highway Data

feet

feet

vehicles

Road Elevation: 750.0

Barrier Elevation: 750.8

Pad Elevation: 750.8

 Site Data

 Site Conditions (Hard = 10, Soft = 15)

Medium Trucks (2 Axles): 15

Heavy Trucks (3+ Axles): 15

Autos: 15

 Vehicle Mix

feet

feet  Lane Equivalent Distance (in feet)

Barrier Height: 8.0

Observer Height (Above Pad): 5.0 feet

feet

50 mphVehicle Speed:

Near/Far Lane Distance: 80 feet

REMEL Traffic Flow Distance

3.82

VehicleType Day Evening Night Daily

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos: 77.5% 12.9% 9.6% 97.42%

84.8% 4.9% 10.3% 1.84%

86.5% 2.7% 10.8% 0.74%

1.08

Finite Road

-1.20

Barrier Atten

 FHWA Noise Model Calculations

5.0Barrier Distance to Observer: feet

Barrier Type (0-Wall, 1-Berm): 0.0

-10.780 -13.780

Fresnel Berm Atten

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType

-13.41 1.16 -1.20 -10.500 -13.500

-17.37 1.25 -1.20 -9.620 -12.620

1.24

1.10

0.78

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

 Noise Source Elevations (in feet)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos: 750.00

752.30

758.01

41.698

41.205

40.611

Grade Adjustment: 0.0

 Unmitigated Noise Levels (without Topo and barrier attenuation)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType Leq Peak Hour Leq Day Leq Evening Leq Night CNELLdn

74.8 72.9 71.2 65.1 74.373.7

65.3

65.7

63.8 57.5 55.9 64.664.4

64.3 55.2 56.5 65.064.8

Vehicle Noise: 75.7 73.9 71.4 66.1 75.274.7

 Mitigated Noise Levels (with Topo and barrier attenuation)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType Leq Peak Hour Leq Day Leq Evening Leq Night CNELLdn

64.0 62.1 60.4 54.3 63.662.9

54.8

56.1

53.3 47.0 45.4 54.153.9

54.7 45.6 46.9 55.455.2

Vehicle Noise: 65.1 63.3 60.7 55.5 64.664.1

78.79

83.02

71.12

Road Grade: 0.1%

feet

Tuesday, December 6, 2022

45
Item D - 155 of 201



FHWA-RD-77-108 HIGHWAY NOISE PREDICTION MODEL (CALVENO) - v10/31/19

SITE SPECIFIC INPUT DATA

Project Name: Countryside 36

Job Number: 15172

Analyst: B. MadduxLot No: 35 and 36

Road Name: Archibald Avenue

Scenario: Backyard With Wall

42,000

10%

93.0

NOISE MODEL INPUTS

Average Daily Traffic (Adt):

Peak Hour Percentage:

Peak Hour Volume: 4,200 vehicles

Centerline Dist. to Barrier:

98.0Centerline Dist. to Observer:

 Highway Data

feet

feet

vehicles

Road Elevation: 749.0

Barrier Elevation: 748.3

Pad Elevation: 748.3

 Site Data

 Site Conditions (Hard = 10, Soft = 15)

Medium Trucks (2 Axles): 15

Heavy Trucks (3+ Axles): 15

Autos: 15

 Vehicle Mix

feet

feet  Lane Equivalent Distance (in feet)

Barrier Height: 8.0

Observer Height (Above Pad): 5.0 feet

feet

50 mphVehicle Speed:

Near/Far Lane Distance: 80 feet

REMEL Traffic Flow Distance

3.82

VehicleType Day Evening Night Daily

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos: 77.5% 12.9% 9.6% 97.42%

84.8% 4.9% 10.3% 1.84%

86.5% 2.7% 10.8% 0.74%

1.13

Finite Road

-1.20

Barrier Atten

 FHWA Noise Model Calculations

5.0Barrier Distance to Observer: feet

Barrier Type (0-Wall, 1-Berm): 0.0

-10.600 -13.600

Fresnel Berm Atten

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType

-13.41 1.20 -1.20 -10.320 -13.320

-17.37 1.25 -1.20 -9.300 -12.300

1.15

1.01

0.70

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

 Noise Source Elevations (in feet)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos: 749.00

751.30

757.01

41.360

40.960

40.609

Grade Adjustment: 0.0

 Unmitigated Noise Levels (without Topo and barrier attenuation)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType Leq Peak Hour Leq Day Leq Evening Leq Night CNELLdn

74.9 73.0 71.2 65.2 74.473.8

65.4

65.7

63.9 57.5 56.0 64.764.4

64.3 55.2 56.5 65.064.8

Vehicle Noise: 75.8 74.0 71.5 66.1 75.374.7

 Mitigated Noise Levels (with Topo and barrier attenuation)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType Leq Peak Hour Leq Day Leq Evening Leq Night CNELLdn

64.3 62.4 60.6 54.6 63.863.2

55.1

56.4

53.5 47.2 45.6 54.354.1

55.0 45.9 47.2 55.755.5

Vehicle Noise: 65.4 63.6 60.9 55.7 64.864.3

78.79

83.02

71.12

Road Grade: 0.1%

feet

Tuesday, December 6, 2022

46
Item D - 156 of 201



FHWA-RD-77-108 HIGHWAY NOISE PREDICTION MODEL (CALVENO) - v10/31/19

SITE SPECIFIC INPUT DATA

Project Name: Countryside 36

Job Number: 15172

Analyst: B. MadduxLot No: 11 and 12

Road Name: Archibald Avenue

Scenario: First Floor With Wall

42,000

10%

93.0

NOISE MODEL INPUTS

Average Daily Traffic (Adt):

Peak Hour Percentage:

Peak Hour Volume: 4,200 vehicles

Centerline Dist. to Barrier:

99.0Centerline Dist. to Observer:

 Highway Data

feet

feet

vehicles

Road Elevation: 751.0

Barrier Elevation: 750.8

Pad Elevation: 750.8

 Site Data

 Site Conditions (Hard = 10, Soft = 15)

Medium Trucks (2 Axles): 15

Heavy Trucks (3+ Axles): 15

Autos: 15

 Vehicle Mix

feet

feet  Lane Equivalent Distance (in feet)

Barrier Height: 8.0

Observer Height (Above Pad): 5.0 feet

feet

50 mphVehicle Speed:

Near/Far Lane Distance: 80 feet

REMEL Traffic Flow Distance

3.82

VehicleType Day Evening Night Daily

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos: 77.5% 12.9% 9.6% 97.42%

84.8% 4.9% 10.3% 1.84%

86.5% 2.7% 10.8% 0.74%

0.98

Finite Road

-1.20

Barrier Atten

 FHWA Noise Model Calculations

6.0Barrier Distance to Observer: feet

Barrier Type (0-Wall, 1-Berm): 0.0

-10.420 -13.420

Fresnel Berm Atten

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType

-13.41 1.05 -1.20 -10.060 -13.060

-17.37 1.11 -1.20 -9.030 -12.030

1.06

0.92

0.61

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

 Noise Source Elevations (in feet)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos: 751.00

753.30

759.01

42.343

41.912

41.479

Grade Adjustment: 0.0

 Unmitigated Noise Levels (without Topo and barrier attenuation)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType Leq Peak Hour Leq Day Leq Evening Leq Night CNELLdn

74.7 72.8 71.1 65.0 74.273.6

65.2

65.6

63.7 57.4 55.8 64.564.3

64.1 55.1 56.4 64.864.7

Vehicle Noise: 75.6 73.8 71.3 66.0 75.174.6

 Mitigated Noise Levels (with Topo and barrier attenuation)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType Leq Peak Hour Leq Day Leq Evening Leq Night CNELLdn

64.3 62.4 60.6 54.6 63.863.2

55.2

56.5

53.7 47.3 45.8 54.454.2

55.1 46.1 47.3 55.855.7

Vehicle Noise: 65.4 63.6 61.0 55.8 64.964.4

78.79

83.02

71.12

Road Grade: 0.1%

feet

Tuesday, December 6, 2022

47
Item D - 157 of 201



FHWA-RD-77-108 HIGHWAY NOISE PREDICTION MODEL (CALVENO) - v10/31/19

SITE SPECIFIC INPUT DATA

Project Name: Countryside 36

Job Number: 15172

Analyst: B. MadduxLot No: 13 and 14

Road Name: Archibald Avenue

Scenario: First Floor With Wall

42,000

10%

93.0

NOISE MODEL INPUTS

Average Daily Traffic (Adt):

Peak Hour Percentage:

Peak Hour Volume: 4,200 vehicles

Centerline Dist. to Barrier:

99.0Centerline Dist. to Observer:

 Highway Data

feet

feet

vehicles

Road Elevation: 750.0

Barrier Elevation: 750.8

Pad Elevation: 750.8

 Site Data

 Site Conditions (Hard = 10, Soft = 15)

Medium Trucks (2 Axles): 15

Heavy Trucks (3+ Axles): 15

Autos: 15

 Vehicle Mix

feet

feet  Lane Equivalent Distance (in feet)

Barrier Height: 8.0

Observer Height (Above Pad): 5.0 feet

feet

50 mphVehicle Speed:

Near/Far Lane Distance: 80 feet

REMEL Traffic Flow Distance

3.82

VehicleType Day Evening Night Daily

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos: 77.5% 12.9% 9.6% 97.42%

84.8% 4.9% 10.3% 1.84%

86.5% 2.7% 10.8% 0.74%

0.94

Finite Road

-1.20

Barrier Atten

 FHWA Noise Model Calculations

6.0Barrier Distance to Observer: feet

Barrier Type (0-Wall, 1-Berm): 0.0

-10.540 -13.540

Fresnel Berm Atten

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType

-13.41 1.02 -1.20 -10.240 -13.240

-17.37 1.11 -1.20 -9.180 -12.180

1.12

0.98

0.66

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

 Noise Source Elevations (in feet)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos: 750.00

752.30

758.01

42.575

42.082

41.488

Grade Adjustment: 0.0

 Unmitigated Noise Levels (without Topo and barrier attenuation)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType Leq Peak Hour Leq Day Leq Evening Leq Night CNELLdn

74.7 72.8 71.0 65.0 74.273.6

65.2

65.6

63.7 57.3 55.8 64.564.2

64.1 55.1 56.4 64.864.7

Vehicle Noise: 75.6 73.8 71.3 66.0 75.174.5

 Mitigated Noise Levels (with Topo and barrier attenuation)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType Leq Peak Hour Leq Day Leq Evening Leq Night CNELLdn

64.1 62.2 60.5 54.4 63.763.1

55.0

56.4

53.5 47.1 45.5 54.254.0

55.0 45.9 47.2 55.755.5

Vehicle Noise: 65.2 63.5 60.8 55.6 64.764.2

78.79

83.02

71.12

Road Grade: 0.1%

feet

Tuesday, December 6, 2022

48
Item D - 158 of 201



FHWA-RD-77-108 HIGHWAY NOISE PREDICTION MODEL (CALVENO) - v10/31/19

SITE SPECIFIC INPUT DATA

Project Name: Countryside 36

Job Number: 15172

Analyst: B. MadduxLot No: 35 and 36

Road Name: Archibald Avenue

Scenario: First Floor With Wall

42,000

10%

93.0

NOISE MODEL INPUTS

Average Daily Traffic (Adt):

Peak Hour Percentage:

Peak Hour Volume: 4,200 vehicles

Centerline Dist. to Barrier:

99.0Centerline Dist. to Observer:

 Highway Data

feet

feet

vehicles

Road Elevation: 749.0

Barrier Elevation: 748.3

Pad Elevation: 748.3

 Site Data

 Site Conditions (Hard = 10, Soft = 15)

Medium Trucks (2 Axles): 15

Heavy Trucks (3+ Axles): 15

Autos: 15

 Vehicle Mix

feet

feet  Lane Equivalent Distance (in feet)

Barrier Height: 8.0

Observer Height (Above Pad): 5.0 feet

feet

50 mphVehicle Speed:

Near/Far Lane Distance: 80 feet

REMEL Traffic Flow Distance

3.82

VehicleType Day Evening Night Daily

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos: 77.5% 12.9% 9.6% 97.42%

84.8% 4.9% 10.3% 1.84%

86.5% 2.7% 10.8% 0.74%

1.00

Finite Road

-1.20

Barrier Atten

 FHWA Noise Model Calculations

6.0Barrier Distance to Observer: feet

Barrier Type (0-Wall, 1-Berm): 0.0

-10.360 -13.360

Fresnel Berm Atten

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType

-13.41 1.06 -1.20 -9.970 -12.970

-17.37 1.11 -1.20 -8.900 -11.900

1.03

0.89

0.58

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

 Noise Source Elevations (in feet)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos: 749.00

751.30

757.01

42.237

41.837

41.486

Grade Adjustment: 0.0

 Unmitigated Noise Levels (without Topo and barrier attenuation)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType Leq Peak Hour Leq Day Leq Evening Leq Night CNELLdn

74.7 72.8 71.1 65.0 74.273.6

65.2

65.6

63.7 57.4 55.8 64.564.3

64.1 55.1 56.4 64.864.7

Vehicle Noise: 75.6 73.8 71.4 66.0 75.174.6

 Mitigated Noise Levels (with Topo and barrier attenuation)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType Leq Peak Hour Leq Day Leq Evening Leq Night CNELLdn

64.4 62.5 60.7 54.7 63.963.3

55.3

56.7

53.8 47.4 45.9 54.554.3

55.2 46.2 47.5 55.955.8

Vehicle Noise: 65.5 63.7 61.1 55.9 64.964.4

78.79

83.02

71.12

Road Grade: 0.1%

feet

Tuesday, December 6, 2022

49
Item D - 159 of 201



FHWA-RD-77-108 HIGHWAY NOISE PREDICTION MODEL (CALVENO) - v10/31/19

SITE SPECIFIC INPUT DATA

Project Name: Countryside 36

Job Number: 15172

Analyst: B. MadduxLot No: 11 and 12

Road Name: Archibald Avenue

Scenario: Second Floor With Wall

42,000

10%

93.0

NOISE MODEL INPUTS

Average Daily Traffic (Adt):

Peak Hour Percentage:

Peak Hour Volume: 4,200 vehicles

Centerline Dist. to Barrier:

99.0Centerline Dist. to Observer:

 Highway Data

feet

feet

vehicles

Road Elevation: 751.0

Barrier Elevation: 750.8

Pad Elevation: 750.8

 Site Data

 Site Conditions (Hard = 10, Soft = 15)

Medium Trucks (2 Axles): 15

Heavy Trucks (3+ Axles): 15

Autos: 15

 Vehicle Mix

feet

feet  Lane Equivalent Distance (in feet)

Barrier Height: 8.0

Observer Height (Above Pad): 14.0 feet

feet

50 mphVehicle Speed:

Near/Far Lane Distance: 80 feet

REMEL Traffic Flow Distance

3.82

VehicleType Day Evening Night Daily

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos: 77.5% 12.9% 9.6% 97.42%

84.8% 4.9% 10.3% 1.84%

86.5% 2.7% 10.8% 0.74%

0.51

Finite Road

-1.20

Barrier Atten

 FHWA Noise Model Calculations

6.0Barrier Distance to Observer: feet

Barrier Type (0-Wall, 1-Berm): 0.0

0.000 0.000

Fresnel Berm Atten

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType

-13.41 0.60 -1.20 0.000 0.000

-17.37 0.77 -1.20 0.000 0.000

-1.43

-1.62

-2.15

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

 Noise Source Elevations (in feet)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos: 751.00

753.30

759.01

45.513

44.870

43.756

Grade Adjustment: 0.0

 Unmitigated Noise Levels (without Topo and barrier attenuation)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType Leq Peak Hour Leq Day Leq Evening Leq Night CNELLdn

74.3 72.4 70.6 64.5 73.873.2

64.8

65.2

63.3 56.9 55.4 64.163.8

63.8 54.8 56.0 64.564.4

Vehicle Noise: 75.2 73.4 70.9 65.5 74.674.1

 Mitigated Noise Levels (with Topo and barrier attenuation)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType Leq Peak Hour Leq Day Leq Evening Leq Night CNELLdn

74.3 72.4 70.6 64.5 73.873.2

64.8

65.2

63.3 56.9 55.4 64.163.8

63.8 54.8 56.0 64.564.4

Vehicle Noise: 75.2 73.4 70.9 65.5 74.674.1

78.79

83.02

71.12

Road Grade: 0.1%

feet

Tuesday, December 6, 2022

50
Item D - 160 of 201



FHWA-RD-77-108 HIGHWAY NOISE PREDICTION MODEL (CALVENO) - v10/31/19

SITE SPECIFIC INPUT DATA

Project Name: Countryside 36

Job Number: 15172

Analyst: B. MadduxLot No: 13 and 14

Road Name: Archibald Avenue

Scenario: Second Floor With Wall

42,000

10%

93.0

NOISE MODEL INPUTS

Average Daily Traffic (Adt):

Peak Hour Percentage:

Peak Hour Volume: 4,200 vehicles

Centerline Dist. to Barrier:

99.0Centerline Dist. to Observer:

 Highway Data

feet

feet

vehicles

Road Elevation: 750.0

Barrier Elevation: 750.8

Pad Elevation: 750.8

 Site Data

 Site Conditions (Hard = 10, Soft = 15)

Medium Trucks (2 Axles): 15

Heavy Trucks (3+ Axles): 15

Autos: 15

 Vehicle Mix

feet

feet  Lane Equivalent Distance (in feet)

Barrier Height: 8.0

Observer Height (Above Pad): 14.0 feet

feet

50 mphVehicle Speed:

Near/Far Lane Distance: 80 feet

REMEL Traffic Flow Distance

3.82

VehicleType Day Evening Night Daily

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos: 77.5% 12.9% 9.6% 97.42%

84.8% 4.9% 10.3% 1.84%

86.5% 2.7% 10.8% 0.74%

0.46

Finite Road

-1.20

Barrier Atten

 FHWA Noise Model Calculations

6.0Barrier Distance to Observer: feet

Barrier Type (0-Wall, 1-Berm): 0.0

0.000 0.000

Fresnel Berm Atten

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType

-13.41 0.56 -1.20 0.000 0.000

-17.37 0.74 -1.20 0.000 0.000

-1.35

-1.54

-2.06

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

 Noise Source Elevations (in feet)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos: 750.00

752.30

758.01

45.826

45.137

43.899

Grade Adjustment: 0.0

 Unmitigated Noise Levels (without Topo and barrier attenuation)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType Leq Peak Hour Leq Day Leq Evening Leq Night CNELLdn

74.2 72.3 70.5 64.5 73.773.1

64.7

65.2

63.2 56.9 55.3 64.063.8

63.8 54.7 56.0 64.564.3

Vehicle Noise: 75.1 73.3 70.8 65.5 74.674.1

 Mitigated Noise Levels (with Topo and barrier attenuation)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType Leq Peak Hour Leq Day Leq Evening Leq Night CNELLdn

74.2 72.3 70.5 64.5 73.773.1

64.7

65.2

63.2 56.9 55.3 64.063.8

63.8 54.7 56.0 64.564.3

Vehicle Noise: 75.1 73.3 70.8 65.5 74.674.1

78.79

83.02

71.12

Road Grade: 0.1%

feet

Tuesday, December 6, 2022

51
Item D - 161 of 201



FHWA-RD-77-108 HIGHWAY NOISE PREDICTION MODEL (CALVENO) - v10/31/19

SITE SPECIFIC INPUT DATA

Project Name: Countryside 36

Job Number: 15172

Analyst: B. MadduxLot No: 35 and 36

Road Name: Archibald Avenue

Scenario: Second Floor With Wall

42,000

10%

93.0

NOISE MODEL INPUTS

Average Daily Traffic (Adt):

Peak Hour Percentage:

Peak Hour Volume: 4,200 vehicles

Centerline Dist. to Barrier:

99.0Centerline Dist. to Observer:

 Highway Data

feet

feet

vehicles

Road Elevation: 749.0

Barrier Elevation: 748.3

Pad Elevation: 748.3

 Site Data

 Site Conditions (Hard = 10, Soft = 15)

Medium Trucks (2 Axles): 15

Heavy Trucks (3+ Axles): 15

Autos: 15

 Vehicle Mix

feet

feet  Lane Equivalent Distance (in feet)

Barrier Height: 8.0

Observer Height (Above Pad): 14.0 feet

feet

50 mphVehicle Speed:

Near/Far Lane Distance: 80 feet

REMEL Traffic Flow Distance

3.82

VehicleType Day Evening Night Daily

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos: 77.5% 12.9% 9.6% 97.42%

84.8% 4.9% 10.3% 1.84%

86.5% 2.7% 10.8% 0.74%

0.53

Finite Road

-1.20

Barrier Atten

 FHWA Noise Model Calculations

6.0Barrier Distance to Observer: feet

Barrier Type (0-Wall, 1-Berm): 0.0

0.000 0.000

Fresnel Berm Atten

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType

-13.41 0.62 -1.20 0.000 0.000

-17.37 0.78 -1.20 0.000 0.000

-1.47

-1.67

-2.20

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

 Noise Source Elevations (in feet)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos: 749.00

751.30

757.01

45.364

44.744

43.692

Grade Adjustment: 0.0

 Unmitigated Noise Levels (without Topo and barrier attenuation)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType Leq Peak Hour Leq Day Leq Evening Leq Night CNELLdn

74.3 72.4 70.6 64.6 73.873.2

64.8

65.2

63.3 56.9 55.4 64.163.8

63.8 54.8 56.0 64.564.4

Vehicle Noise: 75.2 73.4 70.9 65.6 74.774.1

 Mitigated Noise Levels (with Topo and barrier attenuation)

Medium Trucks:

Heavy Trucks:

Autos:

VehicleType Leq Peak Hour Leq Day Leq Evening Leq Night CNELLdn

74.3 72.4 70.6 64.6 73.873.2

64.8

65.2

63.3 56.9 55.4 64.163.8

63.8 54.8 56.0 64.564.4

Vehicle Noise: 75.2 73.4 70.9 65.6 74.774.1

78.79

83.02

71.12

Road Grade: 0.1%

feet

Tuesday, December 6, 2022

52
Item D - 162 of 201



Development Advisory Board Decision 
File No. PDEV22-038 
May 15, 2023 
 
 

Page 42 of 42 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment C: Conditions of Approval 
 

(Conditions of Approval follow this page)  

Item D - 163 of 201



 

Page 1 of 6 

303 East B Street, Ontario, California 91764 Phone: 909.395.2036 / Fax: 909.395.2420 

LAND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 
Date Prepared: 4/18/2023 
 
File No: PDEV22-038  
 
Related Files: PMTT21-011 (Tentative Tract Map No. 18916) 
 
Project Description: A public hearing to consider a Development Plan (File No. PDEV22-038) to 
construct 36 single-family detached 4-pack single-family dwellings with related on-site 
improvements for a subdivision previously approved with Tentative Tract Map No. 18916 (File No. 
PMTT21-011), on approximately 11.05 acres of land located on the west side of Archibald Avenue 
and approximately 575 feet south of Chino Avenue within Planning Area 2 (Neighborhood 7) of 
the Countryside Specific Plan (APN: 0218-131-34); submitted by KB Homes Coastal Inc.  
 
Prepared By: Jocelyn Torres, Associate Planner 

Phone: 909.395.2424 (direct) 
Email: jocelyntorres@ontarioca.gov 

 
 

The Planning Department, Land Development Section, conditions of approval applicable 
to the above-described Project, are listed below. The Project shall comply with each condition of 
approval listed below: 
 
1.0 Standard Conditions of Approval. The project shall comply with the Standard Conditions 
for New Development, adopted by City Council Resolution No. 2017-027 on April 18, 2017. A copy 
of the Standard Conditions for New Development may be obtained from the Planning 
Department or City Clerk/Records Management Department. 
 
2.0 Special Conditions of Approval. In addition to the Standard Conditions for New 
Development identified in condition no. 1.0, above, the project shall comply with the following 
special conditions of approval: 
 

2.1 Time Limits. 
 

(a) Development Plan approval shall become null and void 2 years following 
the effective date of application approval, unless a building permit is issued and construction is 
commenced, and diligently pursued toward completion, or a time extension has been approved 
by the Planning Director. This condition does not supersede any individual time limits specified 
herein, or any other departmental conditions of approval applicable to the Project, for the 
performance of specific conditions or improvements. 
 

2.2 General Requirements. The Project shall comply with the following general 
requirements: 

 
(a) All construction documentation shall be coordinated for consistency, 

including, but not limited to, architectural, structural, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, landscape 

Item D - 164 of 201



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV22-038 
 
 

Page 2 of 6 

and irrigation, grading, utility and street improvement plans. All such plans shall be consistent with 
the approved entitlement plans on file with the Planning Department. 
 

(b) The project site shall be developed in conformance with the approved 
plans on file with the City. Any variation from the approved plans must be reviewed and approved 
by the Planning Department prior to building permit issuance. 
 

(c) The herein-listed conditions of approval from all City departments shall be 
included in the construction plan set for the project, which shall be maintained on site during 
project construction. 
 

2.3 Landscaping.  
 

(a) The Project shall provide and continuously maintain landscaping and 
irrigation systems in compliance with the provisions of Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 
(Landscaping). 
 

(b) Comply with the conditions of approval of the Planning Department; 
Landscape Planning Division. 
 

(c) Landscaping shall not be installed until the Landscape and Irrigation 
Construction Documentation Plans required by Ontario Development Code Division 6.05 
(Landscaping) have been approved by the Landscape Planning Division. 
 

(d) Changes to approved Landscape and Irrigation Construction 
Documentation Plans, which affect the character or quantity of the plant material or irrigation 
system design, shall be resubmitted for approval of the revision by the Landscape Planning 
Division, prior to the commencement of the changes. 
 

2.4 Walls and Fences. All Project walls and fences shall comply with the requirements 
of Ontario Development Code Division 6.02 (Walls, Fences and Obstructions).  
 

2.5 Parking, Circulation and Access. 
 

(a) The Project shall comply with the applicable off-street parking, loading and 
lighting requirements of City of Ontario Development Code Division 6.03 (Off-Street Parking and 
Loading). 
 

(b) All drive approaches shall be provided with an enhanced pavement 
treatment. The enhanced paving shall extend from the back of the approach apron, into the site, 
to the first intersecting drive aisle or parking space. 

 
(c) Areas provided to meet the City’s parking requirements, including off-street 

parking and loading spaces, access drives, and maneuvering areas, shall not be used for the 
outdoor storage of materials and equipment, nor shall it be used for any other purpose than 
parking. 

 
(d) The required number of off-street parking spaces and/or loading spaces 

shall be provided at the time of site and/or building occupancy. All parking and loading spaces 
shall be maintained in good condition for the duration of the building or use. 

Item D - 165 of 201



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV22-038 
 
 

Page 3 of 6 

 
(e) Parking spaces specifically designated and conveniently located for use 

by the physically disabled shall be provided pursuant to current accessibility regulations 
contained in State law (CCR Title 24, Part 2, Chapters 2B71, and CVC Section 22507.8). 

 
(f) Bicycle parking facilities, including bicycle racks, lockers, and other secure 

facilities, shall be provided in conjunction with development projects pursuant to current 
regulations contained in CALGreen (CAC Title 24, Part 11). Final design and placement of bicycle 
parking facilities shall be subject to Planning Department review and approval. 
 

2.6 Site Lighting. 
 

(a) All off-street parking facilities shall be provided with nighttime security 
lighting pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code Section 4-11.08 (Special Residential Building 
Provisions) and Section 4-11.09 (Special Commercial/Industrial Building Provisions), designed to 
confine emitted light to the parking areas. Parking facilities shall be lighted from sunset until sunrise, 
daily, and shall be operated by a photocell switch. 
 

(b) Unless intended as part of a master lighting program, no operation, activity, 
or lighting fixture shall create illumination on any adjacent property. 
 

2.7 Mechanical and Rooftop Equipment. 
 

(a) All exterior roof-mounted mechanical, heating and air conditioning 
equipment, and all appurtenances thereto, shall be completely screened from public view by 
parapet walls or roof screens that are architecturally treated so as to be consistent with the 
building architecture. 
 

(b) All ground-mounted utility equipment and structures, such as tanks, 
transformers, HVAC equipment, and backflow prevention devices, shall be located out of view 
from a public street, or adequately screened through the use of landscaping and/or decorative 
low garden walls. 
 

2.8 Security Standards. The Project shall comply with all applicable requirements of 
Ontario Municipal Code Title 4 (Public Safety), Chapter 11 (Security Standards for Buildings). 
 

2.9 Signs. All Project signage shall comply with the requirements of Ontario 
Development Code Division 8.1 (Sign Regulations). 
 

2.10 Sound Attenuation. The Project shall be constructed and operated in a manner so 
as not to exceed the maximum interior and exterior noise levels set forth in Ontario Municipal Code 
Title 5 (Public Welfare, Morals, and Conduct), Chapter 29 (Noise). 

 
 
 
 

2.11 Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (CC&Rs)/Mutual Access and Maintenance 
Agreements. 
 

Item D - 166 of 201



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV22-038 
 
 

Page 4 of 6 

(a) CC&Rs shall be prepared for the Project and shall be recorded prior to the 
issuance of a building permit. 
 

(b) The CC&Rs shall be in a form and contain provisions satisfactory to the City. 
The articles of incorporation for the property owners association and the CC&Rs shall be reviewed 
and approved by the City. 
 

(c) CC&Rs shall ensure reciprocal parking and access between parcels. 
 

(d) CC&Rs shall ensure reciprocal parking and access between parcels, and 
common maintenance of: 
 

(i) Landscaping and irrigation systems within common areas; 
(ii) Landscaping and irrigation systems within parkways adjacent to the 

project site, including that portion of any public highway right-of-way between the property line 
or right-of-way boundary line and the curb line and also the area enclosed within the curb lines 
of a median divider (Ontario Municipal Code Section 7-3.03), pursuant to Ontario Municipal Code 
Section 5-22-02; 

(iii) Shared parking facilities and access drives; and 
(iv) Utility and drainage easements. 

 
(e) CC&Rs shall include authorization for the City’s local law enforcement 

officers to enforce City and State traffic and penal codes within the project area. 
 

(f) The CC&Rs shall grant the City of Ontario the right of enforcement of the 
CC&R provisions. 
 

(g) A specific methodology/procedure shall be established within the CC&Rs 
for enforcement of its provisions by the City of Ontario, if adequate maintenance of the 
development does not occur, such as, but not limited to, provisions that would grant the City the 
right of access to correct maintenance issues and assess the property owners association for all 
costs incurred. 
 

2.12 Disclosure Statements. 
 

(a) A copy of the Public Report from the Department of Real Estate, prepared 
for the subdivision pursuant to Business and Professions Code Section 11000 et seq., shall be 
provided to each prospective buyer of the residential units and shall include a statement to the 
effect that: 
 

(i) This tract is subject to noise from the Ontario International Airport 
and may be more severely impacted in the future. 

(ii) Some of the property adjacent to this tract is zoned for agricultural 
uses and there could be fly, odor, or related problems due to the proximity of animals. 

(iii) The area south of Riverside Drive lies within the San Bernardino 
County Agricultural Preserve. Dairies currently existing in that area are likely to remain for the 
foreseeable future. 

(iv) This tract is part of a Landscape Maintenance District. The 
homeowner(s) will be assessed through their property taxes for the continuing maintenance of the 
district. 

Item D - 167 of 201



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV22-038 
 
 

Page 5 of 6 

 
2.13 Environmental Requirements.  

 
(a) The environmental impacts of this project were reviewed in conjunction 

with the Countryside Specific Plan Environmental Impact Report (State Clearinghouse No. 
2004071001). All previously adopted mitigation measures are a condition of approval and are 
incorporated herein by this reference. 

 
(b) If human remains are found during project 

grading/excavation/construction activities, the area shall not be disturbed until any required 
investigation is completed by the County Coroner and Native American consultation has been 
completed (if deemed applicable). 
 

(c) If any archeological or paleontological resources are found during project 
grading/excavation/construction, the area shall not be disturbed until the significance of the 
resource is determined. If determined to be significant, the resource shall be recovered by a 
qualified archeologist or paleontologist consistent with current standards and guidelines, or other 
appropriate measures implemented. 
 

2.14 Indemnification. The applicant shall agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless, 
the City of Ontario or its agents, officers, and employees from any claim, action or proceeding 
against the City of Ontario or its agents, officers or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul 
any approval of the City of Ontario, whether by its City Council, Planning Commission or other 
authorized board or officer. The City of Ontario shall promptly notify the applicant of any such 
claim, action or proceeding, and the City of Ontario shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 

2.15 Additional Fees. 
 

(a) Within 5 days following final application approval, the Notice of 
Determination (“NOD”) filing fee shall be provided to the Planning Department. The fee shall be 
paid by check, made payable to the "Clerk of the Board of Supervisors", which shall be forwarded 
to the San Bernardino County Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, along with all applicable 
environmental forms/notices, pursuant to the requirements of the California Environmental Quality 
Act (“CEQA”). Failure to provide said fee within the time specified will result in the extension of the 
statute of limitations for the filing of a CEQA lawsuit from 30 days to 180 days. 
 

(b) After the Project’s entitlement approval, and prior to issuance of final 
building permits, the Planning Department’s Plan Check and Inspection fees shall be paid at the 
rate established by resolution of the City Council. 

 
2.16 Final Occupancy. The Project Architect of record will certify that construction of 

each building site and the exterior elevations of each structure shall be completed in compliance 
with the approved plans. Any deviation to approved plans shall require a resubmittal to the 
Planning Department for review and approval prior to construction. The Occupancy Release 
Request Form/Architect Certificate of Compliance shall be provided prior to final occupancy. 
After the receipt of this Certification, the Planning Department will conduct a final site and exterior 
elevations inspection. The Owner’s Representative and Contractor shall be present. 

2.17 Additional Requirements. 
 

Item D - 168 of 201



Planning Department – Land Development Division 
Conditions of Approval 
File No.: PDEV22-038 
 
 

Page 6 of 6 

(a) Prior to issuance of building permits, the Developer shall demonstrate that 
the proposed light standards will not conflict with the proposed tree location. The Developer shall 
provide a plan showing both lighting and landscaping on the same sheet. 

 
(b) Prior to the issuance of any building permits, the Developer shall 

incorporate the project design features that are outlined within the Noise Impact Analysis 
(prepared by Urban Crossroad dated March 7, 2023) on the construction plans submitted for plan 
check.  

 
(c) The Final Map shall be approved by the City Council prior to the issuance 

of any permits.   
 

(d) The model sales office shall require review and approval of a Temporary 
Use Permit to be submitted prior to issuance of building permits for the model sales units.  

 
(e) The applicant shall contact the Ontario Post Office to determine the size 

and location of the mailboxes for this project. The location of the mailboxes shall be submitted to 
the Planning Department for review and approval prior to the issuance of building permits.  

 
(f) The project shall comply with all conditions of approval from all other City 

agencies and departments.  
 

 

Item D - 169 of 201



AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Project File No.:

Address:

APN:

Existing Land 
Use:

Proposed Land 
Use:

Site Acreage:

ONT-IAC Project Review:

Airport Influence Area:

This proposed Project is: Exempt from the ALUCP Consistent Consistent with Conditions Inconsistent

Reviewed By:

Date:

Contact Info:

Project Planner:

CD No.:

PALU No.:

The project is impacted by the following ONT ALUCP Compatibility Zones: 

Safety Noise Impact Airspace Protection Overflight Notification

Zone 1

Zone 1A

Zone 2

Zone 3

Zone 4

Zone 5

75+ dB CNEL

70 - 75 dB CNEL

65 - 70 dB CNEL

60 - 65 dB CNEL

High Terrain Zone

FAA Notification Surfaces

Avigation Easement 
Dedication
Recorded Overflight 
Notification
Real Estate Transaction
Disclosure

Zone 1 Zone 2 Zone 3 Zone 4 Zone 5

Airport Planner Signature:

CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION

Proposed Structure Height:

Airspace Avigation 
Easement Area

Allowable 
Height:

Airspace Obstruction 
Surfaces

The project is impacted by the following Chino ALUCP Safety Zones: 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 1

Zone 6

Allowable Height:

PDEV22-038

SWC of Archibald Ave & Chino Avenue

0218-131-34

Vacant

Development Plan to construct 36 single family 4 pack dwellings

11.05

N/A

ONT

The proposed project is located within the Airport Influence Area of Ontario International Airport (ONT) was evaluated
and found to be consistent with the policies and criteria of the Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP) for ONT.

✔

Lorena Mejia

909-395-2276

Jocelyn Torres

1/25/2023

2022-049

N/A

29 FT

200 FT+

Item D - 170 of 201



CD No.:

PALU No.:

PROJECT CONDITIONS

AIRPORT LAND USE COMPATIBILITY PLANNING 

Form Updated: March 3, 2016Page 2

1. The applicant is required to meet the Real Estate Transaction Disclosure in accordance with California Codes
(Business and Professions Code Section 11010-11024). New residential subdivisions within an Airport Influence Area
are required to file an application for a Public Report consisting of a Notice of Intention (NOI) and a completed
questionnaire with the Department of Real Estate and include the following language within the NOI:

NOTICE OF AIRPORT IN VICINITY
This property is presently located in the vicinity of an airport, within what is known as an airport influence area. For
that reason, the property may be subject to some of the annoyances or inconveniences associated with proximity to
airport operations (for example: noise, vibration, or odors). Individual sensitivities to those annoyances can vary from
person to person. You may wish to consider what airport annoyances, if any, are associated with the property before
you complete your purchase and determine whether they are acceptable to you.

2022-049

Item D - 171 of 201



Page 1 of 1 
S:\Planning\STAFF\Jocelyn\Current Planning\Projects\PDEV22-038 - Neighborhood 7 Countryside Specific Plan\Development Advisory 
Board (DAB) 5.15.2023\Conditions of Approval\Integrated Waste\PDEV-038 DPR1 IW Comments.docx 

 

 CITY OF ONTARIO 
 MEMORANDUM    

 
DATE: April 24, 2023 
TO: Jocelyn Torres, Planning Department 
FROM: Blaine Ishii, Integrated Waste Department 
SUBJECT: DPR#1 – Integrated Waste Comments 
PROJECT NO.: PDEV22-038 
ATTACHMENTS:  

 
BRIEF DESCRIPTION – PDEV22-038 
  

 
THIS SUBMITTAL IS COMPLETE. 

 
CORRECTION ITEMS: In order to be considered for approval by the Integrated Waste Department the applicant shall 
address all the correction items below and resubmit the application for further review. Please note that all design shall 
meet the City’s Design Development Guidelines, Specifications Design Criteria, and City Standards. 
 
Integrated Waste Conditions: 
 
1. N/A 

Integrated Waste Dept. 

Item D - 172 of 201



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
 
TO:  Jocelyn Torres, Associate Planner 
  Planning Department 
 
FROM:  Paul Ehrman, Sr. Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshal 
  Fire Department 
 
DATE:  August 25, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: PDEV22-038 - A Development Plan to construct 36 single-family 4-pack 

dwellings on approximately 11.05 acres of land located near the southwest 
corner of Archibald Avenue and Chino Avenue, within the RD- Alley 
loaded land use district of the Countryside Specific Plan (APN(s): 0218-
131-34-0000). Related File(s): PMTT21-011. 

 
 

   The plan does adequately address Fire Department requirements at this time.  

   Standard Conditions of Approval apply, as stated below. 

 
 
SITE AND BUILDING FEATURES: 
 

A. 2019 CBC Type of Construction:  Type V-B 
 

B. Type of Roof Materials:  Ordinary 
 

C. Ground Floor Area(s):  Varies (2,372 Sq. Ft. to 2,791 Sq. Ft) 
 

D. Number of Stories:  2 
 

E. Total Square Footage:  Varies (2,372 Sq. Ft. to 2,791 Sq. Ft) 
 

F. 2019 CBC Occupancy Classification(s):  R3 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Item D - 173 of 201



 
2 of 3  

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 
 

1.0 GENERAL 
 

  1.1 The following are the Ontario Fire Department (“Fire Department”) requirements for this 
development project, based on the current edition of the California Fire Code (CFC), and the 
current versions of the Fire Prevention Standards (“Standards.”) It is recommended that the 
applicant or developer transmit a copy of these requirements to the on-site contractor(s) and 
that all questions or concerns be directed to the Bureau of Fire Prevention, at (909) 395-2029. 
For copies of Ontario Fire Department Standards please access the City of Ontario web site at 
www.ontarioca.gov/Fire/Prevention.  

 
  1.2 These Fire Department conditions of approval are to be included on any and all construction 

drawings.  
 
2.0 FIRE DEPARTMENT ACCESS 
 

  2.1 Fire Department vehicle access roadways shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all portions of 
the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved. Roadways 
shall be paved with an all-weather surface and shall be a minimum of twenty-four (24) ft. wide. 
See Standard #B-004.   

 
  2.2 In order to allow for adequate turning radius for emergency fire apparatus, all turns shall be 

designed to meet the minimum twenty five feet (25’) inside and forty-five feet (45’) outside 
turning radius per Standard #B-005.   

 
  2.3 Fire Department access roadways that exceed one hundred and fifty feet (150’) in length shall 

have an approved turn-around per Standard #B-002.   
 

  2.4 Access drive aisles which cross property lines shall be provided with CC&Rs, access 
easements, or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected 
properties, and copies of same shall be provided at the time of building plan check. 

 
  2.5 "No Parking-Fire Lane" signs and /or red painted curbs with lettering are required to be instal-

led in interior access roadways, in locations where vehicle parking would obstruct the 
minimum clear width requirement. Installation shall be per Standard #B-001.  

 
  2.6 Security gates or other barriers on fire access roadways shall be provided with a Knox brand 

key switch or padlock to allow Fire Department access.  See Standards #B-003, B-004 and H-
001. 

 
  2.7 Any time PRIOR to on-site combustible construction and/or storage, a minimum twenty-four 

(24) ft. wide circulating all weather access roads shall be provided to within 150 ft. of all 
portions of the exterior walls of the first story of any building, unless specifically approved by 
fire department and other emergency services. 
 

 
 

Item D - 174 of 201

http://www.ontarioca.gov/Fire/Prevention


 
3 of 3  

 

3.0 WATER SUPPLY 
 

  3.1 The required fire flow per Fire Department standards, based on the 2019 California Fire Code, 
Appendix B, is 1500  gallons per minute (g.p.m.) for 2 hours at a minimum of 20 pounds per 
square inch (p.s.i.) residual operating pressure. 

 
  3.2 Off-site (public) fire hydrants are required to be installed on all frontage streets, at a minimum 

spacing of three hundred foot (300’) apart, per Engineering Department specifications.  
 

  3.4 The water supply, including water mains and fire hydrants, shall be tested and approved by the 
Engineering Department and Fire Department prior to combustible construction to assure 
availability and reliability for firefighting purposes.  

 
4.0 FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS 
 

  4.2 Underground fire mains which cross property lines shall be provided with CC & R, easements, 
or reciprocating agreements, and shall be recorded on the titles of affected properties, and 
copies of same shall be provided at the time of fire department plan check. The shared use of 
private fire mains or fire pumps is allowable only between immediately adjacent properties 
and shall not cross any public street. 

 
  4.3 An automatic fire sprinkler system is required.  The system design shall be in accordance with 

National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Standard 13. All new fire sprinkler systems, 
except those in single family dwellings, which contain twenty (20) sprinkler heads or more 
shall be monitored by an approved listed supervising station. An application along with 
detailed plans shall be submitted, and a construction permit shall be issued by the Fire 
Department, prior to any work being done.   

 
  4.4 Wood frame buildings that are to be sprinkled shall have these systems in service (but not 

necessarily finaled) before the building is enclosed.  
 

Item D - 175 of 201



Item D - 176 of 201



CITY OF ONTARIO 
LANDSCAPE PLANNING DIVISION 

303 East “B” Street, Ontario, CA 91764 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
Sign Off 

 11/17/2022 
Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Architect Date 

Reviewer’s Name:  
Jamie Richardson, Sr. Landscape Planner 

Phone: 
(909) 395-2615 

 D.A.B. File No.:                                           
PDEV22-038 

Case Planner: 
Jocelyn Torres 

Project Name and Location:  
Countryside – 36 single-family 4-pack dwellings 
TM 18916, SW corner of Archibald Ave. and Chino Ave. 
 Applicant/Representative: 
KB Home Coastal Inc 
36310 Inland Valley Drive #300 
Wildomar, CA 92595 
 
 
 

 

 
Preliminary Plans (dated 11/7/2022) meet the Standard Conditions for New 
Development and have been approved considering that the following conditions 
below are met upon the landscape construction documents submittal. 

 

 
Preliminary Plans (dated) have not been approved. Corrections noted below are 
required before Preliminary Landscape Plan approval. 

A RESPONSE SHEET IS REQUIRED WITH RESUBMITTAL OR PLANS WILL BE RETURNED AS 
INCOMPLETE. 
Landscape construction plans with plan check number may be emailed to: 
landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 
DIGITAL SUBMITTALS MUST BE 10MB OR LESS.  
Civil/ Site Plans 
1. Note for compaction to be less than 85% at landscape areas; all finished grades 1 ½” below 

finished surfaces; landscaped slopes to max 3:1. 
2. Show or note transformers shall be located in planter areas and set back 3’ from paving for 

small transformers less than 4’ high and 5’ setback for large transformers greater than 4’ 
high. Coordinate with landscape plans. Locate on level grade. 

3. Show or note backflow devices shall be located in planter areas and set back min 3’ from 
paving. Locate on level grade. Coordinate with landscape plans. 

4. Wall footings shall not restrict landscape; max 12” in front of footing with 12” of cover. 
5. Wall openings for drainage overflow shall be max 4” wide. 
6. AC units shall be located in residential side yards opposite the main backyard access path 

with a gate, a second gate, and a solid surface path on the opposite side added for access. 
7. Stormwater infiltration devices located in landscape areas shall be reviewed and approved 

by the Landscape Planning Division before installation. 
8. Corners; verify dimension and grade for required monumentation (see Specific Plan for 

detail). Show proposed locations of monumentation. Adjacent walls shall not interfere with 
the required monumentation. 

9. DG trails and parkways at corners (Archibald Ave.) shall have the trail curve into the sidewalk 
rather than out to the corner ramp; OK to end parkway landscape before corner utilities.  

10. Locate utilities, including light standards, fire hydrants, water, drain, and sewer lines, to not 
conflict with required tree locations—coordinate civil plans with landscape plans. 

11. Note: The finished grade at the building wall is to be no more than 8” from the stucco/plaster 
face of the wall. 

12. Typical lot drainage shall include a catch basin with a gravel sump below each before exiting 
the property if no other water quality infiltration is provided. 

13. Add Note to Grading and Landscape Plans: Landscape areas where compaction has 
occurred due to grading activities and where trees or stormwater infiltration areas are located 

Item D - 177 of 201

mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov


shall be loosened by soil fracturing. For trees, a 12’x12’x18” deep area; for stormwater 
infiltration, the entire area shall be loosened. Add the following information on the plans: The 
backhoe method of soil fracturing shall be used to break up compaction. A 4” layer of 
Compost is spread over the soil surface before fracturing is begun. The backhoe shall dig 
into the soil lifting and then drop the soil immediately back into the hole. The bucket then 
moves to the adjacent soil and repeats. The Compost falls into the spaces between the soil 
chunks created. Fracturing shall leave the soil surface quite rough with large soil clods. 
These must be broken by additional tilling. Tilling in more Compost to the surface after 
fracturing per the soil report will help create an A horizon soil. Imported or reused Topsoil can 
be added on top of the fractured soil as needed for grading. The Landscape Architect shall 
be present during this process and provide certification of the soil fracturing. For additional 
reference, see Urban Tree Foundation – Planting Soil Specifications. 

Landscape Plans 
14. During plan check, coordinate with Ontario Municipal Utilities Company (OMUC) to submit 

irrigation plans for recycled water systems to omucwaterquality@ontarioca.gov. OMUC shall 
review and approve irrigation systems utilizing recycled water before final landscape 
approval. Submit an electronic approval letter or memo from OMUC with the resubmittal of 
the landscape package. 

15. During plan check (for large HOA tracts and industrial sites), provide an overall exhibit 
showing water meter locations, including POC and controllers. 

16. During plan check (for HOA tracts), submit an overall tree exhibit showing HOA parkways, 
common area trees, and typical front yard tree locations to avoid conflicts. 

17. Locate light standards, fire hydrants, water, and sewer lines to not conflict with required tree 
locations. Coordinate civil plans with landscape plans 

18. Show 6’ diameter of mulch only at new trees—detail irrigation dripline outside of mulched root 
zone. 

19. Landscape construction plans shall meet the requirements of the Landscape Development 
Guidelines. See http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards 

20. Provide phasing map for multi-phase projects. 
21. After a project’s entitlement approval, the applicant shall pay all applicable fees for landscape 

plan check and inspections at a rate established by resolution of the City Council. Landscape 
construction plans with building permit number for plan check may be emailed to: 
landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov 

Item D - 178 of 201

mailto:omucwaterquality@ontarioca.gov
http://www.ontarioca.gov/landscape-planning/standards
mailto:landscapeplancheck@ontarioca.gov


Item D - 179 of 201



 

CITY OF ONTARIO 
MEMORANDUM 

 

 
TO:  Jocelyn Torres, Associate Planner 

 

FROM:  Tony Galban, Police Officer 

 

DATE:  August 31, 2022 

 

SUBJECT: PDEV22-038- A DEVELOPMENT PLAN TO CONSTRUCT 36 SINGLE-

FAMILY 4-PACK DWELLING ON 11.05 ACRES OF LAND NEAR THE 

SOUTHWEST CORNER OF ARCHIBALD AVENUE AND CHINO 

AVENUE. RELATED FILES: PMTT21-011. 

 
 
The “Standard Conditions of Approval” contained in Resolution No. 2017-027 for “Ontario ranch 
Projects” apply. The applicant shall read and be thoroughly familiar with these conditions, 
including but not limited to, the requirements listed below. 
 

• Required lighting for all walkways, paseos, driveways, doorways, parking areas, parks, 
park walkways, playgrounds, recreation areas and other areas used by the public shall be 
provided and operate on photosensor at the prescribed foot-candle levels. Photometrics 
shall be provided to the Police Department. Photometrics shall include the types of fixtures 
proposed and demonstrate that such fixtures meet the vandal-resistant requirement. 
Planned landscaping shall not obstruct lighting. 

• The Applicant shall install illuminated address numbers, powered by photocell, on each 
individual unit and shall not be controlled by the building occupants. 

• The Applicant shall comply with all construction site security requirements as stated in the 
Standard Conditions. This includes the provisions for perimeter lighting, site lighting, 
fencing and/or uniformed security.   

• Trash enclosure shall be fully secured with screens/grates to reduce crime and encampment 
opportunities for homeless persons.  

 
The Applicant is invited to contact Officer Tony Galban at (909) 408-1006 with any questions or 
concerns regarding these conditions.  
 

Item D - 180 of 201



Item D - 181 of 201



Item D - 182 of 201



Item D - 183 of 201



Item D - 184 of 201



Item D - 185 of 201



Item D - 186 of 201



Item D - 187 of 201



Item D - 188 of 201



Item D - 189 of 201



Item D - 190 of 201



Item D - 191 of 201



Item D - 192 of 201



Item D - 193 of 201



Item D - 194 of 201



Item D - 195 of 201



Item D - 196 of 201



Item D - 197 of 201



Item D - 198 of 201



Item D - 199 of 201



Item D - 200 of 201



Item D - 201 of 201


	20230515 DAB Agenda
	AGENDA
	May 15, 2023
	Scott Murphy, Executive Director, Community Development Agency
	Jennifer McLain Hiramoto, Economic Development Director
	Fire Marshal Paul Ehrman, Fire Department


	20230515 Item A Minutes
	BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT
	Heather Lugo, Police Department
	BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT
	STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT
	PUBLIC COMMENTS
	CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS

	20230515 Item B PDEV21-044
	20230515 File No. PDEV21-044_Panera^01 AR
	20230515 File No. PDEV21-044_Panera^02 COAS

	20230515 Item C PMTT22-020
	20230515 FIle No. PMTT22-020 AR^01
	20230515 FIle No. PMTT22-020 DAB^02 PLA COA
	20230515 FIle No. PMTT22-020 DAB^03 DEPT COA

	20230515 Item D PDEV22-038
	20230515 File No. PDEV22-038^01 AR
	20230515 File No. PDEV22-038^02 AR Attachment A - Elevations and Floor Plans
	DRB_P1-2380-Sheet 01
	DRB_P1-2380-Sheet 02
	DRB_P1-2380-Sheet 02a
	DRB_P1-2380-Sheet 03
	DRB_P1-2380-Sheet 03a
	DRB_P1-2380-Sheet 04
	DRB_P1-2380-Sheet 05
	DRB_P1-2380-Sheet 06
	DRB_P1-2380-Sheet 06a
	DRB_P1-2380-Sheet 07
	DRB_P1-2380-Sheet 07a
	DRB_P1-2380-Sheet 08
	DRB_P1-2380-Sheet 09
	DRB_P1-2380-Sheet 10
	DRB_P1-2380-Sheet 11
	DRB_P1-2380-Sheet 12
	DRB_P2-2524-Sheet 01
	DRB_P2-2524-Sheet 02
	DRB_P2-2524-Sheet 02a
	DRB_P2-2524-Sheet 03
	DRB_P2-2524-Sheet 04
	DRB_P2-2524-Sheet 05
	DRB_P2-2524-Sheet 06
	DRB_P2-2524-Sheet 06a
	DRB_P2-2524-Sheet 07
	DRB_P2-2524-Sheet 08
	DRB_P2-2524-Sheet 09
	DRB_P2-2524-Sheet 10
	DRB_P2-2524-Sheet 11
	DRB_P2-2524-Sheet 12
	DRB_P3-2609-Sheet 01
	DRB_P3-2609-Sheet 02
	DRB_P3-2609-Sheet 03
	DRB_P3-2609-Sheet 03a
	DRB_P3-2609-Sheet 04
	DRB_P3-2609-Sheet 05
	DRB_P3-2609-Sheet 06
	DRB_P3-2609-Sheet 07
	DRB_P3-2609-Sheet 07a
	DRB_P3-2609-Sheet 08
	DRB_P3-2609-Sheet 09
	DRB_P3-2609-Sheet 10
	DRB_P3-2609-Sheet 11
	DRB_P3-2609-Sheet 12
	DRB_P4-2791-Sheet 01
	DRB_P4-2791-Sheet 02
	DRB_P4-2791-Sheet 02a
	DRB_P4-2791-Sheet 03
	DRB_P4-2791-Sheet 03a
	DRB_P4-2791-Sheet 04
	DRB_P4-2791-Sheet 04a
	DRB_P4-2791-Sheet 04b
	DRB_P4-2791-Sheet 05
	DRB_P4-2791-Sheet 06
	DRB_P4-2791-Sheet 06a
	DRB_P4-2791-Sheet 07
	DRB_P4-2791-Sheet 07a
	DRB_P4-2791-Sheet 08
	DRB_P4-2791-Sheet 08a
	DRB_P4-2791-Sheet 08b
	DRB_P4-2791-Sheet 09
	DRB_P4-2791-Sheet 10
	DRB_P4-2791-Sheet 11

	20230515 File No. PDEV22-038^03 AR Attachment B - Noise Impact Analysis
	15172_Appendix_5.1_OnSite.pdf
	rptBackyardNoWall
	rptBackyardWithWall
	rptFirstFloor
	rptSecondFloor


	20230515 File No. PDEV22-038^04 COA
	20230515 File No. PDEV22-038^05 Depts. COAs
	PDEV-038 DPR1 IW Comments.pdf
	CITY OF ONTARIO
	MEMORANDUM
	BRIEF DESCRIPTION – PDEV22-038
	CORRECTION ITEMS: In order to be considered for approval by the Integrated Waste Department the applicant shall address all the correction items below and resubmit the application for further review. Please note that all design shall meet the City’s D...

	April 24, 2023
	DATE:
	Jocelyn Torres, Planning Department
	TO:
	Blaine Ishii, Integrated Waste Department
	FROM:
	DPR#1 – Integrated Waste Comments
	SUBJECT:
	PDEV22-038
	PROJECT NO.:
	ATTACHMENTS:






